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CORPORATE PROFILE
NCIN Y

China Foods Limited (“China Foods” or the “Company” and together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), a subsidiary of COFCO Corporation (“COFCO”) and
the only focused beverage platform of COFCO, is listed on the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock Code: 506).

The Company mainly manufactures, distributes, markets and sells the Coca-Cola
series products at 19 provincial-level administrative regions in the PRC through
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited (“COFCO Coca-Cola”), a 65%-owned joint-
venture with The Coca-Cola Company. COFCO Coca-Cola offers twenty brands
of products in ten major types of beverages which include sparkling drink, juice,
water, milk drink, energy drink, tea, coffee, functional nutrition drink, sports drink
and plant-based protein drink.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

REVENUE
ES/ T N

(RMB million) (ARE & &E7T)

0.4%

17,172 17,249

ADJUSTED EBITDA
K IHEEBITDA
(RMB million) (A RE B E L)

2020
1,818

2019
1,545

17.6%
A

EARNINGS PER SHARE
BERER

(RMB cents/share) (AR¥ES /&h%)

2019
14.94

2020
17.83

19.34%
A

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020

TOTAL ASSETS

(RMB million) (A R#E & &)

4.6%
A

Current

&

® Non-Current

FERE

LIABILITY TO ASSET RATIO
EERRELER

2020
46.5%

2019
49.4%

NET ASSETS PER SHARE (Owners of the Parents)
BRFBEE om0

(RMB/share) (AR /&%)

2019
1.62

2020
AL

9.3%
o




The following table shows the comparison of the final results for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “year”) of China Foods
Limited (the “Company” or “China Foods”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) with the corresponding results for 2019:

For the year ended

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 817 # Z

FERMBRAB (AR H[FERMRM])
K B W B w (A R ) 8 £2020
FI2AIALFREIAFRE DO RBESA
E2019F R AR A MRLL AT

For the year ended

31 December 2020 31 December 2019 Changes

H £2020F E 20194
12A31B L E 12A31B I E 25

(RMB million) (RMB million)

(ANR¥BEETR) (ARBBET)
e Revenue N 17,249.1 17,172.0 +0.4%
e Gross profit margin o EFIE 39.6% 36.5% +3.1ppt
e Adjusted EBIT* o LR EEEBIT* 1,242.7 1,025.2 +21.2%
e Adjusted EBITDAN o /& JH FEEBITDAA 1,817.6 1,544.9 +17.6%

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company has resolved
to recommend to shareholders the payment of final dividend
of RMBO0.089, equivalent to HK10.6 cents for the year (2019:

RMBO0.044, equivalent to HK4.8 cents).

Adjusted EBIT* represents:

ARRlEEQ((EFEDREARRE
BIRBEAFE 2 RAKRE AKRK0.0897T
(B 010.671L)(20194F : AR#0.0447T

(HBFR4.8781l)) -
R EEBIT 5 :

For the year ended
31 December 2020

For the year ended
31 December 2019

E £2020%F H 220194

12A31B L FE 12B31HIEFE

(RMB million) (RMB million)

(ANR¥BEET) (ANREBHET)

Profit before tax Fx %2 Bl & Al 1,253.2 1,012.6

Reconciliation: AR -

Finance costs B E AR 25.1 53.6
Share of profits of associates JE 15 Bk = A B & A (35.6) (41.0)
Adjusted EBIT* 4 ZEEBITY 1,242.7 1,025.2
FERERERAT

F 3§ 2020
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 1 7% #i Z

Adjusted EBITDAA represents:

8 EEBITDANE ¢

For the year ended
31 December 2020

For the year ended
31 December 2019

B £2020F B Z=20194F
12A318LFE 12A31B L& E
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(NR¥EBHEBE ) (ARBBEET)
Adjusted EBIT* A& B EBIT* 1,242.7 1,025.2
Reconciliation: R
Provision against inventories FEEE 30.4 319
Depreciation of property, plant and #1% - BE&RENITE
equipment 546.1 399.2
Depreciation of right-of-use assets B E EITE 59.2 39.7
Incentive income R A (89.6) -
Impairment of property, plant and ¥ % - B E & R &R E
equipment 25.9 46.5
Impairments of account receivables  F& 4 3 38 55 (B 2.9 2.4
Adjusted EBITDAA 4% Z2LEBITDAA 1,817.6 1,544.9

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020



MAIJOR EVENTS IN 2020
2020 KE T

During the COVID-19 epidemic, COFCO Coca-Cola resumed work and
production as soon as possible to ensure the supply and business
development, and actively participated in social donations

EEHPHE PERAOITXFE-—SHEIEEREME REXE
BRR AEEBSREFIHY

In the face of the unexpected epidemic, COFCO Coca-Cola paid a high attention to it and took
active actions against it. All plants responded quickly and each of the plants was in the first batch
of companies to resume production in the region which it has operated. One of the plants firstly
resumed production on 28 January, and all 19 plants resumed production by 17 February. From 3
February, the marketing personnel resumed normal sales, communicating by phone and WeChat for
customers who could not visit on site to obtain orders. At the same time, we actively promoted the
construction of community partners to sell directly to consumers. During the epidemic, COFCO Coca-
Cola provided meals and drinking water to more than 200,000 medical personnel and volunteers
fighting the epidemic.

EHREZE PRAODTELSEESR  BETH STHMREERE EEHHTREH

BEMNDLE 1A8AF - FHIHRELE HE2AUVAIOR THEAFIRELE - 2A3

REEXBABMELETHE SRBEEHRFINELETER MEBB  BWMETE .
ANEEHEDHESBARR BERXEMRBEEEHEE  -RELSHE FRUATLAER

0BARMBEAE METHEESREELE  KAK-

A

State Councillor Wang Yong visited COFCO Coca-Cola Beijing Plant to investigate the resumption of work
and production and the prevention and control of the epidemic
BERZEEITE#PEBITOATL L TABAMEIRERERBHIZEIFEER

On 19 March, State Councilor Wang Yong visited COFCO Coca-Cola Beijing Plant to investigate the resumption of work and production and the
prevention and control of the epidemic.

AR BB ZEIBERPEIATLILRBMARETIEEREBHEIFERBR

FERMAERAT
4 3R 2020
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20th Anniversary of COFCO Coca-Cola
RRER DA £ 220/8 F

14 April 2020 marked the 20th anniversary of the
establishment of COFCO Coca-Cola.

On 28 September, at the Beijing Hotel, where COFCO and
Coca-Cola officially signed a contract in 1979, COFCO COCa-  tiuiiriiiiiiiniiiiiieaieiaeeeeeea M i
Cola celebrated its 20th anniversary with the theme of “Chasing
Dreams Together for the Future”. Nearly 450 persons, including
COFCOQ’s party members, heads of functional departments
and specialized companies, leaders of beverage industry
associations, local partners of bottling plants, COFCO Coca-
Cola’s management team and staff representatives, attended
the convention on site, and more than 19,000 employees
attended the convention by video, reviewing the achievements
of the past 20 years and setting sail for the next decade with
clear goals.

2020F4R14B =P IE AT AR L4 IE X K SZ20@ 5 -

9A28H » FE1979F B EAIOA L ERABZHNMILRRE - PRAIOATLUI—KESE RITRKIRERE  BPT200FERED
TREMAKE BESHARSFZLATEEA KHTEHEEBRE  SEAMBTAERH  FRAOTELEREARR
B ITRRILAS0OARIELE 19000 FETHEEL G HALBEBE0FRENEE RT A +SHBARENEN -

In 2020, the twentieth year of COFCO Coca-Cola since its establishment, its 20th bottling plant in
Guizhou has commenced construction.

On 27 March, the Guizhou project of COFCO Coca-Cola was officially signed in Gui'an New Area.

On 28 July, the groundbreaking ceremony for the COFCO Coca-Cola Guizhou project was held
in Gui'an New Area, Guiyang, at which the attendees included Li Zaiyong and Hu Zhongxiong,
Executive Vice Governors of Guizhou Province, Zhao Deming, Secretary of Guiyang Municipal Party
Committee, Chen Yan, Mayor of Guiyang City, Lu Jun, Chairman of COFCO Group, Chen Lang, Vice
President of COFCO and Chairman of China Foods, Feng Guangsheng, President of Coca-Cola
Greater China and Korea, and Zhao Yali, Chairman of China Beverage Industry Association.

2020%F - EHRBAAAERIME—+F  F_TEXABMEMNBERBDRER -
3A27R - PIBAIOALENAREERHEERXFD -
7R28H - EBAIOALEMNBEERN ITEACEGTELMERT BEMNEFBAERTEE HAE BEHTZELHER EH

TERREZ TPREBEFRSE TEREERNAHRTERDIFRY AAATLATERFERAMEER  PEAHNIEHS
BERMIEMNSHERMTER -

6 CHINA FOODS LIMITED
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COFCO Coca-Cola convened a region-wide client meeting for the first time
PFEATOAEEREHZESEFS

On 17 November, COFCO Coca-Cola convened the first region-wide client meeting in Changsha, Hunan, on which it communicated with over 600
important clients of the Company about future development as well as plans for products, brands and marketing in 2021.

1LA7A - AIRANALER2REEFEEPEARD BT B2 RAFAC00BREEEZRFBEBRRERFMAM021FER - @hE - &
$HEHE -

A

19 Bottling Plants of COFCO Coca-Cola were awarded as the Excellent Enterprises on water and energy saving
in China’s Beverage Industry in 2020

REBAOTHIORK MM MR E2020F PREIMRBITEE K  HREFERR

On 19 December, the 6th Member Representative Assembly of China Beverage Industry Association was held in Shenzhen. Nineteen bottling plants
of COFCO Coca-Cola have achieved outstanding results on energy conservation and emission reduction, and all of them were awarded the title of
Excellent Enterprises on Water and Energy Saving in China’s Beverage Industry under Lucid Waters and Lush Mountains Cup, and gained a widely
recognition.

12R198 - AEIRKH T X MEFENARGERRRGERIBEERTT - PIRA QAT LI9R K i MUE 48 & 80 52 B BF L BUS OB Z AR -
EMEFTABERB LM FERH TEESK HEEFSCERELSE  RETITENEZRR

FERMAERAT 7
4 3R 2020
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Dear Shareholders,

In 2020, under the leadership and support of the board of
directors and the efforts of our management team, China Foods
overcame the adverse impacts of the pandemic and achieved good
operating results. The business scale of the Company remained
stable and the operating profit recorded a year-on-year increase
of 21.2%. The profitability of the Company was further enhanced.

These admirable results came as a result of many factors,
including the effective pandemic prevention and control by
the Chinese government and the implementation of policies on
“ensuring stability on six key fronts” and “maintaining security in
six key areas”, favorable policy supports to enterprises by local
governments to promote economic development and especially
the rapid response, professionalism and dedication and active
innovation of our management team. In the face of changes
in consumer demands and consumption scenarios due to the
pandemic, the management team accurately seized opportunities,
actively responded and continuously carried out innovation in
marketing and management models, systems and instruments.
Through the expansion of new channels and the application
of new technologies, the management team grasped customer
demands and consumer hotspots, guaranteed stable and healthy
business growth and achieved the development and improvement
of systems and the team.

The market presents both opportunities and challenges in 2021.
The new development pattern of “dual circulation” in China will
promote the market to enter the big consumption times with
consumption upgrading driving the coordinated development
of supply and demand, which will inevitably facilitate the
development of the Chinese beverage market. Facing the huge
development opportunities, COFCO and The Coca-Cola Company
will always keep close communications and consistent strategic
objectives and will jointly apply a full spectrum of products to
enable existing businesses to meet the increasing diversified
demands of our consumers and achieve high-quality development
of the joint venture. To ensure the realization of the target,
COFCO will vigorously support the development of China Foods
and COFCO Coca-Cola, including the market-oriented operational
mechanisms and share incentive mechanisms for the team of
China Foods, and assist China Foods to further improve market
competitiveness, and maintain a path of sustainable and sound
development.

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERRH

BB R E

2020%F HEEEWREMIF T &
BEEGNENT  PERRRREES
ROTHMTE  BISTRIFNEEEE -
AREFEARRERE - LENBR L E
R21.2%  ARBMENFHTH— TR
# o

AL BERFEBAR TR EEZEM
[ARIANRIBFEE  Sar&StBFE
REPEEEREECERFNERERX
F O ESanERHERNRERSE B
XWX BEBAHN - EEEKEEERIS
TREEERBLMNMG S EL - EHE
EILERS  BEREY - THAIFEH
EEMNEX  ZENIE  BBEERTE
B RAFERWN EEPHERIMEEE
BE RETEHORERERE  ©0E
RBTRGMEKROERMET -

20214 - PAEEMBI T - PEIERER]
MERBR SHFNHEANBER
ENRTHHRBHHEROEERAK
DHE—SHESHTEAHTZNER - @
HEARWERKES  FREEEO/SE
RAARR TR BB S E — B B
Bif LB FHNARESHRAXBHR
EmBENE O ARHEEEASZITIENT
KWFEE  BRABEAFNSEEER -
RRBE-BENER TEKEEE2N
SFFERMARTRAOALEQTAE
B BEETERMNMSCEL K ME
BEROABES S EPERME—
FRAMSHSEN  EHEBFERMER
=

TERMBRIE
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STATEMENT FROM MANAGING DIRECTOR

Dear Shareholders,

2020: TURNING CRISIS INTO OPPORTUNITIES
AND THE FIRST TWENTY YEARS CONCLUDED
SUCCESSFULLY!

2020 marks the twentieth anniversary of the establishment of
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited (“COFCO Coca-Cola”), a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of China Foods. Due to the impacts
of the pandemic, the external environment and consumer market
witnessed significant changes and caused adverse effects on
the development of the industry. However, COFCO Coca-Cola
rapidly responded and turned crisis into opportunities, drawing a
perfect period to its first twenty years and bringing outstanding
performance to China Foods.

In 2020, China Foods’ revenue remained stable and the profit
recorded steady growth. With our efficient systems and dedicated
teams, we overcame the impacts of the pandemic and firstly
resumed work and production cross the country, which effectively
guaranteed market supply and our business development.
Following the principle of “diversity, speed, success and
effectiveness” in launching new products, we hit a new high in
the number of newly launched products, distribution, success rate
and sale revenue and optimized out product structure driven by
new products with high selling price. We established a professional
new retail department, focused on online business development,
and the integration of online and offline construction, achieving
better development in e-commerce sales and the 020 business.
We closely followed consumption hotspots and consumers’
concerns and promoted new marketing means such as live
commerce and pop-up brand shops. We launched our own
Joy Club consumer platform and put more efforts in promoting
digital marketing. With the focus on the improvement of internal
efficiency, we initiated the consolidation of regional supply chains
and broke the supply boundaries of bottling plants to enhance
the supply efficiency and returns from assets and investments
under the principle of maximizing the overall efficiency of systems
and minimizing the overall costs. We consistently upgraded and
improved systems, significantly advanced the digitalization process
in sales management, production management, procurement
management, customer service and other systems, which
improved efficiency, prevented risks and enhanced operation
quality.

The pandemic in 2020 provided a stress test on our systems and
we successfully passed the test. We have toughened our teams,
developed our systems and achieved results!

EEREERN

BB LR R

20204 (L B# - 20 £ H
WE !

2020%F - RHBEIRMIFEEERPIER]
AR SR BRAR (THEA O] K
VEZTEFE - #AZINREZE
SMEBIRIBMBEEMBELETEREL B
TEERRGRINZE - BRER ORI
RERE - LE/H  RECHWE =
THEETTEEXNAR  CA/ATERME
KRTREMFERSE -

2020%F - FEIRmERABERTRTE -
MERBRER HRMBESRNRELM
MENEK RRTRENTE  EXH
ORREHRETEENDEE  ARREZET
MENHEEMESEBHNER  RARA
[% R BC BBF@m EMm T8 - Bl&E
THMETHE HERE  KNWENE
REERANELH S LABSEE
eV iEs) - BlCEMGRE  RFIART
EMNHTESEERN FIRLEBHHE
ERMGETHRE-—BIER ERHEMR
BMO0 X /N E i # R HAIRBH
EMHEERIRY HPERE @i
RAGESEMBEH TN ARFERRES
HEEFE  MABFCLEHRANIED
NE  BPBERNBRERN - BB R
HEEES  THREABZENHES
o RRGBEREANE  BRAKES
RAI - RAHRERENEEREBRE
BPTEARTERS  ANBRERATHE
BE -LERE  REEE TPRBF
RGHMBTER  ERAMENRE -
PrETER  RATELLE -

2020F MR IBREGIRMH T — B E 1A
A BRAIEF RS TS BERTEE -
HRTERG BRTHEE

FEERERAT
F ¥ 2020
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STATEMENT FROM MANAGING DIRECTOR % % 48 45 F2 iy 14

2021: STARTING WITH THE END TO ACHIEVE A
GOOD BEGINNING UNDER 14TH FIVE-YEAR PLAN!

2021 is the first year of China’s 14th Five-year Plan. China Foods
has formulated challenging targets and development plans. We
wish to win higher market shares with higher development speed
and better development quality during the 14th Five-year Plan
period and create more value for our employees, shareholders
and the society.

In respect of products strategies, we will continue to consolidate
and expand our advantageous position in the sparkling drinks
category. While ensuring growth in core products, we will speed up
in the promotion of sugar-free products. We will make every effort
to promote the growth of the juice category, promote the two core
flavors of orange and peach and expand to the medium and high
concentration juice market. We will speed up in expanding the
waters category and advance high-, medium-and low-end water
products side by side and comprehensively improve market shares
through diversifying product lines and enhancing distribution. We
will boost efforts in the marketing of the coffee category and
meet consumer demands with the high quality of “Costa”. We will
continue to increase our efforts and speed up in launching new
products and obtain more market shares.

In respect of distribution channels, we will accelerate the
expansion of catering channels and gradually establish its
advantageous position in channels. We will continue to improve
the new retail business model and achieve efficient online and
offline coordination. We will further penetrate into rural markets
and bring new growth points to our business.

In respect of efficiency improvement, we will continue to
facilitate the integration of supply chains in more areas and
pilot optimization and consolidation in more business sectors to
further enhance resources efficiency. Meanwhile, we will continue
to boost the digital transformation of the Company and support
business development with more efficient and intelligent systems.

In respect of team construction, we will further improve the
talent development system and cultivate more talents to meet
the demands in rapid business development. Meanwhile, we will
continue to attempt the use equity incentive and other long-term
incentive mechanisms and further enhance the execution and
creativity of our teams.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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Opportunities come together with challenges. We will face fierce
competitions in the industry, the increasingly shortened cycle
of new products and the hiking prices of raw materials. We are
expected to effectively solve risks and continue to maintain the
stable and healthy development of the Company through the above
measures.

On behalf of the management team, | thank our shareholders for
their trust and confidence in China Foods. We shall not cease in
our efforts to return their trust with better results.

HENRSHARE - TEHREFHR
BT E R - RMEHER LIRS - #6
FERMEE - BRBIALETIE - B
Bt gAMLHAR EBRFIFR
ERERRE -

R AANBRAREEELK - BRASLK
REPHRMOEEMIE I HMETE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CURRENT STATUS

China Foods exclusive franchise to manufacture, market and
distribute products under the Coca-Cola series encompasses
19 provincial-level administrative regions, covering over 50% of
mainland China’s population. The Company provides consumers
with ten major types of beverages — namely sparkling drinks,
juices, water, milk drinks, energy drinks, tea, coffee, functional
nutrition drinks, sports drinks and plant-based protein drinks
under 20 brands.

The Company has more than 10,000 salespersons to serve nearly
1.6 million customers. Our marketing network reaches 100% of
the cities, 100% of the counties and more than 60% of the towns
within our operating regions. Business under our control, being
customer orders served directly by our sales representatives,
accounts for more than 85% of our overall business.

COFCO Coca-Cola to date
SHEyhBA O %

- Owns 1 9 bottling plants - Covered
] 12 < L R BE

- Operates 1 9 provincial level markets - Covered
g 84 &% BE

B E AT

EBREMN

THERMRERBEEN ORI ER
HEAGFOEERITRES - BEFERA
HWES0% M AR E - WAEEERMT
K RIT K FLERE) C BEE AR - 3%
PIOE - IRERLE R ARKL - EFHRBREY
EAKBFIORNBE - 20fEm e EmM °

AAFRBHEABBRIES - REA160
BEXEPRERHURYE - ARRIEHBRRE
BEKEREANI00%H I - 100% H) &
Pk Ko B B60% B AR EH - AIHE XS (R R
BAEBRBOEPEL)LLOIER B
TEHI85% LA £ o

81% %= usn

5 ‘l O/ of China’s population
O WHEARHAD
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS & 2 2 i #T

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

In line with its consistent ambition to be a “world-class
bottler”, China Foods this year continued to focus its efforts on
“Business Optimisation, Globalisation and Risk Containment”.
While maintaining the pace of growth, it works to optimise
product structure and further enhance production efficiency
and profitability, and strictly manages potential safety, quality,
environmental issues and operational risks, in an effort to keep
abreast with and even surpass most outstanding Coca-Cola global
bottlers and global beverage companies in all respects. In 2020,
we have implemented eight key development strategies, being
“accelerating revenue growth, improving routes to market, refining
point-of-sale operations, boosting marketing efficiency, promoting
operational excellence, expediting regional collaboration, building
team capabilities and enhancing digital empowerment”, details of
which are set out below:

° Accelerating revenue growth: We have continued to
implement strict price management and promoted product
upgrades. Further improvements are being made to the
management of packaging prices, and strictly controlling
low-price sales by using a thorough management system so
as to effectively increase overall prices. In terms of product
upgrades, through launching new products and adopting
new packaging, we continue to promote the expansion of
new ranges of beverages such as ready-to-drink tea, ready-
to-drink coffee and energy drinks, and the growth of new
high margin products such as sugar-free and fiber+ series
and mainstream brand “Chun Yue” water products; and
continue to upgrade the packaging of existing products.

° Improving routes to market: Through our analysis of market
potential, optimization of resource allocation, we have
improved our network coverage in key regions and service
coverage of high-quality points of sale through the use of
digital tools such as electronic maps and collaboration with
new retail platforms, with an aim to maintain and expand the
advantages of existing sales network, so as to reach points
of sale and consumers via more diversified sales channels.

° Refining point-of-sale operations: We have increased the
frequency of inspection at points of sale, particularly newly
opened points of sale and are exploring opportunities for
product distribution; improving the image recognition system
to monitor operations of self-owned points of sale and collect
relevant data for analysis; and have strengthened product
distribution and brand display on e-commerce channels,
and we continue to increase distribution to 020 core online
stores.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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Boosting marketing efficiency: We have reorganised our
existing digital entrances for consumers, and improved the
collection and management of future consumer information;
we are also actively exploring the live-streaming business
model to develop our own live-streaming team. Several
live-streaming events were held during the year to reach
more consumers directly. In addition, we have established
online flagship stores and launched the “Joy Club” mini-
program mall to further improve our B2C business model
and process.

Promoting operational excellence: We have encouraged
our plants to share their experiences and exchange views
with each other to learn and implement the best practices,
thereby improving their input-output ratio and manpower
efficiency on a continuing basis. “Joy Club” mini-program
mall to further improve our B2C business model and
process.

Expediting regional collaboration: We are continuing to
promote in-depth regional integration to ensure production
and product supply during peak seasons; by drawing on
our experience of promoting regional integration to formulate
work plans for further promotion and a long-term plan for
distribution of regional production capacities.

Building team capabilities: The management believes that
employees are the most important asset of the Group and
an indispensable resource for its sustainable development.
In order to ensure the sustainable development of its
manpower, the Company has introduced an annual talent
review programme to conduct a comprehensive evaluation
on every employee. Development plans and corresponding
training programmes are created for employees according
to the evaluation results and personal development
requirements. For every key position, a backup team has
been selected for targeted training. During the outbreak
of the COVID-19 pandemic, team training courses were
provided via the online platforms of our online college.

Enhancing digital empowerment: We have upgraded our
sales system and tools, improved our retail customer
system and developed specific plans to increase sales and
service efficiency and quality. We have also developed
an e-procurement information platform that enables the
sharing of supplier and procurement information and thus
better control our costs and expenses; and plan to build
a consumer database to support business operations and
decision-making.
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INDUSTRIAL ENVIRONMENT

According to the statistics from the National Bureau of Statistics
of the PRC, in 2020, China's GDP exceeded the size of RMB100
trillion for the first time, representing an increase of 2.3% year-
on-year, and the national per capita consumption expenditure,
after deducting price factors, increased by 2.1% year-on-year.
In the first quarter, China’s economy declined due to the severe
blow dealt by the COVID-19 pandemic, and later rebounded from
a bottom in the second quarter after the pandemic was quickly
brought under control, with a number of national economic
indicators resuming growth. The growth of China’s GDP further
accelerated in the second half of the year, increasing by 6.5% in
the fourth quarter compared with the same period of last year,
and basically returned to the same level before the pandemic,
indicating that China’s economy is growing steadily, and the
recovery of overall revenue of the non-alcoholic ready-to-drink
sector is satisfactory.

REVIEW OF RESULTS

Below is a summary comparison of 2020 and 2019 annual
results:

For the year ended

TRRR

RIBPEB RGBS BIE - 20204
TEEANEEZEAENBUEEEANE
R R23%  2BEERABHEEXH
RERRERR  REER21% - F—F
EBRREEIXMTREEETEAMT
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HERARRE  BAZHELEBERG
WEER - T+ FERNEERERRE—
FR - EOFER L IERES5%  £A
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ANIREB R IR

KRR

2020 F R A BH20I9F X AMHLMENT -

For the year ended

31 December 2020 31 December 2019 Change

#H £2020F H E=2019F
128318 IEFE 12A31RILtFE BEE

(RMB million) (RMB million)

(ARBBEETR) (ANREBETT
Revenue N 17,249 17,172 +0.4%
Sales volume HE -2.9%
Gross profit margin EF =X +3.1ppt
+3.18 9 &
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Due to the outbreak of the pandemic, the Company suffered a
significant decline in revenue and profit for the first quarter. The
management of the Company rapidly responded to changes in
consumer market during the pandemic by taking the following
actions:

1. The development of new retail business models and the
promotion of sales through community channels.

2. Continuing with product upgrades in our sugar-free series,
increasing the use of sleek cans, and making improvements
to our mainstream brand “Chun Yue” water. This represents
the core upgrade items in sparkling category, packaging and
water category, respectively.

3. Actively launching new products. Despite the impact of the
pandemic, the team still worked hard to prepare for the
debut of new products as scheduled, and launched the new
products immediately after the pandemic eased in order to
capture the market.

In addition, benefiting from the reopening of the national economy,
the Company’s business resumed its growth momentum in
April, and the operating results for the second quarter improved
significantly, recovering much of the loss in revenue and profit
caused by the outbreak of the pandemic. Despite the recurrence
of the epidemic in some regions in the second half of the year,
thanks to the leadership and efforts of the management and
the team, the Company recorded the increase in both sales and
revenue year-on-year in the second half of the year. In sum, China
Foods’ revenue for the year of 2020 essentially maintained the
same level as last year, and its sales volume was slightly lower
than that of last year, increased by 0.4% and down 2.9% year-on-
year, respectively. During the year, the overall procurement costs
of major raw materials registered a year-on-year decrease, mainly
attributable to a marked decrease in the cost of PET as a result of
the decline of global oil prices, which, coupled with the increase
in sales volume of high-margin products and the improvement
in our packaging structure, resulted in a significant year-on-
year improvement in gross profit margin. Besides, the Company
emphasised the management of capital expenditure and operating
cash flows, and gradually reduced financial costs. Including the
one-off incentive income during the year, profit margin was higher
than that for the same period last year.
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Business development by beverage category was as
follows:

Sparkling drinks

S5 K ao 48

EmBRRE:

As for product line expansion, in response to consumers’
increasing demand for healthy and trendy products, apart from
accelerating the growth of “Sugar-free” and “Fiber+” series,
we also explored the soda water market and launched the
“Schweppes peach-flavoured soda water” during the year. We
cultivated the fruit-flavoured sparkling drinks market by launching
two new products, the “Fanta Blue ([Z52 25 ])” with jasmine and
peach flavour and the “Smart Litchi ([B2E %42 1) in the three
provinces of Northeast China to cater to the tastes of consumers
in these regions, and achieved satisfactory results. In terms of our
packaging, in addition to the continued promotion of sleek cans
and mini cans, we also launched the large-sized packaged “Coke
Zero” during the year to meet different consumption scenarios.

In 2020, “Sugar-free” and “Fiber+” series recorded a high growth
rate of nearly 50%, far exceeding the growth rate of traditional
sparkling beverages, and their revenue contribution ratio continued
to increase, indicating further optimisation of the Company’s
product structure. The market share of our sparkling drinks
maintained a high market share of over 60% in our operating
regions, continuously surpassing our main competitors’ products.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
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B BH

China’s juice sector remained depressed, and the overall revenue
of the sector showed a marked decline year-on-year. As a result
of the overall industry environment and the pandemic, revenue
derived from our juice products also recorded a year-on-year
decrease.

During the year, the Company launched the “Minute Maid peach
juice ([ZEARATHEBE )", as peach is a popular juice flavour
with high market capacity and strong market recognition. The
launch of the product adds a new member to the “Minute Maid”
fruit-flavour family, enriching the juice series and enhancing brand
advantage.

In 2020, despite the decline in sales volume and revenue in the
juice category, the Company outperformed other competitors, with
the market share of our juice products in terms of sales revenue
and sales volume growing in our operating regions, maintaining
our leading position in the industry.
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Due to the impact of the pandemic, the sales of “Ilce Dew” water
product declined, but the sales of our mainstream water brand
“Chun Yue” product achieved double-digit growth thanks to our
continued marketing efforts. During the year, a main competitor
in the water category completed its IPO and is expected to invest
more resources in the packaged water market in the future to
cultivate consumers’ drinking habits, bringing new opportunities
and challenges to all water brands. In view of the change in the
water consumption scenario due to the pandemic this year, we
tapped the potential of at-home consumption of packaged water
and grasped the business opportunities arising from consumers’
daily consumption of water at home through e-commerce
platforms, drinking water stations and community partners,
resulting in increased revenue from our large-sized packaged
products.

During the year, the market share of our water products in terms
of sales revenue in our operating regions remained unchanged as
compared with last year.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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For “Monster ([/&/T\])” energy drinks, the Group focused on
online and offline distribution of products through key channels,
and promoted channel-based sales through “uncapping with a
reward” campaign and celebrity endorsements. During the year,
two new products of “Monster Energy Dragon Tea ([T ZE
Z1)” and “Monster Energy Ultra Gold ([ENEEZ 4 ])” were
launched. By combining the oriental tea with energy drinks,
“Monster Energy Dragon Tea” has unique product characteristics
and its packaging design is of traditional Chinese style and in line
with local culture. “Monster Energy Ultra Gold ([EE> 4 ])"
has a classic traditional flavour, targeting the core consumers of
energy drinks and appealing to the existing consumer groups of
the main competitors’ products. Both new products cater for local
consumers’ drinking habits due to its delicate tastes and bubble-
free feature.

During the year, the Company generated increased revenue from
the “Monster” products as compared with last year.

(BETEERBETREIEHRRENK

EMGTHE  RRENRBEREEEHM
AARFHSRENHEE - FALTH M@
EMERIRIBEMEZE] - [BNAEXR]
BERTHRBEERHBTOYES » 81E&
BB _MEMBE  BEPEESLES
MBRERN  BEALXELYES - [E
Mz | REREROK - SHHZLBE
ERF HEEBEXEHRABHENE M
RFmBTER - EHAOD - TEKRLHE
BEENRAEBE-

FACTETBASR EFKFE -

TERMAERDH
£ 3§ 2020

23




24

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS & 2 2 i #T

Ready-to-drink teas

Al gh %

During the year, COFCO Coca-Cola introduced “Fuze Lemon Tea”
and “Fuze Chrysanthemum Tea” in some operating regions for
the first time. Compared with its competitors’ products, they have
more attractive packaging and rich content to meet the demand
of young consumers for mid-to high-end ready-to-drink tea. Such
products have achieved satisfactory sales performance and will
be available in more regions in the future. In addition, “Yo! Tea”,
a western fruit-flavoured tea brand, was made available in lemon
and white peach flavours during the year. Combined with brand
new packaging, it creates a cool and fashionable fruity tea drink
with different flavours for young consumers.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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Ready-to-drink coffee

A7 4 491 E

The domestic ready-to-drink coffee market grew rapidly, with a
projected compound annual growth rate of approximately 13% for
year 2017-2023, which is higher than the industry average and
has considerable market potential. During the year, the Company
launched brand new ready-to-drink coffee in cooperation with
“Costa” Coffee. With selected coffee beans from stores and
imported milk from New Zealand, the Company launched three
high-end ready-to-drink coffee products, namely “mellow coffee
latte”, “pure American-style coffee” and “golden princess coffee
latte”, for consumers pursuing a pure coffee experience. Together
with the “GEORGIA” ready-to-drink coffee targeting urban white-
collar consumers, such products further enriched the Company’s
ready-to-drink coffee product line.
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Channel development:

The Company continued to expand its customer base and adjust
its customer structure. During the year, the number of customers
served continued to increase. By developing business partners,
expanding point-of-sale coverage and increasing point-of-sale
penetration, the percentage of controllable revenue continued
to increase during the year, which further strengthened the
Company’s market position.

Modern Trade channel: During the outbreak of the epidemic, we
made considerable efforts to ensure product supply to safeguard
front shop inventory and meet the consumers’ demand. During the
post-epidemic period, the delivery-to-home business conducted
through the Modern Trade channel broadened the sales channels
and accelerated product turnover. The Company recorded double-
digit growth in revenue from the Modern Trade channel.

General Trade channels: Community stores became increasingly
important during the outbreak of the epidemic. Through opening
community stores and selecting community partners, the
Company has controlled the core quality stores to ensure rapid
turnover of products and improved revenue performance. The
Company recorded double-digit growth in revenue from the
General Trade channel.

New retail channels: In recent years, new retail channels have
been developing rapidly in China, and the shopping patterns
of consumers have also been changing. During the year, the
Company established a new retail business team actively to
explore the growth potential of new retail channels. During the
year, the Company recorded a rapid growth in revenue from new
retail channels, further increasing its share of revenue.

Eat and Dining channel: The performance of the eat and dining
channel in the first half of the year was severely affected by the
inability of many stores to provide dine-in services or operate
normally during the outbreak of the epidemic. Although these
sales channel began to recover rapidly in the second half of the
year, the eat and dining channel still recorded a slight decline
during the year.

Outlook

Although the COVID-19 pandemic is basically under control in
China, some areas saw different degrees of the pandemic rebound
in early 2021. However, under the new development pattern
whereby domestic and foreign markets can boost each other,
with domestic market as the mainstay, and coupled with the
expectation that the government will further improve the tax and

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
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fee reduction policy, we believe that the domestic consumption
will continue to be the main driving force of the economic growth
in the future. Benefiting from the support of national policies, the
beverage industry is expected to maintain stable growth.

As the first year of the Company’s 14th Five-Year Plan, the
Company will optimise growth momentum, transform development
mode, enhance competitive advantages, deeply implement
the three strategies of “balanced development, lean growth,
transformation and upgrading” by actively grasping the historical
opportunities of consumer upgrading and deepening reform, and
implement the five new development concepts of “improving
quality, enhancing efficiency, innovation, system, and openness”.
The Company will also focus on the consumer-oriented, customer-
centric, contributor-oriented, innovation-driven, efficiency-driven
and party-building-led development strategy to promote the
development goal of “high quality and sustainability”.

China Foods will place emphasis on resource investment
in 2021 to guide the differentiated development of various
business segments, continue to make efforts to upgrade its
product mix, and focus on promoting the layout of the entire
channel in order to achieve optimisation of business portfolio.
The Company will also implement the supply chain integration,
focus on efficiency improvement, and gradually improve the
standardisation, intensification and flexibility of the supply chain
system with standardized process construction; carry out digital
transformation of the whole chain, and develop digital marketing
projects, gain deep insight into consumer needs and consumption
scenarios through big data technology to establish a client-oriented
“Business-end” operation platform and a consumer-oriented
“Consumer-end” operation platform, and develop digital factory
projects to provide intelligent support for production and operation
decisions.

The global pandemic is expected to ease in 2021 after the mass
production of vaccines and the demand for bulk raw materials will
return to growth. Coupled with the economic stimulus in Europe
and the United States, under which the monetary expansion has
led to the decrease in the value of the US dollar and the rise in
commodity prices, the raw material costs are expected to increase
year-on-year and the gross profit margin is likely to decrease in
2021. However, the management is confident that the Group’s
revenue as well as sales volume will grow in 2021. With further
improvement in the product mix as well as the sales and supply
efficiency, the Group is expected to maintain a healthy growth in
results.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVENUE

In 2020, China Foods’ revenue maintained the same level as last
year, and its sales volume was slightly lower than that of last year,
increased by 0.4% and down 2.9% year-on-year, respectively.
The overall price was continuously increasing by improving price
management and optimising product structure.

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

The overall procurement costs of major raw materials registered a
year-on-year decrease, mainly attributable to a marked decrease
in the cost of PET as a result of the decline of global oil prices,
which, coupled with the increase in sales volume of high-margin
products and the improvement in our packaging structure,
resulted in a significant year-on-year improvement in gross profit
margin.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

There were no material year-on-year change in other income and
gains.

DISTRIBUTION AND SELLING EXPENSES RATIO/
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES RATIO

The increase in distribution and selling expenses ratio for this
year was mainly due to more marketing expenses was incurred
to relieve the impact of pandemic. The administrative expenses
ratio was basically unchanged.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs dropped by 53% as a result of the repayment of
borrowings RMB1,127 million during the year.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Income tax expenses increased in line with profit growth.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Company’s treasury function operates as a centralised service
for:

1. Reallocating financial resources within the Group;
2. Procuring cost-efficient funding for the Group;
3. Managing financial risks, including interest rate and foreign

exchange rate risks; and
4, Targeting yield enhancement opportunities.

The treasury function regularly and closely monitors its overall
cash and debt positions, reviews its funding costs and maturity
profiles to facilitate timely refinancing. Cash pooling is applied
in Mainland China for the more efficient utilisation of cash.
Also, the treasury function formulated financial risk management
procedures, which are subject to periodic review by the senior
management of the Company.

In the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, the Group’s unpledged cash and cash
equivalents totaled approximately RMB1,860 million (31
December 2019: approximately RMB835 million). Net current
liabilities were approximately RMB1,740 million (31 December
2019: RMB2,622 million).

Having considered the (i) forecast cash flow from operating
activities of continuing operation, (i) existing financial resources
and gearing level of the Group, and (iii) existing banking facilities
available to the Group, the directors believe that the Group’s
financial resources are sufficient to fund its debt payments,
day-to-day operations, contracted capital expenditures as at 31
December 2020.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2020, the total
number of issued shares of the Company remained unchanged
at 2,797,223,396. In the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, the Group had interest-bearing
bank borrowings of approximately RMB20 million (31 December
2019: approximately RMB607 million). As at 31 December
2020, all bank borrowings in Mainland China were denominated
in Renminbi, carried at annual interest rate of loan prime rate
-0.0125% (31 December 2019: carried at annual interest rate of
loan prime rate-0.025%).

RBETRUMBER

ARRECHMEPER:

1. BEHROIEAKREZUBKER:
2. RASEFREXAMmZIER:

3. EHAMRRERERERNZTER
% &

4. MEESRD2HE -

BeMERRBINEREEBRESNE
BN - s R E AR B B15 R A
SEBRE  REAMWERRE AR
EEAETBEAMERREM - 1 B
M EMBRBREERE  LAARFS
REEEETHMEH -

MR2020F12A31B MG A MR & -
AEFBZEEFRS KRS SEEBRS
H B AR 18,6187 (20194128318 :
PARBSIEIL) - RBABEBFELOA
ARME1748 7T (2019128310 : AR M
26.22187T) °

REBOIHBELEEBTNRLL TR
ERE (NARENRAEVHERRER
K R (i) AN SR B A AR B ERTTH
E BEFHE AREARRMBERB
BER  REBARXE®ZERR20209F
12A3IAWERINEARXREHRES -

BEXE

R2020F12A31IB REEZALEFE K
NAZEETROBLERETE  NA
2,797,223,396 % Bx {7 o 7202012 A31
HOGZRAEUBRAER AEEBFTER
TEREHARK2E T(2019F12A31
H: HARKE6.07187T) - R2020412 A31
H 2BRFAPBERBHRITEEUAAR
Wit BEZEE R &EEFFE-0.0125%5t
B (2019F12A318 : R E R & EEFF
&_0.025%5H5) °

TERMBRIE
£ 3§ 2020

29



30

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS & 2 2 i #T

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no other borrowings
(31 December 2019: Nil). As at 31 December 2020, net assets
attributable to owners of the parent were approximately RMB4,954
million (31 December 2019: approximately RMB4,540 million)
and net cash position of the Group (unpledged cash and cash
equivalents less interest-bearing bank and other borrowings)
was approximately RMB1,840 million (31 December 2019:
approximately RMB228 million) and the gearing ratio (ratio of
borrowing position of the Group to equity attributable to owners of
the parent) was less than 1% (31 December 2019: approximately
13%).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND ASSETS PLEDGED

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has no significant contingent
liabilities nor assets pledged (other than certain bills payable) (31
December 2019: Nil).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE MANAGEMENT

Majority of monetary assets, monetary liabilities and transactions
of the Group were principally denominated in Renminbi and
recorded in the books of subsidiaries operating in Mainland
China (functional currency as Renminbi). In respect of interest-
bearing borrowings as at 31 December 2020, all interest-bearing
borrowings were denominated in Renminbi and recorded in the
books of the subsidiaries operating in Mainland China.

Although the Group has not used any financial instruments for
hedging purposes, the treasury function of the Group actively
and closely monitors foreign exchange rate exposure. The foreign
exchange risk exposure at the operational level is not significant.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed 19,076 staff in
Mainland China and Hong Kong (31 December 2019: 19,681).
Employees are paid according to their positions, performance,
experience and prevailing market practices, and are provided with
management and professional training.

Employees in Hong Kong are provided with retirement benefits,
either under a Mandatory Provident Fund exempted ORSO
scheme or under the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme, as well
as life insurance and medical insurance. Employees in Mainland
China are provided with pension insurance, medical insurance,
work injury insurance, unemployment insurance, maternity
insurance and housing fund contributions in compliance with the
requirements of the laws of China.
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The Group firmly believe that talent is the most valuable asset
and the basis for its sustainable development of a corporation.
The Group has established comprehensive policies and systems
for employee recruitment, labour contracts, remuneration and
benefits, attendance management, training and development,
performance appraisal, disciplinary policies, protection of
employee interests, etc, in order to protect the basic interests of
employees, eliminate discrimination by nationality, age and gender,
etc, and prohibit the employment of child labour and any form of
forced labour.

The Group also adheres to the concept of “create a highly
regarded professional team”, and provides employees with a
solid career development platform and a comprehensive training
system. It has formulated relevant management systems and
regulations such as the Training and Management System ({(1%
I E IR HIEZ)), Training System (I3 BE X)) and Career
Development System ((B¥ £ 4 E 2R EE %)) and provides various
training, including but not limited to management and professional
training, for employees, which secures the common development
of the Group as well as its employees.

The Company and its subsidiaries have no share option scheme.

AEESEERNATRATRE RN
E RREARETHERROER - &
SEERYTEBETRE 4HAR -
HOIER - EHER  BIEBR - A
i RANE - B TRSREZ RS
BEHE BIRETHEASER  RE
ETTRRRE 8 - HRIZHEZHE
B OBEEMET RECARAMNRE
SE o

AEENRATRERZEENEXEK]
MATBERED  REITRHRIOBE
ERVFEMTENEIIRER - B - A%
BHIE TGEIEESE) - (EFI R A
MBELEZREBR)SHEEEHE
MHE  /RETRHETRNEN - BHFEE
TRREEMEREFI  UEERAEE
RHEEINWHARER -

ARBREWMBRRLARE BERAES -

TERMBRIE
£ 3§ 2020

31



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
EERSREEEBE/N

CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
ERERFHITES

MR. CHEN LANG BR BA %&£ &

32

MR. CHEN LANG

Mr. Chen, 55, was appointed as a non-executive director and the chairman of the board of directors of the
Company in April 2019. Mr. Chen joined COFCO Corporation in April 2019 and is currently an executive vice
president of COFCO Corporation and a director of certain subsidiaries of COFCO Corporation, including a director
of China Foods (Holdings) Limited and the chairman of COFCO WOMAI.COM Investment Limited (18 B481% &
BFRAA]). Mr. Chen is also a director of COFCO Beverages Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and a director and the chairman of the board of directors of each of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited and
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (China) Investment Ltd., both of which are 65%-owned subsidiaries of the Company.
Currently, Mr. Chen is also a non-executive director and the chairman of the board of directors of China Mengniu
Dairy Company Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong. In the past, Mr. Chen has served as a director and the
chairman of the board of directors of China Resources Enterprise, Limited, an executive vice president of China
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, a director of CRH (Beer) Limited, the chairman of China Resources Snow
Breweries (China) Investment Co., Ltd., a director of China Resources Company Limited (formerly known as China
Resources National Corporation), the chief executive officer and the chairman of the board of directors of China
Resources Vanguard Co., Ltd., the chairman of China Resources Ng Fung Limited and China Resources C’estbon
Beverage (China) Investment Co., Ltd. and a vice chairman and the chief executive officer of China Resources
Logic Limited (now renamed as China Resources Gas Group Limited). Mr. Chen was a vice chairman of the board
of directors and a member of strategy committee of Shanxi Xinghuacun Fen Wine Factory Co., Limited (1L 787
TERDAE R IX 2 B BR A T)), a company listed in Shanghai, until June 2019; and an executive director and the
chairman of the board of directors of China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited, a company listed in
Hong Kong, until July 2019.

Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor of Economics degree from Anhui University, China and a Master of Business
Administration degree from the University of San Francisco, USA.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
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MR.QINGLUUN B FEX4%

MR. QING LUJUN

Mr. Qing, 51, was appointed as an executive director and the managing director of the Company in January
2020. Mr. Qing is currently a director and the chief executive officer of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited, a
65%-owned subsidiary of the Company, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Qing joined
COFCO Corporation and/or its subsidiaries in July 1993 and has held various positions including the director of
strategy department of COFCO Corporation during the period from July 2016 to March 2019. Mr. Qing was the
deputy general manager of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited during the period from December 2007 to June
2016. Mr. Qing has concurrently served as the strategy planning director of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited
during the period April 2004 to March 2014. During the period from April 2004 to June 2016, Mr. Qing has also
concurrently served various positions including the director of the public relations department and the director
of the finance department of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited, the general manager of COFCO Coca-Cola
Beverages (Shandong) Limited and the general manager of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Beijing) Limited. Mr.
Qing has served as the deputy general manager of Jilin COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited during the period
from June 2002 to March 2004 and a sales operation manager of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited during
April 2000 to May 2002.

Mr. Qing graduated from Renmin University of China and Guanghua School of Business Management of Peking
University with a Bachelor's degree in Economics and a Master's degree in Business Administration, respectively.
Mr. Qing has extensive experience in beverage production, marketing, strategy planning, finance, public relations
and general management.
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MR. SHEN PENG

Mr. Shen, 48, was appointed as an executive director of the Company in December 2017. Mr. Shen is currently
the finance general manager of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited, a 65%-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Shen joined COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited in
2002 and has held various finance positions in the group of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited, including the
chief financial officer of Gansu COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited and the chief financial officer of COFCO
Coca-Cola Beverages (Beijing) Limited. Prior to joining COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited, he was a financial
analyst at Sithe (China) Holdings Ltd. and Hei (China) Ltd..

Mr. Shen graduated from China Foreign Affair College in 1994 and then received a Bachelor's degree in accounting
management from the University of International Business and Economics in 2004, and a Master of Science degree
in applied accounting and finance from Hong Kong Baptist University in 2015. Mr. Shen is a senior accountant,
and has over 15 years of experience in finance and accounting.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
FHTES

MR. CHEN ZHIGANG PR & Ml 5t &

MR. CHEN ZHIGANG

Mr. Chen, 57, was appointed as a non-executive director of the Company in October 2020. Mr. Chen is currently
a director of each of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited and COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (China) Investment
Limited, both of which are 65%-owned subsidiaries of the Company, and the director of the quality and safety
management department of COFCO Corporation and concurrently a director of each of Shenzhen Qianhai COFCO
Development Co., Ltd. and COFCO & Technology Co., Ltd. (both subsidiaries of COFCO Corporation). Mr. Chen
joined COFCO Corporation in 2008 and has held various positions, including the director of the safety production
department, the deputy director of the audit and legal risk management department, an audit specialist, the deputy
director of the quality and safety management department and the general manager of safety and environment
protection division of the quality and safety management department. Prior to joining COFCO Corporation, Mr.
Chen has served various positions, including the deputy director of the department of technical and equipment
of National Workplace Emergency Management Center, the director of the first division of the department of
work safety coordination of The State Administration of Work Safety, the director assistant of the safety science
and technology research center and the director of the department of technology development of The State
Administration of Work Safety, and the deputy director of the department of advisory of technology development
of the safety science and technology research center under The State Economic and Trade Commission of the
People’s Republic of China.

Mr. Chen graduated from Anhui Normal University with a major in chemistry, and then graduated from Beijing
Institute of Technology with a master of science degree in engineering, specializing in energetic materials. Mr.
Chen has extensive experience in quality and safety management.
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MS. XIAO JIANPING

Ms. Xiao, 57, was appointed as a non-executive director of the Company in January 2017. Ms. Xiao is currently
a director of each of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited and COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (China) Investment
Limited, both of which are 65%-owned subsidiaries of the Company, and a director of COFCO Wines & Spirits
Investments Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of COFCO Corporation. Ms. Xiao was the deputy general manager
and the chief accountant of China Merchandise Reserve Management Center during the period from April to
November 2016. Ms. Xiao joined The China Huafu Trade & Development Group Corp. in 1999, and has held
various positions in the finance department. Ms. Xiao was the chief accountant and the finance manager of The
China Huafu Trade & Development Group Corp. during the period from December 2013 to April 2016. Ms. Xiao
was a director of COFCO Tunhe Sugar Co., Ltd., a company listed in Shanghai, until February 2018.

Ms. Xiao graduated from Party School of the Central Committee of Communist Party of China majoring in economics
and management and has completed a two-year professional training course of public finance at the Graduate
School of Chinese Academy of Sciences. Ms. Xiao is a senior accountant and a senior international finance
manager, and has extensive experience in finance and accounting.
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MR. STEPHEN EDWARD CLARK

Mr. Clark, 71, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company in January 2005. Mr.
Clark is currently a joint managing director of The Anglo Chinese Investment Company, Limited, the chairman of
the Takeovers and Mergers Panel, a member of the Takeovers Appeal Committee of the Securities and Futures
Commission, a member of the Listing Policy Panel and a member of the Chairmen Pool of The Listing Review
Committee of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Clark has served as a director of Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute and an alternate member of the Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited in the past. Mr. Clark has extensive experience in corporate finance.

Mr. Clark holds a joint honors degree of Bachelor in history and history of art from the University of Nottingham
in England and a degree of Master in business administration from the University of Witwatersrand, Johannesburg,
South Africa.
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MR. LI HUNG KWAN, ALFRED

Mr. Li, 68, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company in November 2008. Mr. Li
was a member of each of the Takeovers and Mergers Panel of the Securities and Futures Commission and the
Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and an expert member of the Finance Committee
of Kowloon Canton Railway Corporation and an executive director and the chief finance officer of Hang Lung
Group Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong.

Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences degree in economics and sociology from The University of Hong Kong,

and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Scotland. Mr. Li has more than 30 years of experience in finance and accounting.
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MR. MOK WAI BUN, BEN

Mr. Mok, 72, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company in August 2017. Mr. Mok
is currently an independent non-executive director of Yashili International Holdings Ltd., a company listed in Hong
Kong. Mr. Mok served as a senior consultant for COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited, a 65%-owned subsidiary
of the Company, in 2012 and also served as the general manager of Beijing Coca-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. from
2002 to 2011. From 1993 to 2001, Mr. Mok was the general manager of Hangzhou BC Foods Company Limited
and Nanjing BC Foods Company Limited and also served as the general manager of Swire Beverages Limited
responsible for overseeing bottling plants of Swire Beverages Limited in China.

Mr. Mok was awarded a Bachelor’s degree of economics from McGill University, Canada in 1975. Mr. Mok has
extensive experience in beverage production, marketing and general management.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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MR. FANG XIANG 75 ¥ 5t 4%

MR. FANG XIANG

Mr. Fang, aged 51, joined the Group in August 2004 and is currently the chief operating officer and a member of
the party committee of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited. Mr. Fang has held various positions in the Group,
including deputy general manager of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited, the general manager of Hainan COFCO
Coca-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd, COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Sichuan) Limited, and COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages
(Shandong) Limited. Mr. Fang has extensive experience in operations and management. Mr. Fang graduated from
the University of Science and Technology of China with a Master’s degree in MBA.
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MR. HU JIANZHI

Mr. Hu, aged 49, joined COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited in May 2011 and is currently the general manager of
the procurement department of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited. Mr. Hu joined COFCO Corporation in 1993
and has held various positions in the group of COFCO Corporation, including deputy general manager of the risk
management division of the strategic department and assistant general manager of the oil and fats department
of COFCO Corporation, and the general manager of Top Glory (London) Ltd.. Mr. Hu has extensive experience in
operations and management. Mr. Hu graduated from the University of International Business and Economics with
a Bachelor’'s degree in Economics.
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MR. ZHAN ZAIZHONG

Mr. Zhan, aged 49, joined the Group in 2004 and is currently a deputy general manager of COFCO Coca-Cola
Beverages Limited and the general manager of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Beijing) Limited. Mr. Zhan has
held various positions in the group of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited, including the general manager of
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Xinjiang) Limited and the general manager of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Inner
Mongolia) Limited. Mr. Zhan has extensive experience in operations and management. Mr. Zhan graduated from
Wuhan Institute of Technology with a Bachelor’s degree in Resources Engineering.
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MS. LI REN

Ms. Li, aged 46, joined the Group in 2002 and is currently a deputy general manager as well as the director of
the office and the general manager of the data center of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited. Ms. Li has held
various positions in the group of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited, including the general manager of the
customer services center and the general manager of the strategy department of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages
Limited. Ms. Li has extensive experience in operations and management. Ms. Li graduated from Jilin University
with a Master’s degree in Business Administration.
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China Foods Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Company” or
“China Foods”, together with COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “COFCO Coca-Cola”), a 65%-owned
subsidiary, and its subsidiaries, collectively as the “Group”)
follows the social responsibility philosophy of “loyalty to national
policies and making people’s lives better”. In its corporate mission
and responsibility, it is “dedicated to modern beverages and
creating long-lasting value”, and it strives to achieve sustainable
development for itself and for society.

This report is the Company’'s “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” (hereinafter referred to as the “Report”). Its
contents were prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) in
Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
and are in compliance with all relevant regulations. The scope of
this Report covers the major production and operational activities
of the Company in China, and the reporting period is in line with
the 2020 financial year. The Report’s purpose is to summarise
the environmental, social and governance (ESG) performance of
China Foods in 2020, and respond to the concerns of various
stakeholders.

The Company understands that the standard of its ESG
management and performance is an important factor in achieving
its strategic sustainable development objectives. We hope that the
Report will elicit constructive suggestions from our stakeholders
to further enhance the Company’s management and performance
in relevant ESG areas. Please send your feedback on the Report
by e-mail to cbl@hg.cofcoko.com.
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1.

ESG MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

1.1

ESG philosophy and management structure

As one of professional platforms directly under COFCO
Corporation (hereinafter referred to as “COFCQ”),
China Foods adheres to the former's philosophy of
“loyalty to national policies and making people’s
lives better”. We strive to balance economic and
social benefit toward the sustainable development
of the Company, and integrate green concepts into
our corporate development strategy. By pursuing the
sustainable development of enterprise and society,
economy and environment, we also promote the low-
carbon economy and explore methods of reducing
energy consumption, pollution and emissions in our
operations. In all our activities and routine operations,
we consistently follow the basic principle of
“preserving energy resources and reducing pollutant
emissions”.

2

O

Sustainable Development

AFEER

©

Loyalty to National Policies
and Making People’s Lives Better

BREF RREE

Green Operation
REEE

O

ESG Management
ESGEHE
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1. ESG MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (continued) 1. ESGEEB R (E)
1.1 ESG philosophy and management structure 11 ESGESHEEZEE(E)

(continued)

To help realise the strategic vision of China Foods’
sustainable development, the Company established
an ESG Work Leading Group headed by the board
of director and operated with the participation
of management as well as relevant functional
departments. In 2020, the Company continued to
improve and make innovations to its ESG management
system, actively optimised its ESG management
measures, and effectively enhanced its ability to
uphold its social responsibilities.

Corporate
Office

WAZE
Public Relation and
Affairs Department

DHEE
EEHE

ESG Work

Production
Technology

Department China Foods

TERM

A E R TR

ESGI{FRE /A

Quality, Safety and
Environmental
Protection
Department

HEER®
BRI Procurement

Department

ERABER

Leading Group under

RTERTPERBOAFFEH
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BN o 20205 - ARARIESG
EEBAITH TSR &
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T EBE(CEFWESGE E
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Strategy

Department
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Human
Resources
Department
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Disciplinary
Committee

Office
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Creating shared values with stakeholders is a core
theme of the Company’s mechanism for implementing
responsibility. While developing our business and
creating value for the community, we also actively
identify our stakeholders and maintain a good
relationship with them. A variety of communication
channels enable the Company to stay fully abreast
of their demands and concerns. Continuous two-way
communication with stakeholders is essential for the
Company to comprehensively understand its social
impact, fulfil its social responsibilities, and meet the
expectations of involved parties. Our key stakeholders
include governmental and regulatory bodies, investors/
shareholders, employees, consumers, media,
suppliers, distributors, universities and colleges/
research institutions, and proximate communities.
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Stakeholder Description

F #5 AHBA 75 MBS HSA

Governmental Departments of Food, Taxation,

and regulatory Environment and Safely, etc, direct

hodies management and regulatory institutions
with authority to exercise national or
local laws and regulations (such as local
governments)

BRREEHRE R B% - RRER Z2FIM - w7H
R T E B B SR ok it 5 R R VA R AT
ERNEEEEMEE#E

Investors/ Natural persons/institutions holding

shareholders

REABRRE
Employees
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certain shares of China Foods

BETFRER—TEMNEMNEARAA HE

Persons who have entered into labour
contracts with the Group and are
serving the Group

HEAREERFTLEHER  RENAEE
WAEB

Methods of Communication

BEAR

Important meetings, policy consultations,
case reports, institutional visits,
official correspondence, information
disclosures, etc

EAEH  BEH
13

CBERER - B
AXER - FERES

General meetings, corporate annual
reports, announcements, roadshows,
etc

RERG  PEFR  RE - BEF

Employee satisfaction surveys, employee
discussions, employee activities,
employee training, employee handbooks,
corporate internal publications, etc

BT mEE#AE BIE#K BLES -
BIHI - ETFM - XA
EE:
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Stakeholder
Flz#= 6 B8 75

Consumers

HBE

Media

Hee

Suppliers

HER

Distributors

HEEF

Proximate
communities

ARitE

Universities
and research
institutions

B AHE

Description

HEHHSA

People who purchase and consume the
Group’s products

BEMHEASEEmOER

Newspapers, television stations, websites
and others

Wit  BERE - BUESRABENKE

Enterprises, shops or individual
businesses who supply raw materials for
production and office supplies to the
Group

MASEEEEERMRBARRED
% PEsEEEP

Enterprises, shops or individual
businesses who conduct the legitimate
business of all brand products under
the Group

BEREREERTEREERN G
¥ mHsiEREP

The public and communities at places of
operation

BLEMAEMER HEAR

Universities, colleges and research
institutions which have established
cooperative relationship with the Group

HEAKEZIAFRENAE - Bt
R 1

Methods of Communication
BEATRX

Customer service hotline, factory tours, etc

BERBZ T HL2ESE -

Corporate operation interviews, corporate
culture promotions, press conferences,
special activities, etc

PERKETH TEXCLER HBHE
heg FeZREHSE

Supplier inspections, open tender
meetings, strategic cooperation
negotiations, exchange visits, etc

HEBER AHBERESE HES
ERHA RREDF

Product promotions, industry research,
cooperative negotiations, customer
meetings, etc

EmEE - TEAM  GEHKH  BP
EE A

Public welfare activities, community
activities, voluntary activities, social
support projects, etc

NEomE) - RES - EEEEE - 4
EEXXRFEES

Provision of internship opportunities,
corporate recruitment, staff training,
seminars, academic exchanges and
research cooperation projects, etc

REEEHKE CXHESHE BT
g e BNIREEHEEER
H
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Relatively important issues Key issues

EHERRE BARSRE

® 28 ® 19
10011 2me 2 ® 31
°14 o ®38 ©32
6 ©15040037 022
o7 o3 B%eas ® 39
®3 ® 34 ® 16
® 41 ® 20

® 25 ° 18 ® 23
®2 ®13 @35
® 21 ® 3 ©30
® 43 ®5

© 24

External assessment (Impact on stakeholders)
SRR (BRIREBHIHNEE)
[ ]
[ ]

BTrEERE HHEEEEE
Less important issues Relatively important issues
AIE (HEBNSZE)

Internal assessment
(Impact on business)

Material Assessment Matrix of the Group’s ESG Issues!

REBESGH 8 &= 2 |4 57 2B f?

Through actively communicating with stakeholders iR B R F 2 B B U7 My = B
and by understanding their concerns and WAMER  THMAMOEIE
expectations, the Group identified the focus for its JETHEAE - A& E 5 B 2020
2020 ESG initiatives and reports, mainly concerning FEESGITHMMENE B
key issues such as emissions, resource usage, TEREHRY BEREA -
employee rights, product responsibility, supply BTz EnET - #rEsE
chain management, anti-corruption and community B RESMEEREIEES
investment. ESGREHR AR ©

1 Materiality Assessment Matrix of the Group’s ESG Issues: ESG issue : AEBESGEEE BT (M : Bh

number corresponds to the HKEX ESG reporting guide (see the “HKEX ESG &% 78 4% 97 B2 78 22 FTESG ¥R &5 45 51 48
ESG Guide Index Table” in the Appendix to the Report). HE(ZRANREN 2 B XFTESGIE
ElEEIE-S)
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ANNUAL REPORT 2020



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT IR % - #t @ R B R #H &

China Foods advocates the sustainable development
concept of low-carbon environmental protection, and
complies with national and local environmental laws and
regulations such as the Environmental Protection Law
of the People’s Republic of China ({fZE A R HEFER
ER# L)), Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution ({#/
EARKMBEKRF SR IAE)), Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution ({H #E A R HE MBI AKIFEIE7%E)), Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste ({fF2E A R 0
B (& B8 B ¥ 5 R R IERI JR)E) ) and Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Environmental Impact Assessment
((REARKEMBIR TR EF(EEL)). On the basis of
improving its own environmental management system,
the Company continuously explores viable new energy-
saving and emissions-reducing technologies and techniques
for its operational processes and strives to reduce the
environmental impact of its activities. According to its
environmental compliance assessment, no significant
violations occurred in the environmental management of
China Foods in 2020.

To further enhance China Foods’ standard of
environmental management, the Company encourages
subordinate production units to operate their own
environmental management systems with reference to
the 1SO14001 standard. By the end of 2020, all 19
bottling plants under the Company had established
such 1SO14001 environmental management systems,
and all had been accredited by certification
companies designated by The Coca-Cola Company.
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2. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

2.1

Environmental management system (continued)
The Company assumes responsibility for
environmental protection in accordance with
the Construction Plan of Ecological Sustainable
Development System of COFCO (2020-2022) (COFCO
Zong Zi [2020] No. 65) ({# 1&g & B 4 A& ] 45 & 2%
B RZHERZ R E(2020-20224F)) F 18 48572020165
%)) and the Notice on Strengthening Environmental
Protection Work (COFCO Zong Zi [2016] No. 112)
(KRR B IRIFARE TIE B IR E
[2016]1125%)) issued by COFCO. The Company
applies substantial effort to control pollution to meet
the emissions standards. Compliance management is
reinforced to further reduce environmental protection
related risks. Supervision of environmental protections
was strengthened to establish an effective long-
term mechanism. Meanwhile, China Foods enhanced
employee awareness of environmental protection and
the low-carbon sustainable development concept
through dedicated training content.

System

Enforcement
B
R 7
R
*
*
*
.
O

Environmental
Management

Compliance
Assessment

a1
i

*
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In 2020, due to the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic, China Foods water consumption and
energy consumption was generally high compared to
that of a normal year, and the Group’s production
volume growth rate was -3.5%. Emissions mainly
comprised of wastewater, with total emissions of
approximately 2,730,000 tonnes, representing
an increase of 7.0% compared with that of the
previous year. Total direct greenhouse gas emissions
was 25,000 tonnes, representing an increase of
0.41% compared with that of the previous year,
and the indirect greenhouse gas emissions was
269,000 tonnes. 185.34 tonnes of hazardous waste
was produced, representing an increase of 28%
compared to year 2019. In the past two years, the
centralised scrapping amount of lead-acid batteries
in the plants under the Group remained high (nearly
90 tonnes of lead-acid batteries was centralised
scrapped in its plants in Chongging, Hebei, Yingkou,
Qingdao, Shaanxi, Central China, etc). Total non-
hazardous waste produced was 5,557.44 tonnes,
representing a decrease of 2.6% compared with
that of 2019. Total energy consumption of standard
coal was approximately 51,800 tonnes. The energy
consumption per unit of product was 8.39 grams of
standard coal/litre of beverage. Water consumption
was approximately 9,250,000 tonnes, representing
an decrease of 2.6% compared with that of the
previous year. Water consumption per unit of product
was 1.51 litres/litre of beverage, representing an
increase of 1.3% compared with that of the previous
year. Total amount of packaging materials used in
finished products was approximately 268,200 tonnes,
representing a increase of 9.4% compared with that
of the previous year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued)
2.3 Emissions control

China Foods has thoroughly implemented the
“Three Simultaneities” management system for
environmental protection (3% 3% (R #[= & K5 I
J€). This means that installations for preventing and
controlling pollution at construction projects must be
designed, built and commissioned together with the
principal part of the project, and that the Company
carries out full-cycle management from the stages of
design and construction to operation on all projects.
At the project design stage, we identify the emissions
and environmental impacts that will potentially arise
from the construction and operational phases and
propose corresponding measures for prevention
and mitigation. In 2020, we strengthened the
environmental supervision of the construction stage of
three projects. Professional firms — including a design
institute — were engaged to execute project design
and planning, and construction work was carried
out according to all relevant safety, environmental
protection, occupational sanitary and health
regulations and policies of the People’s Republic
of China. Professional members of our project
teams followed up and controlled the subsequent
construction process. This enabled us to concurrently
design and construct projects and put them into use
effectively, minimising the impact of construction
activities on the surrounding environment. After a
project has entered into operation, we strictly enforce
the Company’s environmental management systems
and regulations to ensure that the relevant pollution
control and environmental protection measures are
implemented effectively.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
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The Company adheres to principles of reduction,
recycling and minimal harm in its management of
solid waste. Our plants prioritise the procurement of
materials which generate less solid waste, reduce
solid waste at source through precision management
of the operational process. The plants classify solid
waste into ‘general’ and ‘hazardous’ waste according
to its characteristics. In 2020, a total of 1,946 tonnes
of recyclable solid waste (such as waste paper and
scrap metal) were recycled, realizing the recycling
of solid waste. Hazardous waste was managed in
strict compliance with national regulations. In 2020,
all hazardous waste generated by our plants was
handed over to qualified third parties for disposal, thus
achieving the elimination of hazard.

In 2020, plants under the Company provided
feedback based on the environmental inspection.
The Company subsequently rectified all outstanding
environmental protection issues according to the
requirements of the environmental protection
department and the review findings and environment
assessment of The Coca-Cola Company and COFCO
in respect of on-site management, 5S, on-site health,
and other risks with the potential to adversely affect
environmental protections or stability of operations.
The environmental risks of all plants are currently
under control.

The Group also used its intranet to collect, summarise
and analyse environmental performance indicator
data from each subordinate branch/subsidiary to
further strengthen the tracking and monitoring of the
Company’s environmental performance, and based
on this, formulated improvement plans and future
development targets.
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RESE(E)
2.4 HiRERRFE

2. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued) 2.
2.4 Saving energy

Energy saving planning

China Foods continuously explores new measures and
technologies to enable it to save energy and resources
during production and operation. It has accordingly
developed energy, water and resource management
and operating procedures such as the Energy
Saving Management System ({ERGEFRFEEIRFIE ) ).
In day-to-day operations, in accordance with the
Measures for the Management of Energy Performance
Assessment ((BEFEEMEZEEIE)), production
management departments issue energy consumption
targets to subordinate production units on a regular
basis (monthly, quarterly, semi-annual or annual), and
the production units report their energy consumption
data through the intranet system. Management
departments assess each department’s completion
of their targets based on these data. For units failing
to attain their targets, the management departments
will arrange for responsible employees to analyse the
causes and formulate improvement plans.

Energy saving system enforcement

EiRERREHIEBT

Implementation of
energy saving projects

B REfR FEAR 8 ERREFR FEERIEAT

i RE

.
=il

@gg ﬁ%iﬁ_

B3 Energy saving
n D

4 )
Nalysis of causes

&5

/07/3@

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020

5
78 i g\e\\
eNt on energy saving >y

Bstm rem e

TERMELEELTERRK
RN AT 1T B B BE B FE R AT
MfEME - FIE TCHERRE
BHE)EF—RIMER K
BIREDEERIOEMBRIER
- #EAREBED  AKEK
IRCBEFEABMEREEIE)
mEEXTEMMAEMAE
FE-FFRFR)HTRE
EEEM NERREER &4
EEVBBANBEREIGE
TTRERER R IR SR - EIEABFIMA
It A BB S & AR FIRE AR IR 1R A0
TERBEREITHE - HRRE
ISR B - BIE AP R B
MBHEEABRETRRASTIL
il 7 MUE AT &



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT IR % - #t @ R B R #H &

2. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued) 2. RIZEE{E (&)
2.4 Saving energy (continued) 2.4 HIREFEFE ()
In 2020, with the aim to continue advance its energy- 20204 - HER MIERFARE &
saving and environmental protection projects, the BEIRIRIEE S - GETHEBEF
Group executed energy saving and environmental B e 2 TR K 41,1508 - &
protection projects which resulted in savings of K E128 B M ° 20204 »
approximately 1,150 tonnes of standard coal and R E Z s ERM
more than 120,000 tonnes of water. In 2020, China T
Foods’ main energy-saving projects were as follows:
Total investment Energy savings
BRE EigEE
No. Plant Project (RMB10 thousand) (tonnes of standard coal)
F# IE HEEH BEn WA AR
1 Beijing Integrated Heat Utilization 50 58.76
= R 7 A
2 Gansu Biogas Recycling 16 84.00
HE# VA R [ Y8 F A
3 Northern Bottle Blowing Machine-Heating Furnace Temperature 1 21.20
China Optimisation
=314 WO N 2 DR E B
4 Hebei Sewage Aerobic Tank A/B/C Aeration Renovation 37.07 57.60
Ak Y5 K I & b A/B/C IR BN E
5 Central China  High Pressure Air Compressor Efficiency Improvement 35 172.70
FErh = B2 B R AR T
6 Central China  Refrigeration System Energy Saving 2.1 107.89
Fr 1RIR 2T R R
7 Central China  Boiler Gas-Steam Ratio Improvement 04 32.08
B WIE RS E
8 Sichuan Air Compressor ZR Networking Renovation 49 145.68
pl] 7= R 7R AR i i
9 Qingdao Energy Consumption Reduction Project (81000 10.5 166.93
Waterline High Pressure Machine Pressure Reduction
and Covered Warehouse Reheating Control)
58 BEFEMEIEE (BI000/K &= B E NiEE R EER
BAEH)
10 Shenyang Energy Consumption System Improvement 3.3 307.20
&5 BEFERSRE
Total 128.77 1,154.04
At
FERRBERAR
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2. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued) 2. ZREESH{E (&)

2.4 Saving energy (continued) 2.4 HIREFRFE ()
In 2020, China Foods’ main water-saving projects 20204 - HEIRMEBEIKE
were as follows: faT

Total investment Water savings

mEE EikE
No. Plant Project (RMB10 thousand) (tonnes)
524 I EHEER B L]
1 Beijing Reclaimed Water Reuse Project 80 40,800
Sl HKEAIEA
2 Gansu CAN Line Bottle Washing Water Recycling Project 2 14,000
H&# CAN#R R K Bl W 18 B
3 Gansu Living Water — Recovered Water Automatic Switch 0.6 6,000
System
HER HEEREEIBK BB R R
4 Heilongjiang Water Saving Technology Upgrading 0.7 1,000
— CAN Line Syringe Pipe Improvement
REET Bk TEFAF - CANLR P A SE R iE
5 Heilongjiang Water Saving Technology Upgrading — Mixed Line Bottle 04 2,000
Bottom Cooling Water Renovation
EET EKTEAR - BRERELAAKRE
6 Northern Bulk Water — Recovered Water Project 29 13,000
China
=31 AfEKEYKIER
7 Central China  Water Consumption Reduction Project System improvement, Nil 43,658
B KFEHEIER AoE TRE
8 Qingdao the Project of Flushing Water Recycling Function 0.3 1,000
Continued during Outages of RO Water
Treatment System
55 7K B2 FE RO % 48 5 # B ] 4 58 R 5 2K B IR B
9 Chongging Replacement of Resin for Alkali Remover 30 1,000
S B i 25 160 P B 2
Total 143 122,458
&t
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2. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued)
2.4 Saving energy (continued)

In 2020, the plants under China Foods achieved
outstanding results with their measures to save energy
and reduce emissions and obtained several awards
and recognitions for such, including 19 plants of
which earned the title of “Outstanding Enterprise
in The Beverage Industry” for water and energy
saving. COFCO Coca-Cola’s Inner Mongolia Plant and
Beijing Plant were recognised as a “Green Factory”,
the Heilongjiang Plant was recognised as “2020
Leading Industrial Enterprise in Heilongjiang for Water
Saving”, the Jilin Plant was recognised as “A Special
Contributing Enterprise in Environmental Protection
Public Welfare for “Ecological Jilin” in Jilin Province”,
the Qingdao Plant was recognised as “Shandong
Water Saving Education Base”, the Dalian Plant was
recognised as “Top Ten Open Units for Environmental
Protection in Dalian”, and the Central China Plant
was recognised as “Leading Unit for Environmental
Protection in Wangcheng District”.

3. EMPLOYEE CARE

The Company believes in “relying on trust, emphasising
performance, people-orientated, and creating win-
win situations” and is committed to providing fair and
open employment opportunities for those who meet its
recruitment conditions. We also strive to create favourable
conditions for career development, with opportunities for
university and college graduates, and aim to attract and
nurture more talent in the food industry.

2.

RBEE(E)
2.4 HEigEFEFE ()

2020 - FEIRM NETH
EERTEHERFERERTE
HMEREARR - FEESTH
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FRIEFTERB TR ERK - B RE
BAELEIER - FIEAOA
LARK  LRABEFTER
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15 72020F BT E T HiK
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BRE LB IR
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We firmly believe that talent is the Company’s most
valuable asset and the basis for its sustainable
development. We fully comply with laws and
regulations on employment and employee rights, such
as the Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic
of China ((FEARKFMELEH AR L)), Social
Insurance Law (&R )%E)), Juvenile Protection
Act (CGREKF ARTEE)), Female Workers' Labour
Protection Regulations ((Z ¥ THERERED),
Measures for Paid Annual Leave ({#5 %4 KR ¥
%)) and the Minimum Wage Regulations ({(F{K T#&
#17E ) ). The Company has established comprehensive
policies and systems for employee recruitment, labour
contracts, remuneration and benefits, attendance
management, training and development, performance
appraisal, disciplinary policies, protection of employee
interests, etc, in order to protect the basic interests
of employees, eliminate discrimination by nationality,
age and gender, etc, and prohibit the employment of
child labour and any form of forced labour.

During the employee recruitment process, the
human resources department confirms the age and
identity of candidates through identity verification and
qualification checks, and enters successful candidates
into the human resources information management
system, which is maintained regularly. All employees
of the Group enter into labour contracts with relevant
members of the Group according to the laws, and
the Group make contribution to social insurance and
housing funds for employees in accordance with law.

To regulate employee working hours, the Company
has put into place systems such as attendance/leave
management regulations, and approves of special
working hours only in accordance with law. Employee
working hours are managed by the human resources
department. If an abnormal situation is discovered,
the human resources department will immediately
communicate and give the person in charge a verbal
warning, and also arrange leave or overtime payments
for the affected employee(s).

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
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3.

EMPLOYEE CARE (continued)

3.1

3.2

Employment and employee benefits (continued)
The Company has also issued a Staff Handbook (<&
TF)) to give employees a comprehensive insight
to corporate culture and values, the human resources
management system, employee benefits and rights,
employee assessment criteria, and other matters. The
Group has established a staff communication and
complaint mechanisms to ensure that employees can
express their concerns and opinions through secure
channels.

As of the end of December 2020, the Group’s total
number of employees was 19,076, and no significant
violations of relevant labour laws and regulations had
occurred.

Employee development and training

In keeping with its desire to “create a highly regarded
professional team”, the Company provides employees
with a solid career development platform and a
comprehensive training system and has formulated
management systems and regulations such as the
Training and Management System ({IZ I EIRHIE)),
Training System ({3&3I88 %)) and Career Development
System (B2 A EZREEER)). The human resources
department is responsible for the formulation and
implementation of annual training plans. The human
resources department of each operating region/plant
is also responsible for cooperating with the human
resources department at headquarters to implement the
Company’s training programmes, formulate training plans
for its operating region/plant, and manage the relevant
training records.

The Group’s employee training mainly includes:

New employees trainings — Orientation training,
including centralised training organised by the
Company and professional training organised by
various departments;

General skills trainings — Training to improve efficiency
and occupational skills of employees;

Professional skills trainings — Training to enhance
professional skills, including technical and research
and development-based training;

3.

3.1

3.2
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Leadership trainings — Training to enhance leadership
ability of management staff of the Company.

The Group’s training is broadly categorised as
internal and external, which include internal training
provided by COFCO and the Group, training provided
by external trainers engaged for employees, and
arrangements for employee participation in external
open classes. As of the end of 2020, the Group had
provided employees with a total of 1,100,551 hours
of training, with a cumulative training per person of
58.3 hours. Classroom training accounted for 77.7%
of total training hours and online training for 22.3%.
By training type, new employee training accounted
for 4%, general skills training accounted for 26%,
professional skills training accounted for 65%, and
leadership training accounted for 5%.

The Company has also built a platform for internal
talent flow, launched internal open recruitment,
promoted a reasonable talent flow, and provided
abundant opportunities for staff members’ career
development.

The Company strives to create a safe and healthy
working environment for all employees, and abides
by all national and local occupational health and
safety laws and regulations including the Labour Law
of the People’ Republic of China ({fF%E A R 1
Bl & &)7%)), the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases (R #EARKEMBEB XHEPAE)) and
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Work
Safety (KR EARKMBE L 2 £ E L)) The
Group has emplaced occupational health and safety
management systems including Safety Production
and Occupational Hygiene Management Regulations,
Measures for Safety Management of Dangerous
Operations, and Measures for the Management of
Safety Production and Treatment for Accidents, as
well as operational safety procedures. The Company
continues to expand and refine its occupational health
and safety management systems in its subsidiaries/
plants in order to raise the Group’s standard. As of the
end of 2020, 19 production units had passed OHSAS
18001 certification for occupational health and safety
management systems.
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In terms of implementation of specific measures,
the Company always adheres to the policy of
“prevention as top priority and combining prevention
with governance”, strictly implements the spirit of
the relevant documents on occupational health work
of the State and COFCO, and has established the
“Regulations on Production Safety and Occupational
Health Management”. The plants under the Group
carry out occupational hazard testing for occupational
hazard positions every year, conduct occupational
health check-ups for operators, and make reasonable
position transfers for employees who are not suitable
for their original jobs in a timely manner, provide their
operators with suitable personal protective articles
such as goggles, helmets, safety gloves, safety shoes,
safety belts, earplugs and so on. Moreover, during the
“Occupational Disease Awareness Week” and “Safety
Production Month”, the Company vigorously creates
an atmosphere of occupational health protection,
increase daily occupational health training, and
continuously improve the awareness of occupational
health protection among employees.

Furthermore, the Group arranges annual body check
for all employees as well as annual occupational health
check-ups for employees engaged in certain types of
work. In accordance with the relevant requirements,
the Group retains employee medical records for
subsequent follow-ups. In 2020, there were no work-
related disease cases.

As of the end of 2020, a total of 140 working days

were lost in the year due to work-related injuries.

There was no job-related death occurred during year
2020.
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China Foods attaches great importance to quality assurance
in its mission of “offering modern beverages and creating
lasting value”. It strives above all to provide consumers
with consistently satisfying, safe and quality products. The
Company wholly abides by national, regional and industry
laws and regulations relevant to product liability, including
the Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China ({/
EARKMBE R ML 2)E)), the Product Quality Law of
the People’s Republic of China ({fFZEA R HEXMEE
B & %)), the Measures for the Administration of Food
Production Licenses ((BmAEEFFAIEENMIE)) and the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Protection of
Consumer Rights and Interests ((FFZEA R EMBEEE &
R IREED).

China Foods maintains a corporate culture of quality
and safety, and further enhances its product quality
and safety management. The Group’s quality and
safety system certifications have been implemented
at factory level for ten consecutive years, as
reviewed by a third-party professional certification
organisation. As of the end of 2020, all subordinate
production enterprises of the Company had obtained
FSSC 22000 and ISO 9001 certifications. In terms
of management systems, in recent years COFCO
Coca-Cola has driven the full implementation of the
Consolidated Emergency Plan for Food Safety Issues
(KEMEZEEWEEEZTAZR)), the Measures for
Quality and Safety Management of Suppliers ({{ fi&
BEELZ2EMYL)), Food Safety Management
Regulations (KR Mm% 2 & £ #8 F)), Measures
for Food Additive Management ({& &7 NE &
B ##5%)), Measures for Food Recall Management
(RMBEEEPE)) and other product quality
inspection-related systems involving subordinate
enterprises.
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4. PRODUCT LIABILITY (continued)

4.1

Food quality and safety (continued)

Product quality inspection

While the Company’s subordinate production units
routinely conduct production inspections of raw and
semi-finished materials and finished products, COFCO
Coca-Cola also engaged external qualified third-
party institutions to conduct regular inspections for
certain nationally-required standards. Supplementary
inspections of other standards are carried out by
production unit laboratories. At the beginning of
each year, COFCO Coca-Cola’s Safety, Quality and
Environmental Protection Department formulates a
supervision and sample testing plan and delivers to
each plant. The plants subsequently conduct quarterly
sampling inspections on finished and semi-finished
products, raw materials, packaging materials, etc. In
2020, a total of 27,497 product batches passed the
first self-inspection test, with a qualification rate of
100%. The plants engaged external qualified third-
party institutions to inspect 952 batches of self-tested
products, for which the qualification rate was again
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Taking into consideration the risks inherent to its
upstream, downstream and manufacturing phases,
while emphasising the construction of the HACCP
management system for traditional manufacturing
process, the Company also extended its focus toward
its suppliers and new product development, and
backward to the customer service system.

All production plants of the Company have installed
high-definition webcams at food safety risk areas.
Each plant fixes the monitor frequency and assigns
a person in-charge to ensure that all risk exposures
are covered. For issues revealed by video surveillance,
supervised corrective action would be taken and then
followed by continuing monitor to ensure that such
risks are brought fully under control.

Qualified third-party inspection organisations were
also engaged to perform microbiological competence
tests on laboratories of the plants, and all of them
had passed the tests.

China Foods maintains a system of emergency
response plans for food safety incidents in its
plants, and organises drills on a regular basis. The
Company also established a preventive early warning
mechanism for significant hidden dangers in areas
such as product quality and microbial detection.
The mechanism has achieved remarkable results,
reaching a 100% qualification rate in sample testing.
Meanwhile, the Company also continues to tackle
day-to-day quality and safety issues ((BE@mEE %
ffl /@) ) and has accordingly used risk identification
and assessment to prepare a risk list and develop
commensurate control measures. This approach
enabled the measures to control significant risks from
within the normal dynamic control process. In 2020,
there were no recalls of sold or delivered products
from the Group due to safety or health reasons.
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To provide customers with satisfying and assured
quality products is our principle. The Company
has established a customer service centre with an
information service system for recording, referring and
processing information such as customer complaints,
enquiries and recommendations. The Company’s
consumer complaint handling procedures were also
developed specifically to receive and respond to
complaints with an open mind, careful investigation,
positive feedback and follow-up action in order
to address requests from consumers as much as
possible.

In 2020, more than 170,000 calls were received
by the customer service centre, and the excellent
performance of our staff and the 24-hours customer
service center enabled us to maintain a good
relationship with our customers and further enhanced
our service reputation. In 2020, we began to apply
our intelligent voice system, making a large number
of homogeneous outbound calls through intelligent
voice robots, with 1,510,000 intelligent outbound
calls for the year, greatly expanding the number of
multifaceted callbacks for customer service, improving
customer experience and ensuring customer service
quality. We also used the WeChat customer service
and Coca-Cola GO (AJ££4GO) platforms to explore
multiple channels to establish contact with customers
and provide convenient services.

The customer service centre is committed to following
up oral complaints within 24 hours and confirming
written complaints within 48 hours. Customer service
staff at each sales region assign great importance to
every case and make every effort to ensure customer
satisfaction. In 2020, the completion rate for handling
consumer complaints reached 98.7%, and customer
satisfaction was maintained at a high level.

To protect customer information, all sales orders
and deliveries are completed in the Group’s SAP
system. Only authorised personnel may access the
information or maintain the system in order to protect
the information and privacy of customers effectively.
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The Group fully abides by laws and regulations
concerning advertising and marketing, including
the Advertisement Law of the People’s Republic of
China ({FEARHEMBIESEE)) and COFCO’s
own regulations concerning these matters. Through
COFCO, the Company selects advertising and media
vendors which meet its unified selection standards,
and all advertisements are approved by the Company’s
legal department in view of controlling risk. The
Company has also formulated strict assessment
standards pertaining to the use of trademarks of
COFCO and the Group in marketing and media. After
a stringent review of the suitability of the trademarks’
proposed use, the Company makes a determination
and reports to COFCO for approval.

In 2020, the Group committed no violations of laws
and regulations relevant to advertising and marketing.

Various assessment instruments are used to ensure the
quality of raw and packaging materials purchased by the
Group. A review of suppliers’ social responsibility conducted
by independent third parties is one of the basic elements
of on-site review. It aims at making comprehensive
assessment and judgments on suppliers’ environmental and
social risks, including compliance with relevant laws and
regulations, possession of appropriate permits, engagement
of child labour, and sufficient protection for workers. To
facilitate this, the Group and The Coca-Cola Company have
jointly established a comprehensive supplier evaluation
mechanism. The Group ceases its cooperation with any
supplier who fails to meet our requirements, and require
the said suppliers to rectify their issues within a defined
time period. Only when the rectification is qualified will
our cooperative relationship be resumed. For suppliers that
passed the review, we make regular return visits to find and
solve problems in a timely manner.

In order to ensure product quality and safety and to control
risk from its point of origin, we continue to strengthen our
supervision of our supply chain. The Company also works
with suppliers to build a green and sustainable supply
chain system, to continuously innovate, improve quality
and efficiency, and continuously improve its operational
management performance as well as that of its cooperative
partners.
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With The Coca-Cola Company, the Company has jointly
established a proven supplier information management
system, implemented whole process management
from supplier access verification, social responsibility
audits, Coca Cola’s technical approval, regular audits
and performance evaluations. The Company conducts
comprehensive and regular assessments of suppliers
through an electronic supplier-assessment system, and
exercise the exit system for suppliers who failed the
assessments. After each assessment, we update the
supplier information management system and require each
unit to execute their purchases in accordance with the
supplier list.

The Company also strongly emphasises ethical behaviour
and contractual spirit among suppliers. Our supplier
contracts contain specific terms obliging both parties to
prevent any improper procurements in accordance with The
Coca-Cola Company’s Supplier Code of Business Conduct

(AORRERBIHEEERTR/RE)).

COFCO Coca-Cola heverage business suppliers, by region

Region Data for 2020 (Number)
Northeast 15
North China 28
Central China 5
East China 22
South China 26
Northwest 8
Southwest 18
Total 124
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“Integrity” is a core value of China Foods, and the Company
maintains a “zero tolerance stance” toward professional and
business ethics violations. The Company fully abides by laws
and regulations such as the Criminal Law of the People’s
Republic of China ({FZEARFEFEIFE)), the Law of the
People’s Republic of China Against Unfair Competition ({#
FEARKMBERPIEEZHRFE)), the Interim Provisions
on Banning Commercial Bribery (B8R 2% b8 % BEEX 1T
BHE T E)) and the Opinions on Issues concerning
the Application of Law in the Handling of Criminal Cases
of Commercial Bribery (CBIR P IRpg £ BB R M B R @
REEAETHEEMNSR)), and has implemented COFCO
regulations relevant to integrity discipline management.

The Company is constantly improving its internal anti-
fraud systems and strengthening its corresponding mission
training. The Company has implemented COFCO’s 14
Provisions on COFCO Manager Professional Conduct ({#/
AR AR 27 T UK)), formulated Implementing
Rules on Forbidding Non-compliance Business Operation of
Group Cadres’ Spouses, Their Children and Their Children’s
Spouses and Other Specific Related Parties (B8R 25 1+
FEBRNES FARARBMNEMFEERAEZRL
B ENZTHAE])) and Administrative Measures on
Prevention of and Punishment on Falsification of Business
Results (KBEARPIEBEBAEBRAEERNERIIER)),
stipulating that employees shall not “conduct business
with relatives, use their authorities to seek benefits for
themselves and their relatives and friends, obtain benefits
from subsidiaries and customers, and take any form of
rebate”. Employees found to be in violation are subject to
disciplinary action according to the severity of the act, until
legal liability is pursued. The Company has set up a portal,
providing reporting channels, a dedicate telephone line
and e-mail address, to encourage employees to report any
observed violation of laws, regulations, Company regulations
and acts which may damage the Company’s economic
interests and social reputation.

The Company placed a strong emphasis on supervision and
management of all activities connected with tendering and
procurement. It has implemented the Rules Governing Tender
and Procurement of COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited
((RIBRTOATERB AR AR AERBERIE)) and
developed COFCO Coca-Cola Procurement Management
Platform to avoid non-compliance in these areas.

In 2020, COFCO Coca-Cola received nine notices of
concern and all these cases were handled, with no major
violations being subsequently identified.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

“Loyalty to national policies and making people’s lives
better” is the overall mission of COFCO and the motive
behind Coca-Cola China’s “We Care” sustainable
development and public welfare strategy. Through “We
Care”, we provide a wide range of high-quality beverages
to the market whilst fulfilling our role as a corporate
citizen. The Group responds to the needs of communities,
makes contributions pertaining to environmental protection,
education, sports, community, disaster relief and COVID-19
combating, and encourages its employees to participate
in welfare activities in order to promote the mutual
development and progress of enterprise and society.

In 2020, we launched a series of social welfare activities
in various forms with a total of 9,518 participants. The
cumulative labour hours devoted were approximately
22,047 hours, and the capital invested was approximately
RMB14.73 million.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT (continued)

1.

Targeted Poverty Alleviation:

Fixed-point Poverty Alleviation:

In 2020, COFCO Coca-Cola implemented poverty
alleviation tasks assigned by the COFCO’s party
organisation. For the fifth consecutive year, a
team was engaged to carry out poverty alleviation
tasks in Shiqu County, Ganzizhou (located 4,500
metres above sea level in Sichuan Province),
participating in 12 poverty alleviation projects
including plateau animal husbandry dairy processing,
agriculture, forestry science and technology industry
demonstration park and tourist area development.
With the support of COFCO, COFCO Coca-Cola
contributed RMB10,000,000 to poverty alleviation
projects in Shiqu County in 2020. It purchased
agricultural products of approximately RMB2,678,100
in value, helped to sell approximately RMB1,935,600
worth of agricultural products, and trained 97 basic-
level cadres and 181 technicians. Since 2016,
the Company has helped raise 112 villages, 5,717
households and 25,444 people in Shiqu County out
of poverty. On 18 February 2020, as per the official
announcement of the People’s Government of Sichuan
Province, Shiqu County has reached the relevant
indicators for the exit of the poverty-stricken counties
list, and successfully completed the target of raising
itself, the poverty-stricken villages and households out
of poverty.
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7. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT (continued)

1.

Targeted Poverty Alleviation: (continued)
Featured Poverty Alleviation:

In 2020, COFCO Coca-Cola carried out special
poverty alleviation projects in the 14 provinces where
it operates, taking into account the characteristics of
those poverty-stricken areas and the brand, channel
and public welfare resources of its bottling plants in
such areas, to help those poverty-stricken areas win
the fight against poverty in various ways, such as
skills training, providing jobs and promoting education.
During the year, COFCO Coca-Cola carried out 40
special poverty alleviation activities successively,
helping 25,939 persons and generating economic
benefits of RMB1,200,000 directly driven by the
projects.

In Taiping Town, Airport New City, Xi Xian New
District, Shaanxi Province, COFCO Coca-Cola Shaanxi
plant joined hands with Xi'an Mingde Institute of
Technology to create the brand image design of
“Grandma Apricot” for Grandma Cui Shuxia, a rural
agricultural product live e-commerce leader, and to
energize the development of the local agricultural
product e-commerce industry with the advantages of
the Company’s brand and e-commerce channels.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT (continued)

1.

Targeted Poverty Alleviation: (continued)
Featured Poverty Alleviation: (continued)

In Liaozhong County, Shenyang City, Liaoning
Province, COFCO Coca-Cola Liaoning Plant and
Shenyang City Agricultural and Rural Bureau
worked together to select agricultural products for
industrialized packaging, used original hand-paint
and mysterious peripherals for decoration in “mix-
and-match” style, innovated and developed the first
batch of blind boxes for poverty alleviation, to help
farmers enhance the brand characteristics of the local
agricultural products and product premiums, and
realized sales conversion through the Company’s live
e-commerce studio and Shenyang E-commerce Village
020 demonstration store, to create new demand with
new supply, so as to drive new growth.

In Qingshan Village, Lanzhou City, Gansu Province,
COFCO Coca-Cola Gansu Plant joined hand with
the local government to carried out the “Qingshan
Fruit Friendship” project to help farmers by building
an industrial model of “enterprise + government +
farmers”, bring into play the Company’s resources
and influence, to promote the brand of high-quality
apples in Qingshan Village with the joint efforts of
consumption, so as to help local farmers increase their
income.
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7.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT (continued)

2,

Environmental Protection Projects:

World Without Waste:

In response to calls for a “Green China” and “Cities
without Waste”, as well as Coca-Cola’s own vision of
a “World Without Waste”, COFCO Coca-Cola carried
out public welfare environmental protection projects
such as waste classification education, bottle recycling
activities and RPET recycling derivatives exhibitions
in its operating areas, contributing to the ecological
wellbeing with practical actions. In 2020, the Group
carried out 64 “World Without Waste” environmental
protection activities with a total investment of
RMB2,090,000.

COFCO Coca-Cola Environmental Volunteer Actions:

COFCO Coca-Cola bottling plants carried out
environmental volunteer actions such as Earth
Hour, tree planting and beach cleaning in their
respective operating regions in response to the
environmental protection needs. While protecting
communities environments, we educated consumers
on environmental protection and cherish the beauty of
our home through employee behaviour and corporate
communication. In 2020, the Group invested RMB157,000
in voluntary environmental projects.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT (continued)

3.

Education/Sport

Empowerment of Youth:

COFCO Coca-Cola launched various youth
entrepreneurship, vocational training and social
practice projects for college students. These aimed
to help students realise their own value and enhance
their future competitiveness. In 2020, COFCO Coca-
Cola carried out 17 times of various youth training
programmes and engaged more than 3,354 students,
with a total investment of RMB215,000.

National Sports Promotion:

To implement the “Healthy China” initiative in 2020,
COFCO Coca-Cola lent its support to national fitness
exercises by organising environmental protection
charity runs, charity step donations and other
activities to promote the healthy exercise habit and
positive lifestyle. In 2020, 49 charity running activities
were held by COFCO Coca-Cola, with more than
82,160,000 participants.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT (continued)

4,

Caring for the Community:

Coca-Cola Mayor Cup Football Tournament:

In 2020, the COFCO Coca-Cola Shandong Plant
organised its 23rd consecutive annual Coca-Cola
Mayor Cup Football Tournament. 212 youth football
teams played 612 matches, with a total of 3,590
players.

Water Purification Programme:

Over the years, COFCO Coca-Cola has participated in
the “Water Purification Programme” initiated by Coca-
Cola China and One Foundation to help schools and
communities in remote areas install water purification
equipment to effectively improve the quality of
children’s drinking water and ensure water safety.
Up to now, the project has joined with Coca-Cola
System to deploy 3,864 water purification devices
in 406 counties in 28 provinces in China, including
Xinjiang, Gansu and Guizhou, covering 3,523 schools
and benefiting 1,740,000 students and teachers. In
2020, in accordance with the spirit of the coordination
and docking meeting between COFCO and the
Central Commission for Discipline Inspection and
State Supervision Commission for poverty alleviation
in Mabian and Leibo counties and relevant work
arrangement, COFCO Coca-Cola has provided water
purification equipment for Xiaoguxi Village in Mabian
County and Jiagu Village in Leibo County, donating
12 sets of water purification equipment, to protect
children in mountainous areas from unsafe drinking
water.
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7.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT (continued)

4.

Caring for the Community: (continued)

520 Incentive Programme for Women:

The Coca-Cola 520 Programme is a global sustainable
development project to empower women and help
them realise their social value. COFCO Coca-Cola
bottling plants have participated in a variety of ways
and made use of different resources, including
providing comprehensive entrepreneurial guidance
and support to women who wish to start or run their
own business. Coca-Cola 520 Maternity Universities
were also launched in its operating regions to teach
female shop owners retail business skills through
online and offline courses. In 2020, COFCO Coca-
Cola carried out 6 activities and benefited 4,661
people, with an accumulated input of RMB88,440.

Community Care:

Each bottling plant under COFCO Coca-Cola strives
to fulfil the genuine needs of the community through
public welfare projects such as blood donation,
condolences to special groups, and volunteer
service to help build a warm and harmonious
society. In 2020, COFCO Coca Cola launched 188
community care activities with a total investment of
RMB2,370,000.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT (continued)

5.

Disaster and Relief

Clean Drinking Water in 24 Hours Rescue Mechanism:
COFCO Coca-Cola owned 19 bottling plants covering
81% of China and 51% of its population. In cases
of natural disaster, the plants’ strong marketing
network and logistical resources are harnessed to
bring essentials such as drinking water to where it
is vitally needed. In 2020, the Group responded to
the “Clean Water in 24 Hours” rescue mechanism
on 3 occasions, providing more than 72,600 bottles
of water to victims and rescuers in disaster-stricken
areas.

During the COVID-19 pandemic, COFCO Coca-Cola
actively participated in the prevention and control
of the pandemic in the 12 provinces, autonomous
regions or municipalities covered by its business in
various forms, including public welfare volunteering
activities, epidemic prevention materials and drinking
water donations, and donated a total of more than
300,000 bottles of drinking water to the front line
of epidemic prevention in various regions, helping
front-line epidemic prevention workers to ensure their
drinking water safety with the strength of its own
industry.
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APPENDIX: ESG GUIDELINES OF THE STOCK Bt &% : B X FTESGIE 5| &5l 3k
EXCHANGE
Contents covered
Aspect No.  Attributes Description of Subject in the Report
BEEE BRREY REBMT BAE ABERBRBRE
Aspect Al:
Emissions 1 General Disclosure  Information on: Yes

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

JEHAL: — R FHRERRAZERBHN  MAKRLHHOHES AERES =
7378 BEERMNELSH:
(@ BE: Rk
(b) BFHETABEAZEMMEBEERROIOER -
2 KPI Al1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Yes
PR A URIZALL  BERR YR 4R K R B AR B R P
3 KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where Yes
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
MR ERIEEAL? AEREAKERE ABAE) R (WER) ZE(NWAEESE =
11 ‘.’IE ﬁ@ u‘l’ﬁ)
4 KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Yes
appropriate, intensity (eg. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
BAREVIEIEALS TELEEREMLEE UNHE) R(NER)ZE (NUEE P
BEf - BERMEAE)
5 KPI Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Yes
appropriate intensity (eg. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
BREBIEFTALL FEEREEEYESE CAEAE) R(NER) ZE (NG E Pl
S8 BERHETE) -
6 KPI Al.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results Yes
achieved.
REVIEFALS HRAEHRENEERAEER o P
7 KPI Al.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are Yes
handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
BRENEIFALS HAERAEREEEENN L  BIEEESNEBERA P
BRE -
Aspect A2:
Use of Resources 8 General Disclosure  Palicies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water Yes
and other raw materials.
[EHEA2 : —REE BRERBRR(BIEIR - KR EMERME) B BUR - I
ERE A
9 KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (eg. electricity, Yes
gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (eg. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
B AR IRA2] Ez%ﬁ*”ﬁﬂ YR ERER SEEER(NE - fEoh) 2FEE (0 =

TERTRE#E)REE(WNEEEEN  BERKHTE)

10 KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (eg. per unit of production Yes
volume, per facility)
BREBIRITA22 BRKERTEE(WNEBESEN  GFHEREFE) -

bl
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APPENDIX: ESG GUIDELINES OF THE STOCK

EXCHANGE (continued)

(#&)

Bt &% : 78 XX FTESG#E 5| R 5l &

Contents covered

Aspect No. Attributes Description of Subject in the Report
BEEHE BERES BEEM = FRERNTRBRE
11 KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results Yes
achieved.
BREBIEIZA23 e RE AR RN ERMERR P
12 KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is Yes
fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
BREBIEIZA24 HICSKIGERAOR AT B EAHE - U REABKSREE P
RFTEHRER
13 KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) Yes
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.
BREBIEZA2S HE@AAEEMBNAE UBHE) R(NER) BEEE 2
fifh & o
Aspect A3:
The Environment and 14 General Disclosure  Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the Yes
Natural Resources environment and natural resources.
EmEA3: —REE HEBTAHRRERAREREREAZEHBE o <
BIERAARER
15 KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of operation activities on Yes
the environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.
BRENEIFAS] HAEREDHRBERRAABERNEAZERERKRERS P
BEENTEH -
Aspect B1:
Employment 16 General Disclosure  Information on: Yes
(@) the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.
JEmEBL: —REE ERFMEkRE BERER ITERE - RE - TSEE - =
E® Zfb » RIEAR A R E A 5 i A A 8 -
(@ BE: Rk
(b) BFHETABEAZENHEBEIEZRAOOER -
17 KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and No
geographical region.
BEENIEEBLL ZUR EEER FRAENRMEESNES L - B
18 KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical No
region.
BREBIEEBL2 RUR FRARRMEE HHESRKLLE - B
FERmMmBRAT
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APPENDIX: ESG GUIDELINES OF THE STOCK Bt &% : B X FTESGIE 5| &5l 3k
EXCHANGE (continued) (#&)
Contents covered
Aspect No. Attributes Description of Subject in the Report
BEEE BEGRT BEBM BEHL ABERNBRBRE
Aspect B2:
Health and Safety 19 General Disclosure  Information on: Yes

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a
safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

EEB2 : —REE FRARERZ2IERERRREEEHEBELSEN: <
RRERS @@ BE K
(b) EFHETABERZENMHBELIERAOINER -
20 KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. Yes
BREBIEEB2] AIEBEAMRTHALR R X - P
21 KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Yes
BRERIEEB22 AIBEXIELY - P
22 KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, Yes
how they are implemented and monitored.
BRENIEIEBR23 MM IRANBERREAT 2/ UREBRNTRERR I
& o
Aspect B3:
Development and 23 General Disclosure  Policies on improving employee knowledge and skills for Yes
Training discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
fEHB3 : —REE ERRAREBTIEBEN DM IR EHBR o HE =
R R EED o
24 KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee No
category (eg. senior management, middle management).
BRENIEEB] RURRESEN(NSREERE FREEEZ)ESINT B
JEEBDL
25 KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender No
and employee category.
BREMIEEB32 RUREERFE D  BREETKZINNTHRE - A
Aspect B4:
Labour Standards 26 General Disclosure  Information on: Yes
(a) the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child
and forced labour.
[EmEB4 : — R E BAMEETI SRS TH: Pl
BT AR @@ HE: Rk
(b) BFHETABEAZEMMEBEIEZRBOOER
27 KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid Yes
child and forced labour.
BRENIEIEBL] MR BEENNEREABEETREHST - <
28 KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when Yes
discovered.
BREBIEIEB42 HAEERERBERKEREBBERAERNTS R - <
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APPENDIX: ESG GUIDELINES OF THE STOCK i &% : BRXFTESGIS 5l &5l &
EXCHANGE (continued)

(#&)

Contents covered

Aspect No. Attributes Description of Subject in the Report
BEEHE BERES BEEM = FREANTRBRE
Aspect B5:
Supply Chain 29 General Disclosure  Palicies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply Yes
Management chain.
MBS : —REE ERHEENRERLGRABBE <
HEEER
30 KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Yes
MAEMIEIERS] RibEE S EEEE - <
31 KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of Yes
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they
are implemented and monitored.
MR ERIERBS2 M AMERREEMEN  MEARTERENNMERE =
B UAREBEHNRITREEGE -
Aspect B6:
Product 32 General Disclosure  Information on: Yes
Responsibility (@) the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of redress.
[E EB6 — R E FHMREERNRENRREZS  BE BEERLES <
EmEL HIARBRAEL
(@ BE: Rk
(b) BFHETABEAZEMNHEBEERRONER -
33 KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for Yes
safety and health reasons.
BRENEEBR] EEHREXERBETRT 2 EREFEAMALKNE S <
t e
34 KPI B6.2 Number of products and services related complaints received and Yes
how they are dealt with.
MRERIEREB6.2 HEMNERKRBORFHAAREE X - <
35 KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting Yes
intellectual property rights.
Mg EMIEIEB6.3 Ml B ERREMBEESBOED 2
36 KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Yes
BREBIEEBA HILEERTREREREKEF - <
37 KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how Yes
they are implemented and monitored.
A RIRIZB6.5 HIUKEEBBRERLBIE - UREERITRERLE - <
FERmMmBRAT

F 3R 2020
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APPENDIX: ESG GUIDELINES OF THE STOCK Bt &% : B X FTESGIE 5| &5l 3k
EXCHANGE (continued) (#&)

Contents covered
Aspect No. Attributes Description of Subject in the Report
BEEE BEGRT BEBM BEHL ABERNBRBRE
Aspect B7:
Anti-corruption 38 General Disclosure  Information on: Yes

(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.
EEB7 : —REE BERAMILHER PR HFEREREN:
R&S (@) HE: Rk
(b) BFHETABERZENMBELIEZRAGNER -
39 KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices Yes
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the cases.
BRENEERL] RERBANEETASHESREVEEENE SFARNY
BB MR R -
40 KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistleblowing procedures, Yes
how they are implemented and monitored.

il

il

BREBIEERI2 M BEERBRET AREBRTREEFE - =
Aspect B8:
Community 41 General Disclosure  Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the Yes
Investment communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the communities interests.
[EEBS : — BB E BRANME2RRTHRELENEHETENRREERED b
HERE BEREMENZEBR o
42 KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (eg. education, environmental Yes
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).
BRENIEEBRS] ZITEHMEE(WNHE BEFH SIE% - K k- P
BE) -
43 KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (eg. money or time) to the focus area. Yes
BREBIEEBR2 EHEIHEMPAER(NSERER) - b
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

China Foods Limited (the “Company” and together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) is committed to maintaining high
standards of corporate governance. All directors of the Company
(the “Director(s)”) beliefs that good corporate governance
standards and practices are crucial to improving the efficiency
and performance of the Group and to safeguarding the interests
of our shareholders, investors, customers and staff.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company has applied the principles of the CG Code and
complied with all the Code Provisions with the exception of Code
Provision E.1.2 throughout the year ended 31 December 2020
(the “year”).

Code Provision E.1.2 stipulated that the chairman of the board of
directors should attend the annual general meeting. The chairman
of the board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) was
unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company
which held on 2 June 2020 due to the entry restrictions over
Novel Coronavirus. Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred, an independent
non-executive Director of the Company, took the chair of the
annual general meeting, in accordance with bye-law 73 of the
bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”).

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND
RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. The Company
has made specific enquiry of all Directors regarding any non-
compliance with the Model Code during the year, all Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code throughout the year.
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The Company has also adopted a code for securities transactions
by relevant employees (the “Employees Trading Code”) based
on the Model Code concerning dealings by relevant employees
in the securities of the Company. Relevant employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Group are required to comply with the Employees Trading Code
in respect of their dealings in the securities of the Company. The
terms of the Employees Trading Code are no less exacting than
the required standards set out in the Model Code. During the
year, the Company has not received any non-compliance report
from any of such employees.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board, led by the chairman, is responsible for the leadership
and control of the Company, and be collectively responsible
for formulating the Company’s overall strategies and policies,
reviewing and monitoring financial and operating performance,
reviewing the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems, supervising and managing management’s
performance of the Company and approval of matters or
transactions of a material nature or those requiring disclosure
under the Listing Rules.

The Board delegates the day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Company and implementation of the
strategies and policies set by the Board to the management under
the leadership of the managing director.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The roles of the chairman of the Board and managing Director
of the Company are segregated and discharged by different
individuals.

As the chairman of the Board, Mr. Chen Lang is responsible for
the leadership and effective running of the Board, and ensuring
all significant and key issues are discussed and where required,
resolved by the Board in a timely manner.

As the managing director of the Company, Mr. Qing Lijun is
delegated with the authority and responsibility to manage the
businesses of the Company in all aspects effectively, implement
major strategies, make day-to-day decision and coordinate overall
business operation and regularly report to the Board.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
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Composition of the Board
The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and
experience necessary for independent decision making and
fulfilling its business needs.

At present, the Board comprises eight Directors, namely, Mr. Chen
Lang as a non-executive Director and the chairman of the Board,
Mr. Qing Lijun as an executive Director and the managing Director,
Mr. Shen Peng as an executive Director, Mr. Chen Zhigang and
Ms. Xiao Jianping as non-executive Directors, and Mr. Stephen
Edward Clark, Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred and Mr. Mok Wai Bun,
Ben as independent non-executive Directors.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships with each other. The composition
of the Board has satisfied the requirements under Rules 3.10(1)
and (2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules for the Board to have at
least three independent non-executive directors which represents
more than one-third of the Board, and at least one of them has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Company has received from
each independent non-executive director an annual confirmation
of his independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has
assessed their independence and considered that all independent
non-executive directors are independent based on the independent
criteria in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules set
out in the confirmation letter, the non-involvement of independent
non-executive directors in the daily operation and management
of the Group and the absence of any relationship which would
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement.

At as the date of this report, one out of eight members of the
Board is a woman. The educational background of the directors’
cover finance, accounting, business management, economics,
chemistry, engineering, sociology, history and history of art. The
Company considers that the current composition of the Board
has the characteristics of diversity, whether from perspectives of
gender, professional background and skills.

The biographies of the Board members are set out in “Directors
and Senior Management Profile” on pages 32 to 43 of this
annual report. To the best knowledge of the Board, none of the
Directors are involved in any relationship as defined in Appendix
16 to the Listing Rules. The Company has also maintained on
its website (www.chinafoodsltd.com) (the “Company’s Website”)
and the HKExnews website of Hong Kong Exchange and Clearing
Limited (the “HKEx") (www.hkexnews.hk) (the “HKEx's Website")
an updated list of its Directors identifying their roles and functions.
Composition of the Board, by category of directors, is explicitly
identified in all the Company’s corporate communications.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (available on the
Company’s Website) in August 2013 setting out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board. The Board believes that a diversity
of perspectives can be achieved through consideration of a
number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, work and professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. All appointment of
the members of the Board will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board. The ultimate
decision will be based on merits of the candidates and the
contribution they will bring to the Board. The Company recognises
and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance
the quality of its performance. The nomination committee has
primary responsibility for identifying and nominating, for approval
by the Board, suitably qualified candidates to become members of
the Board and, in carrying out this responsibility, will give adequate
consideration to the board diversity policy.

The Board will from time to time review the board diversity policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

Nomination, Appointment and Election/Re-Election of
Directors

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (available on
the Company’s Website) in November 2018 which provides a
framework and sets standards to assist the nomination committee
in identifying and nominating suitable candidates for the Board’s
consideration and to ensure that the Board members has
a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business.

Pursuant to bye-law 111 of the bye-laws of the Company (the
“Bye-laws”), each director (including those appointed for specific
terms) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and the retiring Directors shall be eligible
for re-election. Director who is appointed either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an additional director to the Board shall hold
office until the first general meeting of the Company after his/her
appointment and be subject to election at such meeting pursuant
to bye-law 94 of the Bye-laws. Pursuant to the CG Code, any
further re-appointment of an independent non-executive director,
who has served the Board for more than nine years, will be
subject to separate resolution to be approved by the shareholders.
Directors who shall retire from office at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company are set out on page 113 of this
annual report.
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All Directors (including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors) were appointed for specific terms of three
years and all existing Directors have signed formal appointment
letters with the Company with respect to their directorship with
the Company.

Board Meeting and General Meeting

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a year
at approximately quarterly intervals with additional Board meetings
as and when required.

Notices for regular Board meetings or Board committee meetings
are sent to Directors or Board committee members at least
fourteen (14) days prior to such meetings, Directors or Board
committee members were invited to include any matters which
they thought appropriate in the agenda. For ad hoc meetings,
shorter notice may be given.

The company secretary assists the chairman of the Board or other
committees of the Board in preparing the agenda for meetings
and ensures that all relevant rules and regulations for meeting
proceedings are followed. Board papers were sent to the Directors
at least three (3) days before the intended dates of Board meetings
or Board committee meetings (or other agreed period).

It is the practice of the Company to record in sufficient detail of
matters considered and decisions reached, including concerns
raised or dissenting views expressed, by the Board and Board
committees. Draft and final versions of minutes of Board meetings
and/or Board committee meetings are sent to Directors or
committee members (as the case may be) for their comment and
records respectively, in both cases within a reasonable time after
the meetings. The decision of the Board can be made by written
resolutions.

All minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings are
kept by the company secretary and are available to all Directors
for inspection. Every Board member has unrestricted access to
the advice and services of the company secretary to enable them
to discharge their duties effectively, and has the liberty to seek
external professional advice if so required. The cost of procuring
these professional services will be borne by the Company.
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In case a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board
has determined to be material, such matter will be discussed
through an actual meeting and will not be dealt with by written
resolutions. Independent non-executive Directors with no conflict
of interest will be present at such meetings.

Directors play active role in the Company’s meetings through
contribution of their opinions and active participating in discussion.
During the year, other than resolutions passed by all the Directors
in writing, a total of five Board meetings, an annual general

HMEIZRRIEFTEESTEHRTERELZ
FEPIFEEFERR/ERNNEFTR
FHRFESREREZ Ltm L TN
EEAZETARE HEABEFEPLE
NEBRZBUFATEETHELREZ
E2EgE -

EFRFRBREZERERLENR &
ARRNEHLLEEEENAG - AFE
N BRE2EESFEBENEE AR

INHBITAREESSH Mﬁ%%ﬁ

meeting at which the external auditor attended, and a special
general meeting were held and the attendance of such meetings
by each Director is set out below. In the following table, the figures
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in brackets means the total number of meetings held during each = 5 e
Director’s tenure throughout the year: 2
Annual Special
Board General General
Meetings Meeting Meeting
(Note 4) (Note 5)
EEg [ &R
Name of Director EEHE =41 BAEXEg HRIKE
(K1 7t4) (K7 7%5)
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Qing Lijun (Note 1) B EEAE (K1) 5/(5) 0/(1) 0/(1)
Mr. Shen Peng R kA 5/(5) 0/(1) o/1)
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Chen Lang (Chairman) BREASE & (£ /%) 4/(5) 0/(1) 0/(1)
Mr. Chen Zhigang (Note 2) BRI 5 & (KT 72 2) 2/(2) N/AT i A /(1)
Ms. Xiao Jianping Bt 5/(5) 0/(1) 0/(1)
Mr. Qin Yelong (Note 3) B E (W iE3) 3/(3) 0/(1) N/AZ i
Independent Non-executive Directors BN FHITESE
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark ML ERAE 5/(5) 0/(1) 1/(1)
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred TRBLE 5/(5) 1/(1) 1/(1)
Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben RAEwEE 5/(5) 0/(1) 1/(1)
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Notes:

1. Mr. Qing Lijun was appointed as an executive Director with effect
from 1 January 2020.

2. Mr. Chen Zhigang was appointed as a non-executive Director with
effect from 12 October 2020.

3. Mr. Qin Yelong resigned as a non-executive Director with effect
from 12 October 2020.

4. The annual general meeting of the Company was held on 2 June
2020, and more details are set out in the circular of the Company
dated 24 April 2020 and the poll results announcement of the
Company dated 2 June 2020.

B. The special general meeting of the Company was held on 17
December 2020, and more details are set out in the circular
of the Company dated 1 December 2020 and the poll results
announcement of the Company dated 17 December 2020.

Continuous Professional Development

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, should keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities as directors and of the business and activities of
the Group. Each newly appointed Director would receive from the
chairman of the Company or executive Directors’ briefings on the
operations and business of the Group and an induction package to
ensure that he has a proper understanding on his responsibilities
under the relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. From time to time, the company secretary disseminates
information on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements to the Directors
to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices. The Company will organise
seminars on specific topics of significance or interest for
Directors and management staff and sponsors Directors to attend
professional development seminars or other programmes where
necessary.

et -

1. BIYEEALEZTANITES 52020
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2. RERMEEREZERIERTES B
2020 10A12H B &£ R ©

3. BERELERTAIENITESE 52020
FI10F12B A -

4. RABZBEBEFAEER2020F6A2
BE1T FBEHNAQR A A20204F
AR248 8K - A RARFHEA2020
FOAAMERRRERAE -

5. RAE 2 BREFRIKEER2020F12 A
178817 - FRBHR AR A HE A2020
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2020F12A17AMBERIERNE -
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According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary
of training received by the Directors during the year is set out
below:

REFRUNLE EFNAFEARNMR
BEXBEIZBEFHINOT:

Attending briefings,
seminars, conference
and/or reading
materials relevant to
the director’s duties
and responsibilities

SHRM®RE - BT -

AEEER
MEREERER
Name of Director EEns BEEBENER
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Qing Lijun BERAE
(was appointed on 1 January 2020) (R2020F1 1B #EZT) v
Mr. Shen Peng LR v
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Chen Lang (Chairman) BREA S & (F/7) v
Mr. Chen Zhigang PR A M5 A
(was appointed on 12 October 2020) (FR2020F10812B E £ (1) v
Ms. Xiao Jianping HEEZt
Mr. Qin Yelong EXELELE
(resigned on 12 October 2020) (7A2020F 108128 B {T) v
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark ML EhAE v
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred =RBEE v
Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben RE@Ewks v

Directors’ Insurance
During the year, the Company arranged appropriate insurance for
Directors and officers of the Group.

Corporate Governance Function

As regards the functions of corporate governance, the Board is
responsible for developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance, reviewing and monitoring
the training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
corporate governance report contained in the annual report of the
Company.
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During the year, the Board has performed the corporate functions
by reviewing the Company’s Corporate Governance practices.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the executive
committee, the audit committee, the remuneration committee and
the nomination committee, to oversee corresponding aspects of
the Company’s affairs. All committees of Board have defined terms
of reference.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Currently, the executive committee consists of two executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Qing Lijun who was the chairman of the
executive committee, and Mr. Shen Peng.

The terms of reference of the executive committee are available
on the Company’s Website. The primary responsibility of the
executive committee is to deal with and supervise the day-to-day
business operations, management and administration of the
Group. There are no minimum meeting requirements and the
executive committee shall meet as and when necessary for proper
discharge of its duties.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Currently, the remuneration committee consists of three members,
including two independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Mok Wai Bun, Ben who is the chairman of this committee, and
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark, and a non-executive Director and the
chairman of the Board, namely, Mr. Chen Lang.

The terms of the remuneration committee are available on the
Company’s Website and the HKEx's Website. The duties of the
remuneration committee are mainly to make recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and structure for
all Directors and senior management and make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment, and the remuneration packages of individual non-
executive Directors.

REERN  EFECEBMATAR
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During the year, other than resolutions passed by all members
of the remuneration committee in writing, two meetings of the
remuneration committee were held and the attendance of the
meeting by each committee member is set out below. In the
following table, the figures in brackets means the total number of
meetings held during each member’s tenure throughout the year:

BB EERZEN  FHEEERITTH
REFH > BUREEXNEBZHFEBRHET
M- IFRME - BRABFIERAF
ERAEKEHETHREBTNSH AR

Attendance/Number

of Meetings

Name of Committee Member ZEEREHSR HE EBERE
Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben (Chairman) REETE(FE) 2/(2)
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark M EEAE 2/(2)
Mr. Chen Lang PR B ot A& 2/(2)

The following is a summary of the work performed by the
remuneration committee during the year:

° reviewed the remuneration policy and structure for Directors
and senior management;

° reviewed the remunerations of all Directors and senior
management in 2020;

o reviewed the performance evaluation of all executive
Directors and senior management and made a
recommendation to the Board on bonuses for the year
2019; and

° reviewed letters of appointment of an executive Director, a
non-executive Director and two independent non-executive
directors who were newly appointed/re-appointed and
made recommendations to the Board on their remuneration
packages, respectively.

Details of the remuneration of the Company’s directors for the
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the note 12 to the
financial statements of this annual report.
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Details of the emoluments paid to the senior management
(excluding executive Directors of the Company) in year 2020 by
bands are as follows :
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R2020F X FTRRERAB(TRER
REATER)NFMHIRFRFINWT

Number of
Individuals
Emolument Band & R AE
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 A R #1,000,001F A R#1,500,000 1
RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000 A R #1,500,001F A R #2 000,000
RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000 A R#2,000,001= A R#2,500,000 1

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Currently, the nomination committee consists of three members,
including a non-executive Director and the chairman of the Board,
namely Mr. Chen Lang, who is the chairman of the nomination
committee and two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred and Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben.

The terms of reference of the nomination committee are available
on the Company’s Website and the HKEx's Website. The duties of
the nomination committee are mainly to review the structure, size
and composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience and
length of service) of the Board and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy; identify suitable candidates for appointment as
directors; make recommendations to the Board on appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors;
and assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and review whether non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) are spending enough time
to fulfill their duties annually.

In reviewing the Board composition, the nomination committee
would take into account various aspects set out in the board
diversity policy.

In recommending candidates for appointment to the Board, the
nomination committee would consider candidates on merit against
objective criteria and with regards to the benefits of the diversity
of the Board and made reference to the nominate policy of the
Company.
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During the year, other than resolutions passed by all members
of the nomination committee in writing, three meetings of the
nomination committee were held and the attendance by each
committee member is set out below. In the following table, the
figures in brackets means the total number of meetings held
during each member’s tenure throughout the year:

AEER BRTHEIHREZEENER
FBRBNEERZN  RBREGRTT
—REFE BUREEKBZHFEBRH
FIEATN - BLRERME » BRABFRERA
FEAEREETHRBITHSHAN:

Attendance/Number

of Meetings

Name of Committee Member ZEEREHSR HE EBERE
Mr. Chen Lang (Chairman) BREA S & (F/7) 3/(3)
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred TP E 2/(3)
Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben EEmEaE 3/(3)

The following is a summary of the work performed by the
nomination committee during the year:

° reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and length of service) of the
Board;

° reviewed the time required from non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) and
assessed whether they are spending enough time to fulfill
their duties;

o assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

o made recommendations to the Board on the appointment
of a non-executive Director, and the re-appointments of
an executive Director and two Independent non-executive
directors;

o made recommendations to the Board on the election of
an executive Director, and re-election of a non-executive
Director and two independent non-executive Directors at the
2020 annual general meeting; and

° made recommendation to the Board on the election of a
non-executive Director at the special general meeting of the
Company which held on 17 December 2020.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Currently, the audit committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Stephen Edward Clark, who is
the chairman of the audit committee, Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred
and Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben.

The terms of reference of the audit committee are available on
the Company’'s Website and the HKEx's Website. The duties of
the audit committee are mainly to assist the Board to ensure
objectivity and credibility of financial reporting, to review financial
controls, internal controls and risk management systems and to
consider any findings of major investigations on risk management
and internal control matters and response from the management.
The audit committee’s responsibilities also include making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and
any questions of its resignation or dismissal. The audit committee
is further authorised by the Board to investigate any activity
within its terms of reference, and may make recommendations
to the Board to take appropriate actions emanating from such
investigations.

Besides having discussed with the external auditor the nature
and scope of the audit and reporting obligations before the
commencement of the audit for the year, the audit committee held
two meetings during the year. The attendance of the meetings by
each committee member is set out below. In the following table,
the figures in brackets means the total number of meetings held
during each member’s tenure throughout the year:

BERERE

ERZESHI A - ABUFNITESH
FX B ¥E AT 3L 1= 55 A& (Mr. Stephen Edward
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Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred R okt 2/(2)

Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben BE L 2/(2)
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The following is a summary of the work performed by the audit
committee during the year:

o reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
approval of the 2019 annual results announcement, the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2019, 2020 interim results announcement,
and the unaudited interim financial statements for the six
months ended 30 June 2020;

o reviewed matters relating to the Company’s financial and
accounting policies and practices;

° reviewed external auditor’'s management letter in respect of
the financial year ended 31 December 2019;

° reviewed continuing connected transactions of the Group
for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 and for the
six months ended 30 June 2020;

° reviewed and assessed the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and work plan
for the year 2020;

° made recommendations to the Board matters where
improvement on financial function was needed;

o reviewed the internal audit results and the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
twice;

° reviewed and approved the internal audit plan for the year
2020; and

° made recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment

of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as external auditor of the
Company for the year 2020.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, the fees paid or to be payable to the Company’s
external auditor are set out below:

BB AT B =

AEER > AAREOINEZEEC
RO EREINAT

Fees paid/payable

Services rendered i R e ERNER

RMB’'000

ARETFTT

Annual audit services FEETRG 1,950

Other assurance services* EMERRSE 800

Total &5 2,750
* Such services included, among others, results announcement * HZERGETBREEELNEERN  BE

review, compliance review relating to continuing connected
transactions.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors, which is responsible for overseeing the preparation
of annual financial statements, receive monthly management
accounts and updates on the Group’s performance and financial
position and prospects prepared by management of the Company
on a regular basis. Management of the Company was required
to provide a detailed report(s) and explanation to enable the
Board to make an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put forward for its approval. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Board adopted appropriate accounting policies consistently, made
prudent and reasonable judgements and estimates. The Board
was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the consolidated financial statements of the
Company on a going-concern basis.

The Board is committed to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Group’s affairs to its
shareholders and the public in a timely manner. The annual and
interim results of the Company are published in accordance with
the disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules.
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The reporting responsibilities of the Directors and the external
auditor are further set out in the “Independent Auditor's Report”
of this annual report. For other financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules are disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

The Company is committed to ensuring compliance with
regulatory requirements under the Listing Rules, applicable laws
and regulations in handling connected transactions. Accordingly,
the Company implemented various internal control mechanisms
to capture and monitor connected transactions to ensure that
connected transactions are conducted under normal commercial
terms or on terms that are fair and reasonable and properly
disclosed and (if necessary) approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company in accordance with the Listing
Rules. Connected persons will be required to abstain from voting
in general meetings which considering the relevant connected
transactions. Details of the connected transactions of the Company
during the year are set out in the “Report of the Directors” of this
annual report.

Risk Management and Internal Control
The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining
comprehensive and effective risk management and internal control
systems, and for reviewing the effectiveness of these systems
through the audit committee of the Board.

Sound risk management and internal control systems are based
on the Company’s good business ethics and culture, the quality
and capabilities of its employees, the direction of the Board, and
also the efficiency and capabilities of management.

Management of the Company, under the Board supervision, is
responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems.

The Group has established a sound and comprehensive risk
management and internal control system, formed a systematic
and effective system on segregation of duty and three lines of
defense in risk management, with each of the business units as
the first line of defense; the business supervision and inspection
departments at all levels as the second line of defense; and
internal audit department and supervision department as the third
line of defense.

The Group has established its risk management and internal
control systems based on the COSO (Committee of Sponsoring
Organisation of the Treadway Commission) risk management
framework.
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The Group’s risk management covers the Company’s headquarters
and its subsidiaries, covering various risks faced in operation and
management, and focusing on and continuously monitor the key
risks.

According to the risk management strategy, the Group conducts
a comprehensive risk assessment every two years in combination
with the Group’s strategic and business objectives and changes
in the market environment. Identify major risks that adversely
affect the achievement of strategic objectives and prioritise the
identified risks based on a set of standard criteria and formulate
a risk mitigation plan to monitor the risks to an acceptable level.

Since a comprehensive risk assessment has been conducted
in 2019, the Group did not conduct a comprehensive risk
assessment in 2020 but instead focused on continuous
supervision and follow-up of risk control measures identified in
the previous stage and addressing new emerging risks brought by
the epidemic.

All bottling plants and departments had implemented risk
management measures in a serious and proactive manner, and
relevant major risks have been effectively controlled. There has
been no material risk event occurred within the Group in 2020.

The Group’s monitoring work usually consists of:

Analysis and review: through conducting annual budget and
strategic plan reviews and other forms to set the Company’s
development goals, and determine business plans and
development strategies. Senior management holds regular general
managers meetings and operation analysis meetings to discuss
major strategies, policy and overall issues of the Company. Each
affiliated company holds regular internal management meetings
to analyze budget execution, sales management, production
management and risk control matters.

Work management: reports of work are reviewed by management
personnel who are responsible for the relevant functions.

Physical monitoring: ensuring the safety of equipment, inventory
and other assets, and conducting regular inspections.

Analysis of operational indicators: conducting analysis of
operational and financial data on regular basis to ensure early
identification of existing problems, so that any necessary
rectification works can be done in a timely manner.
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Separation of duties: responsibilities of employees are divided
according to the principle of separation of duties, so that the
checks and balances are strengthened and the probability and
risk of errors are reduced.

The Group has established effective systems and procedures
to ensure that employees are able to identify, document and
report on operational, financial and compliance information while
performing their duties.

The Group has established an independent internal audit
department and a supervision department which report directly to
the senior management and the audit committee of the Company.

In 2020, the internal audit department completed the annual audit
plan and audit requirements approved by the management and
the audit committee. Based on risk assessments and the needs of
the management, the internal audit department conducted internal
control audits and special audits in the important risk areas of
the Group. It has focused on the rectification of problems found
during the audit, and have effectively promoted management
improvements and reduced operating risks.

The internal audit department assists the audit committee to
assess the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems and attends meetings of the audit
committee at least twice a year, and reports on the work it has
undertaken and its principal audit findings.

The Group has also designed and formulated appropriate policies
and control measures to safeguard its assets against unauthorized
use and disposition, and to ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules and regulations. The Company maintains reliable
accounting records, and financial information in accordance with
the relevant accounting standards and reporting requirements,
and properly identifies and manages risks that may affect the
performance of the Company.

Such systems and internal controls are designed to manage, rather
than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.
They can only provide reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss.
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In respect of 2020, the Board has reviewed, through the audit
committee, the work of the internal audit department, and its audit
findings in relation to the risk management and internal control
systems (including financial, operational and compliance controls),
and considers the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group are effective and adequate, and that the Company
had complied with the Code Provision on risk management
and internal control. The qualifications and experience of the
staff of the Group’s accounting, financial reporting and internal
audit functions, and the training programmes, budgets and the
resources available to these functions have been reviewed and
are considered to be adequate.

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has formulated the “Inside Information Disclosure
Policies and Guidelines of China Foods Limited”, which has
set out clearly the procedures for the identification, report and
disclosure of inside information to ensure that the Company is
able to disclose inside information properly on a timely, fair and
lawful manner, and keep confidential before such information is
approved appropriately, so as to enhance the market transparency
and provide better protection for shareholders and investors.

WHISTLE-BLOWING POLICY

The Group formulated a whistle-blowing policy to ensure
inappropriate business practices and conducts are properly
reported and handled. The discipline supervision department
provides an email address and telephone number for
whistle-blowing and formulated procedures for handling
whistle-blowing matters, and the whistleblower protection system.
For litigation cases, they are recorded in detail, tracked and
monitored, and report significant accusations and the conclusions
at a regular meeting to the audit committee.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Liu Kit Yee, Linda has been the company secretary of the
Company since 2004. During the year, Ms. Liu undertook not less
than 15 hours of the relevant professional training to update her
skills and knowledge.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of Special General Meetings on Requisition by
Shareholders

Pursuant to the Bye-law 68 and section 74 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda, shareholders shall have a right to request
the Board to convene a special general meeting of the Company
(“SGM”). Shareholders holding in aggregate of not less than
one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of the Company may send
a written requisition to the Board to request for convening a SGM.

The written requisition, duly signed by the requisitionists, may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or
more requisitionists, must state the purposes of the meeting and
must be deposited at the registered office of the Company. The
Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one (21) days from the date
of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM,
the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene
a SGM, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three (3) months from the said date.

The SGM convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which SGMs
are to be convened by Directors.

Procedures for Making Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal
(which may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at
a general meeting of the Company:

(@) any member(s) representing not less than one-twentieth
(5%) of the total voting rights of all the members of the

Company; or

(b)  not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.
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The requisition specifying the proposal desired to be put forward
at the general meeting, duly signed by the requisitionists, may
consist of several documents in like from each signed by one or
more requisitionists, must be deposited at the registered office of
the Company, together with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s expenses in giving effect thereto, not less than
six weeks before the general meeting (in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution) or not less than one week
before the general meeting (in case of any other requisition). The
Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangement once a valid requisition is received.

Procedures for Director’'s Nomination and Election by
Shareholders

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
director for election as a director at a general meeting, the
shareholder should lodge at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong at 33/F.,, COFCO Tower, 262 Gloucester Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong, (a) a written notice signed by such
shareholder (other than the proposed person) duly qualified to
attend and vote at the meeting of his/her intention to propose
such person for election; and (b) a written notice by the proposed
person indicating his/her willingness to be elected together with
the personal information of the proposed person as required by
Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and consent of publication of
his/her personal information.

The period during which the aforesaid notice may be given
shall be seven days (or such other period as determined and
announced by the Board). Such period will commence on the day
after the dispatch of the notice of general meeting and end no
later than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.
The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, once valid notice is received.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company attaches great importance to communicate with
shareholders, both individual and institutional, and a shareholders
communication policy was adopted by the Company on 30 March
2012 to ensure the shareholders and potential investors are
provided with the Company’s information in a timely and effective
manner.
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The means to communicate with the shareholders and the
investment community used by the Company including the
following:

i corporate communications such as annual reports, interim
reports and circulars are made available to shareholders
in both printed form and electronic means through the
Company’s Website and the HKEx's Website;

ii. corporate announcements are published on the Company’s
Website and the HKEx's Website;

iii.  corporate information is made available on the website of
the Company’s Website;

iv.  annual and special general meetings provide a forum for the
shareholders to make comments and exchange views with
the Directors and management executives; and

V. Tricor Progressive Limited, the branch share registrar and
transfer office of the Company in Hong Kong serves the
shareholders in respect of share registration, dividend
payment and related matters.

Shareholders may at any time send their written enquiries and
concerns to the Company, either by post or facsimiles, together
with his/her contact details, such as postal address, email address
or fax number, via the company secretary whose contact details
are as follows:

The Company Secretary
China Foods Limited

33/F., COFCO Tower

262 Gloucester Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2833 0388
Fax: (852) 2833 0380

Constitutional Documents

There was no change to the Company’s memorandum of
association and bye-laws during the year. A copy of the latest
consolidated version of the memorandum of association and
bye-laws is available on the Company’s Website and the HKEX's
Website.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

We have always believed that maintaining a high standard,
effective and multi-channel communication system and ensuring
the transparency and timeliness of information disclosure enables
investors to accurately understand the latest developments of
the Group. It also helps to enhance investors’ confidence and
shareholders’ value.

Our strategic objectives of investor relations function have been
clearly defined as follows:

1) to raise the profile of the Company as a leading participant
in the industry, that is in line with our strategic positioning
within the group of COFCO Corporation;

2) to build a long-term and trusting shareholder base;

3) to enhance the knowledge of our investors about the
Company; and

4) to understand the key concerns of the investment
community and provide timely feedback to our management,
and to make constant improvement based on the
constructive feedback.

Interactions between the Company and the investor community:

We believe effective communication and fair information disclosure
builds investor confidence, and also facilitates constructive
feedbacks for continuous improvement.

In 2020, apart from disclosing transparent and fair financial and
operational information in annual and interim reports and having
direct communicate with shareholders at annual and special
general meetings, we have also effectively bridging the Company
and the investment community through:

° Interactive communications between our management and
investors/analysts directly at post-results briefings, investor
annual conferences/seminar and regular investor meetings;
and

° Collection of market feedback, such as research reports and
market views, for the review of our management.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is pleased to
present its report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
(the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “year”),
which were approved by the Board on 23 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Currently, the Company through its subsidiaries operates beverage
business. There were no changes in the nature of the Group’s
principle activities during the year under review.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review of the Group and a discussion and analysis of
the Group’s business performance of the year, a description of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars
of important events affecting the Group that have occurred
since the end of the financial year, as well as the Group’s future
business outlook can be found in the sections headed “Chairman
Statement”, “Statement from Managing Director”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and “Notes to Financial Statements” in
this report. Such review and discussion form parts of this report
of the Directors.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s main operations are carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries operating in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)
while the Company itself is incorporated in Bermuda with its
shares listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The Group’s operations are regulated by the applicable laws and
regulations of Bermuda, Hong Kong and PRC. For the year ended
31 December 2020 and up to the date of this report, the Board
was not aware of any non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Company.

Please refer to the discussions in this report, the “Corporate
Governance Report” and the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” for further details of the Group’s compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In view of the Board, the Company has applied the principles and
complied with all the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) throughout the year. Details of the Company’s
work in corporate governance during the year are disclosed in the
“Corporate Governance Report”.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance
is contained in the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report”.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group as of that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 134 to
220.

There was no interim dividend declared for the six months ended
30 June 2020 (30 June 2019: NIL).

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
RMBO0.089 (equivalent to HK10.6 cents) (31 December 2019:
HK4.8 cents) per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December
2020, subject to the approval obtained at the annual general
meeting to be held on Tuesday, 1 June 2021. The proposed
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 will be
distributed on or around Friday, 2 July 2021 to shareholders of
the Company whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on Friday, 11 June 2021. As disclosed in the
Company’s announcement made on 9 June 2013, the Company
received the approvals of State Administration of Taxation of the
People’s Republic of China which confirmed that (i) the Company
is regarded as a Chinese resident enterprise; and (ii) relevant
enterprise income tax policies shall be applicable to the Company
starting from 1 January 2013. Thus, the Company will withhold
10% enterprise income tax when it distributes the final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to non-resident enterprise
shareholders of the Company.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the shareholders’ eligibility to attend and vote at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 27 May 2021 to
Tuesday, 1 June 2021, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for
attending and voting at the forthcoming annual general meeting,
all transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Progressive Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday,
26 May 2021.

For determining the shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed
final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Thursday, 10 June 2021 to Friday, 11 June 2021,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. The ex-dividend date will be Tuesday, 8 June 2021.
In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged for registration with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Progressive
Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 9 June
2021.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the published audited consolidated financial
statements, is set out on page 221 of this annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopted a dividend policy in November 2018.
Pursuant to the dividend policy, the Company may declare and
distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company to allow
shareholders to share the Company’s profits and for the Company
to retain adequate reserves for future growth.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to
the absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final
dividend will be subject to the approval of the shareholders of
the Company. In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall
also take into account, inter alia, the Group’s financial results,
the overall financial position of the Group, the relevant financial
covenants of the Group, liquidity position and capital requirement
of the Group, surplus received from the Company’s subsidiaries
and any other factors that the Board deem appropriate. The
Company’s ability to pay dividends is also subject to the
requirements of the Listing Rules and all relevant applicable
laws, rules and regulations in the Bermuda, Hong Kong and
the Company’s memorandum and association and bye-laws (the
“Bye-laws”).

The Board will continually review the dividend policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend
and/or modify the dividend policy at any time, and the dividend
policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by
the Company that dividends will be paid in any particular amount
and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at
any time or from time to time.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the Company’s authorised or issued
share capital during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company and its subsidiaries have no share option scheme.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws
or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 42 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution, calculated in accordance with the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to approximately
RMB2,731,035,000, of which RMB248,953,000 has been
proposed as a final dividend for the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movement in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the year are set out in note 16
to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, less than 6.3% of the Group’s total sales were
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers. Approximately
76% of the Group’s total purchases were attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers, with the largest supplier accounting
for approximately 34%.

Apart from the Company’s ultimate controlling shareholder, COFCO
Corporation (“COFCQ”), which is one of the Group’s five largest
suppliers, none of the directors of the Company (“Director(s)”)
or any of their close associates or any shareholders (which, to
the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
other four largest suppliers or the five largest customers of the
Group.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Current Board Members

Executive Directors:
Mr. Qing Lijun (appointed on 1 January 2020)
Mr. Shen Peng

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Lang (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Zhigang (appointed on 12 October 2020)
Ms. Xiao Jianping

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark

Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred

Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben

Ex-Directors
Mr. Qin Yelong (resigned on 12 October 2020)

All Directors including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors are appointed with specific terms.

Each Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years as required by bye-law 111(A) of the
Bye-laws. Accordingly, Mr. Shen Peng and Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent pursuant to the criteria set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and that a confirmation of independence
has been received from each of them.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

Biographical details of the Company’s Directors and Senior
Management are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management
Profile” on pages 32 to 43 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any transactions, arrangements and contract of significance to
the Group's business to which the Company, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Board is authorised by the shareholders to fix the directors’
remuneration at general meetings. The Directors’ emoluments
are determined by the Board based on the recommendation by
the remuneration committee of the Board with reference to their
job complexity, workload and responsibilities, and the Company’s
remuneration policy. Details of the Directors’ emoluments for the
year are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified by the Company out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur or
about the execution and discharge of his/her duties or in relation
thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers
of the Company during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year.
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CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, WARRANTS, OPTIONS
OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

There is no conversion or subscription rights under any convertible
securities, warrants or options or similar rights issued or granted
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year. In addition, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company, or existed during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company has any interest or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) which will have to be notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which any Director is
deemed or taken to be under such provisions of the SFO), or which
are required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register to be kept by the Company or which are required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies contained in the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER FERRRHEMATREROR
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN MERGOGzEZER AR

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of
substantial shareholders in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as notified to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO; or as recorded in the register of interests of
the Company required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO,
were as follows:

Aggregate long positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company

202012 A31H @ IRIEFH K B EIED)
EXVEPE2 R E3DEMAMEARQT : iR
BEELN S KN F33615 LN AR
FiEE S EEMA - TERERERD
AR REEROCETEARIT

REQXAROREBARD 2 FEAH

Number of shares held (Note 1)

ik ik Gl

Directly Through Approximate

heneficially controlled percentage of

Name of substantial shareholder owned corporations Total issued shares

HERTRAOMB

TERRER EEERZES EBRZELE By BMABDL

(Note 2)

(B zt2)

China Foods (Holdings) Limited 2,072,688,331 - 2,072,688,331 74.10%

FEERUER)ERAT

COFCO (Hong Kong) Limited - 2,072,688,331 2,072,688,331 74.10%
HREEE(BEB)BRAF (Note 3)
(H7t3)

COFCO - 2,072,688,331 2,072,688,331 74.10%
g (Note 4)
(K #t4)
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Notes:

Long positions in the shares of the Company, other than equity
derivatives such as share options, warrants or convertible bonds.

The percentages were calculated based on the total number of
shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2020, i.e.
2,797,223,396 shares.

COFCO (Hong Kong) Limited (“COFCO (HK)") was deemed to be
interested in 2,072,688,331 shares held by China Foods (Holdings)
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of COFCO (HK).

COFCO was deemed to be interested in 2,072,688,331 shares
held by China Foods (Holdings) Limited and COFCO (HK), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of COFCO.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2020, the Directors
were not aware of any other persons who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year, the Group conducted the following transactions
with certain connected persons of the Company including
COFCO, the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company, and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “COFCO Group”) and COFCO’s
associates. These transactions constituted connected transaction
or continuing continued transactions and are subject to reporting
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

I.  CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1.  ACQUISITION OF TRADEMARKS

On 26 November 2020, COFCO Beverages Limited
(“COFCO Beverages”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into (i) a trademark
assignment agreement (the “Yuehuo (1%)&) Trademark
Assignment Agreement”) with COFCO WOMAI.COM
Investment Limited (“COFCO WOMAI.COM"), an
associate of COFCO. Pursuant to the Yuehuo (1% /&)
Trademark Assignment Agreement, COFCO Beverages
agreed to acquire and COFCO WOMAI.COM agreed to
transfer eighty-four Yuehuo (1% )&)-related registered
trademarks in the PRC owned by COFCO WOMAI.
COM for food and beverage goods category at a
cash consideration of RMBI11,894,300 (equivalent
to approximately HK$14,010,601), which will be
satisfied by COFCO Beverages' internal resources;
and (ii) a trademark assignment agreement (the
“LOHAS Trademark Assignment Agreement”) with
COFCO Food Sales & Distribution Company Limited
(“COFCO Food Sales & Distribution”), a subsidiary
of COFCO. Pursuant to the LOHAS Trademark
Assignment Agreement, COFCO Beverages agreed to
acquire and COFCO Food Sales & Distribution agreed
to transfer ten LOHAS and Lehuo (%47%) registered
trademarks in the PRC owned by COFCO Food Sales
& Distribution for food and beverage goods category
at a cash consideration of RMB61,500 (equivalent
to approximately HK$72,442), which will be satisfied
by COFCO Beverages’' internal resources. Details of
the Yuehuo Trademark Assignment Agreement and
the LOHAS Trademark Assignment Agreement were
disclosed in an announcement of the Company dated
26 November 2020.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1.

2017 COFCO MUTUAL PROVISION AGREEMENT

On 10 November 2017, the Company and COFCO
entered into a mutual provision of products and
services agreement for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2018 and expiring
on 31 December 2020 (the “2017 COFCO Mutual
Provision Agreement”). Pursuant to the 2017
COFCO Mutual Provision Agreement, the COFCO
Group and COFCOQ’s associates shall supply certain
raw materials, packaging materials, products and
provide certain services to the Group while the
Group shall supply certain consumer products and
provide certain services to the COFCO Group and
COFCQ’s associates. Details of the 2017 COFCO
Mutual Provision Agreement were disclosed in an
announcement of the Company dated 10 November
2017 (the “2017 Announcement”) and a circular of
the Company dated 30 November 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, (a) the total
amount paid/payable by the Group to the COFCO
Group and COFCO’s associates for the purchase of
products, raw materials, packaging materials, services
and others was approximately RMBI1,119 million;
and (b) the total amount paid/payable by COFCO
Group and COFCO’s associates to the Group for the
purchase of consumer products, services and others
was approximately RMB4.52 million.

2017 CONCENTRATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT

On 10 November 2017, the Company and Coca-Cola
(Shanghai) Company Limited (“Coca-Cola (Shanghai)”)
entered into a concentrate purchase agreement for
a term of three years commencing from 1 January
2018 and expiring on 31 December 2020 (the “2017
Concentrate Purchase Agreement”). Pursuant to the
2017 Concentrate Purchase Agreement, members
of the Group with prior written approval from
Coca-Cola (Shanghai) shall purchase concentrates
from Coca-Cola (Shanghai) at prices determined
by Coca-Cola (Shanghai). Details of the 2017
Concentrate Purchase Agreement were disclosed in
the 2017 Announcement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total
amount paid/payable by the Group to Coca-Cola
(Shanghai) for the purchase of concentrates was
approximately RMB2,306 million.

2017 STILL BEVERAGES PURCHASE AGREEMENT

On 10 November 2017, the Company and Coca-
Cola Bottlers Management Service (Shanghai) Limited
(“Coca-Cola Bottlers (Shanghai)”) entered into a still
beverages purchase agreement for a term of three
years commencing from 1 January 2018 and expiring
on 31 December 2020 (the “2017 Still Beverages
Purchase Agreement”). Pursuant to the 2017 Still
Beverages Purchase Agreement, certain members
of the Group shall purchase still beverages from the
Coca-Cola Bottlers (Shanghai) for distribution and
resale within designated areas in the PRC. Details of
the 2017 Still Beverages Purchase Agreement were
disclosed in the 2017 Announcement.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total
amount paid/payable by the Group to the Coca-Cola
Bottlers (Shanghai) for the purchase of still beverages
was approximately RMB2,028 million.

2017 PACKAGING MATERIALS AND SERVICES
PROVISION AGREEMENT

On 10 November 2017, Tianjin Coca-Cola Beverage
Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin Bottler”), a deemed subsidiary of
the Company and Tianjin Shifa Zijiang Packaging
Co., Ltd. (“Zijiang”) entered into a provision of
packaging materials and services agreement for a
term of three years commencing from 1 January
2018 and expiring on 31 December 2020 (the
“2017 Packaging Materials and Services Provision
Agreement”). Pursuant to the 2017 Packaging
Materials and Services Provision Agreement, Zijiang
shall supply packaging materials and provide
conversion services and other services to Tianjin
Bottler. Details of the 2017 Packaging Materials and
Services Provision Agreement were disclosed in the
2017 Announcement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total
amount paid/payable by the Tianjin Bottler to
Zijiang for the purchase of packaging materials and
conversion services was approximately RMB21.83
million.

2018 FINANCIAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

On 14 December 2018, the Company, COFCO
Coca-Cola Supply Chain (Tianjin) Limited (9 #2 7]
FAT 4 ¢t g 3% (K OF) BBR 2 F]) (“Supply Chain
(Tianjin)"), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, and COFCO Finance Corporation
Limited (“COFCO Finance”) entered into a financial
services agreement for a term of three years from
14 December 2018 to 13 December 2021 (the
“2018 Financial Services Agreement”). Pursuant
to the 2018 Financial Services Agreement, COFCO
Finance shall provide Supply Chain (Tianjin) and the
Group depository services, fund transfer services,
entrustment loan services and the other financial
services. Details of the 2018 Financial Services
Agreement were disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 14 December 2018.

During the period from 1 January 2020 to 13
December 2020, the maximum daily deposit amount
(including the corresponding interest accrued thereon)
placed by the Group with COFCO Finance was
approximately RMB299.99 million and during the
period from 14 December 2020 to 31 December
2020, the maximum daily deposit amount (including
the corresponding interest accrued thereon) placed
by the Group with COFCO Finance was approximately
RMB390 million.
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2019 ENTRUSTED PROCESSING FRAMEWORK
AGREEMENT

On 2 December 2019, COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages
Limited (“COFCO Coca-Cola”) (a 65%-owned
subsidiary of the Company) entered into an entrusted
processing framework agreement with Coca-Cola
Bottlers Manufacturing Holdings Limited (“CCBMHL")
(The Coca-Cola Company and COFCO Coca-Cola
indirectly holds 38% and 21% interest, respectively),
a connected person of the Company, for a term of
three years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2022 (the “2019 Entrusted Processing Framework
Agreement”). Pursuant to the 2019 Entrusted
Processing Framework Agreement, relevant members
of COFCO Coca-Cola and its subsidiaries (collectively
“COFCO Coca-Cola Group”) shall provide processing
services to the relevant members of the CCBMHL and
its subsidiaries (collectively “CCBMHL Group”) based
on the business needs of the relevant members of
the CCBMHL Group. Details of the 2019 Entrusted
Processing Framework Agreement were disclosed an
announcement of the Company dated 2 December
2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total
amount paid/payable by the CCBMHL Group to
COFCO-Coca-Cola Group for the provision of
processing services was approximately RMB152
million.
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2020 COFCO MUTUAL PROVISION AGREEMENT

On 11 November 2020, the Company and COFCO
entered into a mutual provision of products and
services agreement for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2021 and expiring
on 31 December 2023 (the “2020 COFCO Mutual
Provision Agreement”). Pursuant to the 2020 COFCO
Mutual Provision Agreement, the COFCO Group
and COFCQ’s associates shall supply certain raw
materials, packaging materials, products and provide
certain services to the Group while the Group shall
supply certain consumer products and provide
certain services to the COFCO Group and COFCOQO’s
associates. The annual caps in respect of (a) the
purchase of products and services by the Group
from the COFCO Group and COFCQ’s associates
for the years ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and
2023 will be RMB3,374 million, RMB4,048.8 million
and RMB4,858.56 million, respectively; and (b) the
provision of products and services by the Group to
the COFCO Group and COFCOQ’s associates for the
years ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023
will be RMB200 million, RMB240 million and RMB288
million, respectively. Details of the 2020 COFCO
Mutual Provision Agreement were disclosed in an
announcement of the Company dated 11 November
2020 (the “2020 Announcement”) and a circular of
the Company dated 1 December 2020.

2020 CONCENTRATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT

On 11 November 2020, the Company and Coca-Cola
(Shanghai) entered into a concentrate purchase
agreement for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2021 and expiring on 31 December
2023 (the “2020 Concentrate Purchase Agreement”).
Pursuant to the 2020 Concentrate Purchase
Agreement, members of the Group with prior written
approval from Coca-Cola (Shanghai) shall purchase
concentrates from Coca Cola (Shanghai) at prices
determined by Coca-Cola (Shanghai). The annual caps
in respect of the purchase of the concentrates by
the Group for the years ending 31 December 2021,
2022 and 2023 will be RMB5,100 million, RMB5,600
million and RMB6,200 million, respectively. Details
of the 2020 Concentrate Purchase Agreement were
disclosed in the 2020 Announcement.
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10.

2020 STILL BEVERAGES PURCHASE AGREEMENT

On 11 November 2020, the Company and Coca-
Cola Bottlers (Shanghai) entered into a still beverages
purchase agreement for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2021 and expiring
on 31 December 2023 (the “2020 Still Beverages
Purchase Agreement”). Pursuant to the 2020 Still
Beverages Purchase Agreement, certain members
of the Group shall purchase still beverages from
the Coca-Cola Bottlers (Shanghai) for distribution
and resale within designated areas in the PRC. The
annual caps in respect of the purchase of the still
beverages by the Group for the years ending 31
December 2021, 2022 and 2023 will be RMB7,000
million, RMB8&,050 million and RMB9,300 million,
respectively. Details of the 2020 Still Beverages
Purchase Agreement were disclosed in the 2020
Announcement.

2020 PACKAGING MATERIALS AND SERVICES
PROVISION AGREEMENT

On 11 November 2020, Tianjin Bottler and Zijiang
entered into a provision of packaging materials
and services agreement for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2021 and expiring on
31 December 2023 (the “2020 Packaging Materials
and Services Provision Agreement”). Pursuant to the
2020 Packaging Materials and Services Provision
Agreement, Zijiang shall supply packaging materials
and provide conversion services and other services
to Tianjin Bottler. The annual caps in respect of the
packaging materials and related services supplied
by Zijiang for the years ending 31 December 2021,
2022 and 2023 will be RMB120 million, RMB144
million and RMB173 million, respectively. Details
of the 2020 Packaging Materials and Services
Provision Agreement were disclosed in the 2020
Announcement.
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ANNUAL REVIEW OF CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, was engaged
to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu have issued their unqualified letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions numbered 1 to 6 disclosed above by the
Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions numbered 1 to 6 for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and the report of the Company’s
auditors, and confirmed that these continuing connected
transactions were:

1. entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Company;

2. either on normal commercial terms or, on terms no less
favourable to the Company than terms available to or from
(as appropriate) independent third parties; and

3. in accordance with the terms of respective agreements
governing the transactions and are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, no Directors are considered to have interests in
any business which is likely to compete directly or indirectly with
that of the Group.

FEABEXZZFEEN

ARBZEREY AR T EITE
EEFREEZESIMASHELNEE
= 5 FE 3 IR 7% £ B 530005% (12 7] hiv) &Y
[ESLMBEER BN LEHAIINERE
Bl E2REBHAFAFIENEE
TR AR B B A 4 4R B KX 5 BN Az BUAD BK
HIRATEENRHEEEIZELER -
EHeHEMRO EFATERE LWARA
F14AS6IRIE A BRERT R M - RIFH
EY L AEEERBENEIZCRS &
FERXSNBIRMNMALE - ARRISHAR
12 BREM B 1 B X 2 B P -

BYFRNTEECERN LA E2020%F
12ABIHIEFEZF1IZ6ENFHEBER
GRARRRZBEMHRE - WHERZEH

. RARFRHEEBBERETET:

2. BRBEARGFET RBRTER
RTARAHKE(RIERNE) B
ME=ZTTZIETET R

3. BEORKERHZAERHEER
77 AFABABARARRA
TSRS DR

EENBERT 2 ER

AEREN - BEEERE AR TR E B
MERAEREEBRBI2EALE
A T2

TERMBRIE
£ 3§ 2020

125



120

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS £ £ & # &

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
to the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date
of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the Company’s corporate governance practices set
out in the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 85 to 107 of
this annual report.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to approximately RMB6 million.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in normal
course of business are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements. In relation to those related party transactions
that constituted connected transactions under the Listing
Rules, they have complied with the applicable requirements in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

REVIEW BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee has reviewed with the auditor of the Company
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 and has also discussed auditing, internal control and
financial reporting matters, including the review of the accounting
practices and principles adopted by the Group.
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AUDITORS 78 ]
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 M % B AN R

Deloitte

To the shareholders of China Foods Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Foods Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 134 to 220,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs”") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

Key audit matter

Impairment assessment of indefinite-lived franchise rights and goodwill
We have identified the impairment assessment ~ Our procedures in relation to impairment
of indefinite-lived franchise rights and goodwill ~ assessment of franchise rights and
of beverage cash-generating unit as a key  goodwill included:
audit matter due to the significance of the
balance and the significant management o Evaluating the methodology and
judgement and estimations involved in discount rate used in determining
impairment assessment. the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit by involving
our valuation specialists;

As disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements, as at 31 December e
2020, the Group had franchise rights
and goodwill of RMB1,659,475,000 and
RMB1,846,799,000 respectively. The

impairment assessment performed by

Evaluating the key estimations,
including the budgeted gross
margins, by comparing to the
Group’s historical information; and
management involves judgements and key e Performing sensitivity analysis
estimations as set out below: on the budgeted gross margins
and discount rate applied in the
impairment assessment.

o Budgeted gross margins; and

o Discount rate

Details of the key management judgement and

estimations are disclosed in notes 5 and 18
to the consolidated financial statements.

BREESSE

AREBATHESRBERMANEZEHE
RASHARGEVBERRNBARRE
ENER GELEETHREHHEEMHE R
RERBETEMALARBELINERTE
TREN BATHELEHEHRES
MER -

HEEtEd ZEEAEATRNMAEHN

BRA G FEERREERETE

HREBRNE AN
RO B S R
BEREEEHE R
it BECEISH
BeELBUNER o

EERNEARERLBERNE
AR

BRAENEEERTE

BETEEEREE EERREELENNT
R ARRE WS BH AL RAR
SESD =¥

MR BHRRMELS
FrRE  M2020F128 o
31H - EEEMNEF
BEERBEENHA
AR #1,659,475,0007C

R AR %1,846,799,000
o BEEEBEMMEE
AP EFT SR P HI B R B
REGEINTX:

BEBRLR BEREMESR
EH B (RE
EANATE) Rk

HREFETERANES
EFXRERTETHE
BN

. &R ) 28
iR

. FR%

MREEEHE R
AREBERERE
BB RE N EOR
18 °

TERMBRIE
£ 3§ 2020

129



130

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 7% 17 % Z( Al %% &

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 7 i/ # 20 Fl #% &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Lung Kwok Hung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

23 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mEBEBB®E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £20204F12 A31H It F &

Year ended Year ended

NOTES 31/12/2020 31/12/2019
E £2020F H £2019%F

B = 12A31BILEE 12A318IEFE

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T

Revenue WA 6 17,249,138 17,172,027
Cost of sales £ & B A 11 (10,423,563) (10,898,054)
Gross profit E H 6,825,575 6,273,973
Other income, gains and losses HEm A~ Wz K EE 8 245,328 228,832
Distribution and selling expenses % #4 & #4 & = (5,257,982) (4,974,622)
Administrative expenses 1TERSZ (482,703) (465,541)
Other expenses and losses H At H & & 18 (87,543) (37,440)
Finance costs B & B AN 9 (25,059) (53,626)
Share of profits of associates FE (b Bt 2 A B) ) A 35,602 41,033
Profit before tax bR 75 Al A 1,253,218 1,012,609
Income tax expense Fr 1S BB 2 10 (299,955) (236,773)
Profit for the year FRRF 11 953,263 775,836
Profit for the year attributable to &5 F A % A

— Owners of the Company - NRARIHE A 498,734 417,789

— Non-controlling interests - JEERE R 454,529 358,047

953,263 775,836

Earnings per share ERE2EF

Basic (cents) E AR (D) 15 17.83 14.94

Diluted (cents) 8 (9) N/AT & H N/AT i

W 84 CHINA FOODS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEHEBARRE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £20204F12 A31H It F &

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
& £2020%F H £2019%F
12A31BLLEE 12A31BILFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARE T T
Profit and other comprehensive FRENRHEMBEZEE A
income for the year 953,263 775,836
Total comprehensive income for EIEFEARZEKABEE:
the year attributable to:
— Owners of the Company - KARRIEA A 498,734 417,789
- Non-controlling interests - IR RE LS 454,529 358,047
953,263 775,836
FERERBRAA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BB R &R

At 31 December 2020 72020412 A31H

NOTES 31/12/2020 31/12/2019
B 5 2020512 A318 2019412 A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Non-current Assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BE MK 16 4,972,941 5,062,681
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 610,322 622,093
Prepayments for property, plant ME - -BERXREZ
and equipment SEENE QL] 2,888 1,850
Intangible assets E|EE 18 3,508,511 3,508,312
Interests in associates REEERA 2w 19 792,164 769,810
Deferred tax assets IR SE R 18 & B 31 412,072 373,327
10,298,898 10,338,073
Current Assets REBEE
Inventories TE 20 1,834,340 1,889,648
Accounts receivables JE U BR 3R 21 305,674 329,407
Prepayments, deposits and other ~ FTEfRTZIE « 12 & &
receivables H b fE Uk 7018 22 505,847 548,746
Due from fellow subsidiaries EEINIENSIVEN 37 86,961 17,801
Due from the ultimate holding SRR AR RK
company 37 1 -
Due from non-controlling WEBARZ
shareholders of subsidiaries IF #2° % I B R 3K 37 2,461 2,034
Due from associates i &N TR K 19 24,865 13,749
Due from a related company — X AR KR 37 54,188 369,844
Prepaid tax T8 #A% 18 47,772 75,801
Debt instruments at fair value BEAFEAEMEE
through other comprehensive WAZEBEBIA
income 23 34,714 19,436
Pledged bank deposits AR IR 1717 53X 24 10,540 9,036
Bank balances and cash RITEHRKBS 24 1,860,415 834,789
4,767,778 4,110,291
Assets classified as held for sale BEDEAFAEE 25 43,516 -
4,811,294 4,110,291

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 47 & 81 7748 7 &
At 31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

NOTES 31/12/2020 31/12/2019
B 5 2020512318 2019412 A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Current Liabilities REEE
Accounts and bills payables e BR 3 & =ik 26 540,334 760,381
Other payables and accruals B RIERERTE
& 27 3,757,501 3,095,609
Borrowings BE 28 - 606,500
Lease liabilities HEEaE 29 37,554 31,149
Contract liabilities AHEaE 30 1,767,588 1,587,175
Due to fellow subsidiaries YEELNENEIE$E 37 198,295 176,253
Due to non-controlling KM E AR 2 IEVE IR IR
shareholders of subsidiaries RFE 37 1,200 1,200
Due to associates KRB N B R IE 19 188,797 157,250
Due to a related company R—R G R)FRIE 37 2,334 243,316
Tax liabilities MIE B & 58,012 73,707
6,551,615 6,732,540
Net Current Liabilities B &R FE (1,740,321) (2,622,249)
Total Assets Less Current HEERABASE
Liabilities 8,558,577 7,715,824
Non-Current Liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings B 28 20,000 -
Deferred income iR JE YT A 215,560 207,045
Deferred tax liabilities R IEAE 31 190,883 131,950
Lease liabilities HEEE 29 52,914 64,474
479,357 403,469
8,079,220 7,312,355
Capital and Reserves EXE#E
Share capital f% 7 32 293,201 293,201
Share premium and reserves B& 10w B K 4,660,720 4,247 266
Equity attributable to owners of the AR R #EH A B E =S
Company 4,953,921 4 540,467
Non-controlling interests I 2 I = 3,125,299 2,771,888
Total Equity EREE 8,079,220 7,312,355

The consolidated financial statements on pages 134 to 220 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 March
2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

QING Lijun
BEYE
Director

EF

M20215F3 23R EF Gt/ R EETEL34
BEF2OEMBAMBHRE  IHEATAL
REEE:

SHEN Peng

TR

Director

EZE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEZSB®MRK

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £20204F12 A31H It F &

138

value of the share of net assets acquired/disposed of when
there is a change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control;

o share of other comprehensive income of an associate;

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Asset Non-
Issued Share  Capitl  Reserve revaluation  Retained controlling
capital  premium  Reserve* funds ~ reserve profits Total interests Total equity
8E
BEORR  ROEE EREE  BRE EGERE  REET B4 FBRER ERfE
RMBOOO  RMB0O0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB'0O0  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'000
ANEBFT ARETT ARETT AR%Tn ARETT ARETn ARETn ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2019 B019%1A18 293,201 30820 82309 23,534 3204 3045007 4218912 2494524 6713436
Proft and total comprehensive income for the year ~ EERARZEUAEE = - - - - 4789 7T 3BT T8
Fingl 2018 dividend declared (note 14) EERNSERDKS
Uity - - - - - (96234 (96,234) - (96,234)
Transfer to reserve fund ERZRES - - -1 - (1088 - - -
Dividends paid to non-controling sharehalders of B HEAFEER
subsidiaries Y& = = = = = - (80683 (80683)
At 31 December 2019 ANI9E12A31A 293,201 30820 82309 2622 3,204 3365524 4540467 2771888 7,312,355
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year ~ EERFR2EAALE = = - - - 498734 498734 454509 953263
Final 2019 dividend declared (note 14) BERNVERERS
(K& 14) - - - - - (1228)  (122.23) - (12223
Transfer to reserve fund ERZRRS - - - - - - - - -
Dividends fofeited by a non-contolling shareholder ~ —2FBRBEREZ
k& - - 36952 = = - 36952 (36,99 -
Dividends paid to non-controling sharcholders of ~~ ERKBATEER
subsidiaries RRRE = = = = = = - (64166)  (64,166)
At 31 December 2020 A020E12B318 293,201 30,820 860,048 2622 3,204 3742026 4953921 3125299 8,079,220
@ The Group’s capital reserve includes: * AEBEBEAFERT:
. the differences between the consideration and the book . ERARKEZHENBRT @ &

B DTG EES LR
PR, E R E s A
B 2 2

. FEAG — 1 Bk & A B E A 2 TR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #7 & # 75 & &) #F 7%
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

o the contributed surplus which represented:

= the excess value of the shares acquired over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefor under the group reorganisation in
1991, less the goodwill arising on the acquisition of
subsidiaries and associates which remains eliminated
against the capital reserve; and

= the excess value of the shares acquired over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
in exchange therefor under the reorganisation as
completed during the year ended 31 December
2006.

and ;
o the current year movement which represented the amount

of forfeited dividend distribution by a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £20204F12 A31H It F &

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
HZ2020% #H Z2019%
12B31BLLEE 12A318 L&
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KeEEE
Profit before tax: B 354 Al A -
From continuing operation REFECEER 1,253,218 1,012,609
Adjustments for: HATEREL AR
Finance costs & A 25,059 53,626
Share of profits of associates JE {5 Bt = 2 &) A (35,602) (41,033)
Bank interest income RATH B A (11,186) (5,100)
Impairment losses, net of reversal WEEE - MEREE
— property, plant and equipment - % BEREE 25,875 46,515
- receivables subject to ECL - BEIE B A TR EKKIE 2,884 2,440
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERZENE
equipment 546,101 399,204
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 59,211 39,697
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEN 461 286
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and HENE BERREESE/
equipment () 4,895 (75,194)
Provision against inventories FE#EE 30,497 31,878
Asset related government grants BEMRBOBIT/EE (65,171) (79,790)
Operating cash flows before movements in EEEAREEHNLERERE
working capital 1,836,242 1,385,138
Increase in contract liabilities AHBEEMN 180,413 245,489
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEE R,/ () 24,811 (271,208)
Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivables e Uk BR ZKO0RL (3 40) 20,849 (27,059)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits BARE ReEREMERKE
and other receivables (), 5w (55,032) 100,193
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from fellow & Z Mt B A & &z (3 10) /35
subsidiaries (69,160) 6,091
(Increase)/decrease in an amount due from the — S AR A F R F (1L 0) /5
ultimate holding company (1) 71
Decrease in an amount due from the immediate & %1% IR A 7l R ZUR 2
holding company = 138
Decrease in an amount due from a related — X B R E R FOR D
company 315,656 15,821
Increase in amounts due from non-controlling B 8 A A 2 FE 42 AR AR 2R R 3R AN
shareholders of subsidiaries (427) (1,675)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from BN R R R (g M), R
associates (11,116) 5,994
Increase in debt instruments at fair value through R A FEFAHEME2EEA 2
other comprehensive income fBE# T A (15,278) (19,436)
(Decrease)/increase in accounts and bills EREREEECRD), HE
payables (220,047) 153,570
Increase in other payables and accruals Hi B RIEREEEEMN 682,441 423,867
Increase in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries UGB EINGIE R il 22,042 23,568
Decrease in an amount due to the ultimate R B 443 IR A ) SR TR R, A
holding company = (1,336)
(Decrease)/increase in an amount due to a R—EIBE AR B CR D),/
related company (240,982) 132,777
Decrease in amounts due to KB A A 2 IE AR BR B 2 IE R A
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries - (5,549)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to REE AT ZRIER I CRA)
associates 31,547 (6,080)
Cash generated from operations KEEBRBZEE 2,501,958 2,160,374

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #7 & 3 % )ik & Z&

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
HZ2020% H Z2019%
12B31BLLEE 12B31HIFFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Interest paid BEHE (20,192) (50,826)
Income tax paid BEEH (267,433) (208,244)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RELBEMEREFE 2,214,333 1,901,304
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREZEH
Interest received B F A 11,186 5,100
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RIMEEMRITER 21,812 18,266
Placement of pledged bank deposits FREERRITER (23,316) (19,341)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEWME BEREBMERE
equipment 108,135 60,130
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEME BERSZME (564,750) (702,820)
Purchases of intangible assets BEEWEE (660) (2,324)
Purchases of leasehold land BEMRE T (14,225) -
Receipt of government grants U B B 46 B 73,686 82,480
Dividends received from associates B E R R B 13,248 13,251
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES HEEEMARE FHE (374,884) (545,258)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEFE
New bank loans raised BEESMERITEN 540,668 200,000
Repayments of bank borrowings EBEBITHER (1,127,168) (760,000)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEREARE (43,237) (27,575)
Dividends paid BEREKRE (122,232) (96,234)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders of A fif /B 22 & 2 3F % A& I R 2 R+ B &
subsidiaries (61,854) (80,683)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES BETHMABSFE (813,823) (764,492)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ReRRSESEBEEMFE 1,025,626 591,554
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RIAIBZBR & RBEEEEER
1 JANUARY 834,789 243,235
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER R12B3AZB SR B 2SEEBEED
REPRESENTED BY BANK BALANCES AND CASH BTEBRRS 1,860,415 834,789
FEREMRERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £20204F12 A31H It F &

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Foods Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office
of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company is a subsidiary of China Foods (Holdings)
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands. In the opinion of the directors of the Company
(the “Directors”), the ultimate holding company is COFCO
Corporation, which is a state-owned enterprise registered in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) were involved in
processing, bottling and distribution of sparkling beverage
products, and distribution of still beverage products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is also the Company’s functional
currency.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are Mandatorily Effective
for the Current Year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards and the following amendments to HKFRSs issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) for the first time, which are mandatorily effective
for the annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020
for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

Definition of Material

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS Interest Rate Benchmark
39 and HKFRS 7 Reform

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #7 2 I/ i#
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are Mandatorily Effective
for the Current Year (continued)

Except as described below, the application of the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRS Standards and the amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on the Group'’s
financial positions and performance for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The Group has applied the Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8 for the first time in the current year. The
amendments provide a new definition of material that states
“information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it
could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements, which provide
financial information about a specific reporting entity.” The
amendments also clarify that materiality depends on the
nature or magnitude of information, either individually or in
combination with other information, in the context of the
financial statements taken as a whole.

The application of the amendments in the current year had
no impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #1 Z< i1 &+
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020%12 8318 Ik F &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. FEAHI R KB EEH
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING BHRELER(FEABMERE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) 28 ])(4&)

REFEBRFER 2B BT B EK
HEQEET A& (&)

E B8 14 K 3 2 FT AT RAEIEET
BB BEHEER
AEELTERERRAATEBME
WARERR R RGBT 2B B

Amendments to HKFRSs that are Mandatorily Effective
for the Current Year (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

5 3 25 S )

HKFRSs ERBBHEED
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related AERBRERL RREAOREBE
Amendments! E175%
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions* AR BRE Covid-19—F @S &
R E165 e
CHES
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework? BERBREREL  RAGSER
EREACHEN)
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 25 BERBREER FREERE—F
HKFRS 39, HKFRS 7, £ - BH R0
HKFRS 4, and B 75 3R 5 2 A
HKFRS 16 $£398%
EREBRBRE
R ET5 -
BERANB®RE
EH|E 45 K
BERHBRE
8 £165%
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor BERBRERL  REFRABEAAR
and HKAS 28 and its Associate or Joint Venture?® F10H K REREZRCZE
BB GHER EHEg A
£085%
(CHE)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non- BERGHENELY ABIBEARYIGER
current and related amendments to Hong CHES ERABAEERE
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)! E5% (2020F 57T
A
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before BB e ER Mk BERHEE—
Intended Use? £165 BERGA 2B
CHES g2
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract? BB g ER BEAN-BI1T—H4E
F375% 82 AR
(BET &)
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-20202 BRI B REER 2018E 22020 &5
(CHE) BREEZFE

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #7 2 I/ i#
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are Mandatorily Effective

for the Current Year (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022.

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June
2020.

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in
the foreseeable future.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis notwithstanding that the Group
had net current liabilities of RMB1,740,321,000 at the end
of the reporting period. In preparing these consolidated
financial statements, the Directors have given careful
consideration to the current and anticipated future liquidity
of the Group. Taking into account, inter alia, (i) the unutilised
loan facilities at the end of the reporting period, and (ii)
the expected net cash inflows generated from the Group’s
operations for the next twelve months. The Directors are of
the opinion that the Group will be able to meet its liabilities
as and when they fall due. Accordingly, the Directors
consider that the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis is appropriate.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENT (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with  HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or
by selling it to another market participant that would use
the asset in its highest and best use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #7 2 I/ i#
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENT (continued)

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to
be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition
the results of the valuation technique equals the transaction
price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee

if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #7 2 I/ i#
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of
the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating
units, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group
of cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed
of is measured on the basis of the relative values of the
operation (or the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-
generating units) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
an associate is described as below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments in Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies as
those of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associate. Changes
in net assets of the associate other than profit or loss and
other comprehensive income are not accounted for unless
such changes resulted in changes in ownership interest
held by the Group. When the Group’s share of losses of
an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #7 2 I/ i#
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments in Associates (continued)

The Group assess whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any assets
including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the asset is available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject only
to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such
asset and its sale is highly probable. Management must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify
for recognition as a completed sale within one year from
the date of classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell which continue to be measured
in accordance with the accounting policies as set out in
respective sections.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct goods or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, such as
volume related discount, the Group estimates the amount
of consideration to which it will be entitled using either (a)
the expected value method or (b) the most likely amount,
depending on which method better predicts the amount of
consideration to which the Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included
in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly
probable that such an inclusion will not result in a significant
revenue reversal in the future when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating its
assessment of whether an estimate of variable consideration
is constrained) to represent faithfully the circumstances
present at the end of the reporting period and the changes
in circumstances during the reporting period.

Consideration payable to a customer

Consideration payable to a customer includes sales rebate
that the Group pays, or expects to pay, to the customer
which will be settled by transfers of goods or services to the
customer. Consideration payable to a customer also includes
credit or other items that can be applied against amounts
owed to the Group. The Group accounts for consideration
payable to a customer as a reduction of the transaction
price and, therefore, of revenue as the consideration is not
in exchange for distinct goods or service that the customer
transfers to the Group. The Group recognises such reduction
of revenue when (or as) the later of either of the following
events occurs: (a) the Group recognises revenue for the
transfer of the related goods or services to the customer;
and (b) the Group pays or promises to pay the consideration
(even if the payment is conditional on a future event).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of machinery and equipment that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies
the recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes in
expected payment under a guaranteed residual value,
in which cases the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using the
initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;

° the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #7 2 I/ i#
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign Currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Borrowing Costs
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government Grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or
loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives
of the related assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 7% #% 2 B iF

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020%12 8318 Ik F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Employee Benefits
Retirement Benefit Costs

Payments to contribution retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other Long-term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the

benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)

after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that another HKFRS requires or permits their

inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end

of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #7 2 I/ i#
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

TEEFBER(E)

i 18 (%)
ERRBERBEEMBRERMINE
ERBERETESSEERY SN
PAABEREHRERNEG R EZHER -
—REBERT  FAERATEREE
RELNEREMSHRAEGBY TH#
R REMBFHEERERAEN
SRER A% AT A 1 BRI
INEARAMSENREARME
AENEREZEERRTHEN
BE AR -ERETHERRT G
MEAFEGHENORSH &
HERELANREERBBE ZVIHME
R AT ERE R EEERBELTR
BHREEHRRAE - Wi WERKE
BRI HEABERELE B
HHEARKTE®R -

BEERIEBERREWNEB QR KL
EREIRENERNEG R ZEER
WAREEAZEHN TR ZEZRD B
AR BE R AT B % R 38 () B By = 2
AIRRSN - BRAZIRE RiEm Z AT
MEREZRELNELERBEEE
& LAH 2 50 8 SR st M) AT 3K 35 B By
ZRNRAR  BRHPEREZRERN
AR R AR ) By SR

BEEHIBEENREERSZ2HRY
BERETRSY 8—HEHRED
BARHERV &M W E 2 50k E
DEERIL -

ERERBEEENBBEERZRAS
BRCHEMABEERMHOBT R (KK
FERBEABHAEREENHEN
BEHMERREE -

EREHRERBEREENERBRA
SERAHANE2RAEET AR @ L LA
BEERBERAENTAELED
BBRE -

TERMBRIE
£ 3§ 2020

109



160

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to the leasing transaction
as a whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis.
Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease
payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities resulting
in net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxable
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes. Property, plant
and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management and. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #7 2 I/ i#
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than properties under construction less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The annual
rates of depreciation are as follows:

2% to 18%
6% to 33.3%

Buildings
Plant, machinery and equipment

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets acquired in
a business combination with indefinite useful lives are
coined at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 7% #% 2 B iF

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020%12 8318 Ik F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment on Property, Plant and Equipment, Right-
of-use Assets and Intangible Assets other than

Goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets are estimated
individually, when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the

asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been

adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable

amount of the group of cash-generating units.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #7 2 I/ i#
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in
the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by
an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #7 2 I/ i#
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for debt
instruments classified as at FVTOCI as a result of interest
income calculated using the effective interest method
are recognised in profit or loss. All other changes in the
carrying amount of these debt instruments are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under
the heading of FVTOCI reserve. Impairment allowances are
recognised in profit or loss with corresponding adjustment
to other comprehensive income without reducing the
carrying amounts of these debt instruments. When these
debt instruments are derecognised, the cumulative gains or
losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets
(including accounts receivables, other receivables, due
from related parties, debt instruments at FVTOCI, pledged
bank deposits and bank balances) which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for accounts
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of
a default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #7 2 I/ i#
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

° an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if i) it has
a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term and iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument
to have low credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as per globally understood
definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020%12 8318 Ik F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (continued)
Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals

held by the Group).

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit impaired includes observable data

about the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider;

o it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that

financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #7 2 I/ i#
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL effects on unbiased and
probability — weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when formulating
the grouping:

° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar
credit risk characteristics.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount with exception of accounts receivables,
other receivables and due from related parties where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liability and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #7 2 I/ i#
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial liability and equity (continued)

Financial liability

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including accounts and bills payables,
other payables and accruals, borrowings and amounts due
to related parties are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when and only
when the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liabilities derecognised and the consideration
paid or payable is recognised in profit and loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the
net amount presented in the statement of financial position
when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, the Directors are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Judgement in determining whether the intangible assets are
with finite or indefinite useful live

The Group has franchise rights related to its bottling and
distribution rights in certain regions in Mainland China. The
Group has assigned indefinite useful lives to such franchise
rights after evaluating the terms and conditions in the
bottling agreements, history of renewals and the strategic
and mutual beneficial relationship between the Group and
the counterparty.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment assessment of indefinite-lived franchise rights
and gooawill

Determining whether goodwill and franchise rights is
impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable amount
of the group of cash-generating units to which goodwill and
franchise rights has been allocated, which is the higher of
the value in use or fair value less costs of disposal. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from a group of cash-
generating units and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value.

The carrying amount of goodwill and franchise rights
with indefinite useful life at 31 December 2020 was
RMB3,506,274,000 (2019: RMB3,506,274,000). Further
details are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #5 & 81 7% # 2 M i

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

6. REVENUE 6. WA
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers EREEHWADLE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
H £2020F HZ=2019%
12A31BLEE 12A31BIEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T
Types of goods EmmER

Sparkling drinks K 13,314,069 12,798,506
Juices £t 2,065,264 2,317,038
Water VIR 1,300,738 1,517,544
Others H A 569,067 538,939
Total 5t 17,249,138 17,172,027

Timing of revenue recognition BRKARKRE
A point in time ERELEAEE 17,249,138 17,172,027

The Group sells sparkling and still beverage products to
its customers, revenue is recognised when control of the
goods has transferred, being when the goods have been
delivered to the customer’s specific location. Following
delivery, the customer has full discretion over the manner
of distribution and price to sell the goods, has the primary
responsibility on selling the goods and bears the risks of
obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. Payment in
advance or payment on delivery is typically required from
customers, except for certain customers granted with credit
term ranging from 7 to 90 days upon delivery.

All of the Group’s contracts for sale of goods are for periods
of one year or less, as permitted under HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 7% #% 2 B iF

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020%12 8318 Ik F &

7. OPERATING SEGMENT

The Group’s revenue and consolidated results are mainly
derived from processing, bottling and distribution of
sparkling and still beverages, which is regarded as a single
operating segment in a manner consistent with the nature
of the products and production process, the types of
customers for their products, the methods used to distribute
their products, and the nature of the regulatory environment.

Accordingly, no segment information is presented.

Geographical information

All revenue of the continuing operation of the Group is
derived from customers operating in Mainland China and
over 90% of the Group’s non-current assets, other than
deferred tax assets, are situated in Mainland China, hence
no geographical information is presented in accordance with

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments.

Information about major customers

During the current year, there was no revenue derived from
a single customer which accounted for 10% or more of the

Group’s revenue (2019: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #7 2 I/ i#
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

8.

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HMWA - WEREIE
An analysis of other income and gains and losses is as HEMWA - W kEBESTEOT :
follows:
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
H £2020F HZ=2019%
12A31BLEE 12A31BIEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR T T
Other income H At g A
Incentive income (note 1) B A (BT 75 1) 89,635 =
Government grants (note 2) I8/ #8 Bh (Fff 522) 65,171 79,790
Sale of by-products and scrap items HERIEm&ERIER 26,241 23,064
Processing services 0T AR %% 23,408 22,032
Bank interest income RITH B WA 11,186 5,100
Others Hi 34,582 23,652
250,223 153,638
Other gains and losses Hip ez K B 18
Net (loss)/gain on disposals of HEFEREEER
right-of-use assets and property, Y- BEKEE
plant and equipment (E18) W F8E (4,895) 75,194
245,328 228,832
Note 1: The amount represented a performance related incentive MisEl: ZemmEFANERRR—RBH
income received from a holding company of the non- BARZEERB R 2 IZERA
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company A WCER B S AR AR R 2 SR R
in the year. A
Note 2: Various government grants were granted for investments fizE2: ZAEBEERZEBRFSHED -

in certain provinces in Mainland China in which the
Company’s subsidiaries operate. Government grants for
which related expenditure has not yet been undertaken
are included in deferred income (non-current portion)
and other payables and accruals (current portion) in the
consolidated statement of financial position, respectively.
There are no unfulfiled conditions or contingencies
relating to these grants.

REREAREMNE QR LE
PREZHBEIARMETED ° K
Fi5 468 BY AR 8 A R A ST HHE
R BREREMBEMARRRTDN
BEIEUA GEREN R D) I E A
FE 3RIR K EEHIR B OR 8 28
0) A o 7% % 7 B 3 £ AE ] 1=
A EZEHRIEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #1 Z< i1 &+
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020%12 8318 Ik F &

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. EERAK
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
B Z£2020F B £20194F
12A318LFE 12A31HIEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBETIT
Interest on bank loans BITERZHE 20,192 50,823
Interest on lease liabilities HEBBEBZHNE 4,867 2,800
Other H A = 3
25,059 53,626
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FRIEHBAX
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
H £2020F B £2019%F
12A31ALLEE 12A3181EFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBT T
Current tax Bl AR %4 18

PRC enterprise income tax PR EMER 274,181 190,831

Under provision in prior years BAEFEREEDR
PRC enterprise income tax PR EMER 5,586 3,595
Deferred tax % & T 18 20,188 42 347
299,955 236,773

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made as
the Group’s income neither arises in, nor is derived from,
Hong Kong.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which
the Group operates.

Pursuant to the approvals issued by the State Administration
of Taxation of the PRC in 2013, the Company and certain
of its subsidiaries are regarded as Chinese Resident
Enterprises (collectively the “CREs”) and relevant enterprise
income tax policies of the PRC are applicable to the CREs
commencing from 1 January 2013.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #7 2 I/ i#
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before tax per consolidate statement of profit or loss as
follows:

10. Fri&%iF < ()

AERBEHAIRGEEBEERT
R B A S A A — B TR PRR

Year ended 31/12/2020

Year ended 31/12/2019

B Z2020F12831H L FEE HZE2019F12A31BILFE

RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR¥ TR ARET T
Profit before tax B 7 A& A 1,253,218 1,012,609
Tax at the statutory tax rates I EFEM Xt E 2
7 I8 313,304 25.0 253,152 25.0
Tax effect of share of profit of D EEEE AT HEM 2
associates W% 2 (8,900) (0.7) (10,258) (1.0)
Tax effect of income not BAERTWE 2
taxable for tax purpose MG E (12,041) (1.0) (12,208) (1.2)
Tax effect of expenses not AT E A 2 B %
deductible for tax purpose 2 3,790 0.3 2,095 0.2
Under provision in respect of BEFEEEBTE
prior years 5,586 0.4 3,595 0.4
Utilisation of tax losses AR ARER
previously not recognised MIEEE (4,409) (0.4) (3,746) 0.4)
Tax losses not recognised AERRIEEE 2,625 0.2 4,143 04
Income tax expenses and REFREHIHR
effective tax rate for the EBEHE
299,955 23.8 236,773 23.4

year

The share of tax attributable to associates amounting to

RMB8,900,000 (2019: RMBI10,258,000)

is included in

“share of profits of associates” in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss.

B & N B PR A5 T TE A R 8,900,000
7T (20194 : A R%10,258,0007T)
Tt AR RRTEERZ A

AR -

FERERBERAH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #1 Z< i1 &+
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020%12 8318 Ik F &

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1. FR&EF
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/ F R T &R GEA) AT
(crediting): TH1E E
Year ended Year ended

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
& £2020F H E20194F
12A31BLLEE 12A31HILFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARBETIT

(a) Cost of sales (a) SHEKAR
Cost of inventories sold ELFEERAR 10,393,066 10,866,176
Provision against inventories FERE 30,497 31,878
10,423,563 10,898,054
(b) Other items (b) HMIEE
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BB R&E
equipment e 546,101 399,204
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEENE 59,211 39,697
Amortisation of intangible assets M\ A = 461 286
Total depreciation and amortisation ER#HHAR 605,773 439,187
Capitalised in inventories FEERNE (33,523) (22,898)
572,250 416,289
Employee benefit expense, including EERAMAX
directors’ and chief executive’s (BREEEES
remuneration (note 13) ITELA B E )
(Pt 5£13)
Wages and salaries TERF® 2,009,430 1,938,730
Pension schemes RORET & 3k
contributions 124,583 243,514
Total 48 =t 2,134,013 2,182,244
Auditor’s remuneration % E R = B 2,750 2,500
Impairment of property, plant and Y3 BE R
equipment HAERE 25,875 46,515
Impairment of receivables RGN K] 2,884 2,440

W 78 CHINA FOODS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020



12. DIRECTORS’

EMOLUMENTS

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #5 & 81 7% # 2 M i

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

Directors’ and chief executive’s remunerations for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and

12. EERERTHRAENE

WRIRE A AR R & 2B 6 R
ZRFREERSRITBRAEME

Companies Ordinance, is as follows: Eg| RN
(a) Executive Directors (@) BMITEE
Ms. Luan Mr. Qing Mr. Shen
Xiuju Lijun Peng Total
SEHLL BUYELLE BREE #sr
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR®TT AREFTL
2020 20204
Salaries, allowances and e EZHK
benefits in kind EWF = = 1,025 802 1,827
Discretionary bonuses Mg 4 - - 904 904
Pension schemes RIRFH B R
contributions = 226 173 399
= 1,251 1,879 3,130
2019 20195
Salaries, allowances and He 2HR
benefits in kind EWF = 1,574 - 785 2,359
Discretionary bonuses Wi 1,636 - 486 2122
Pension schemes RIRFH B3R
contributions 477 = 269 746
3,687 = 1,540 5,227

The executive director's emoluments shown above

were for their services

in connection with the

management of the affairs of the Company and the

Group.

Ms. Luan Xiuju resigned from her positions and Mr.
Qing Lijun was appointed as an Executive Director
and the Managing Director of the Company, both with

effect from 1 January 2020.

tRATESHERAEEFERE
ARR RASEEHEBHR
BxfzMe -

RERLLIEREERT B
VERERZRERARRBIT
EZREFAKE - 820205
LAIRE AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #1 Z< i1 &+
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020%12 8318 Ik F &

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

12

. EERERITHRAENS

(IIE)

(b) Non-Executive Directors (h) HHITEE
Mr. Chen Mr. Chen Mr. Qin Ms. Xiao
Lang Zhigang' Yelong? Jianping Total
BREEE BREBLE EBEREEE HEFzL #gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTRT ARETRT ARETT ARETR
2020 2020 - - 200 200 400
2019 20195 - - - - -
1 Mr. Chen Zhigang has been appointed as a non- L BREMEEEBZERAR
executive director of the Company with effect from RIEHITE E - 520204
27 November 2020. 11B27H#E AR »
2 Mr. Qin Yelong resigned as a non-executive director 2 BERLELERFRELART
of the Company with effect from 27 November 2020. JEFITE E - B2020411
H27H # 4 / -
The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown LHIERITEEME AFEEE
above were for their services as directors of the ABARARRENBARESR
Company or its subsidiaries. HEFEMZFTZ2ME -
(c) Independent Non-executive Directors (o) BYUFHTES

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

RENENBILIFATESRZ
WEEINNT

Mr. Stephen ~ Mr. Li Hung  Mr. Mok Wai

Edward Clark  Kwan, Alfred Bun, Ben Total

MUFELEE FERHEE EEWLE B 5t

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETRT ARETR ARET:
2020 2020

Fees e 326 326 326 978
2019 20194

Fees e 312 312 312 936

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of
the Company.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #7 2 I/ i#
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

12. DIRECTORS’

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)
There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration during the year. There was no
compensation for the loss of office as a director in
connection with the management of the affairs of any
member of the Group.

Certain executive directors of the Company are
entitled to bonus payments which are determined in
relation to revenue growth, profit, market share, and
quality measures.

13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included one director (2019: one), details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 12 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2019: four)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

12. EERERITHRAEHE
(#%&)

) BIUFATES(A)
RAFE  BEEFHNERT
BAEMEXRENREEM
MEemzh - IBRETRE R
AEBEMKBERREBHTH
REFTMESHE -

ARAETHITESHEKR
TEAL > ZBEEALTIIR B I 25 38
£ @A mshBEREER

13. EEEEHFMES

FAXKELEERFMZES
BE—REE (20196 : —%&)  H#
EHBHEARLXMEI2 - FAR - H
A& (20195 MB) R H M2
FEARBEZLERFHITERELZ
FEMeHINWT:

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
& £2020%F H =20194F
12A31BLLEE 12A31BILFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR®T T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in Fe EEKEDHA R
kind 7,050 6,136
Discretionary bonuses B 15 IE 4T 4,228 4,082
Pension scheme contributions RONET SR 1,059 1,677
12,337 11,895
FEREMRERAT

F 3R 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #1 Z< i1 &+
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020%12 8318 Ik F &

13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued) 13. ZEESHFMzEE(E)

The number of the highest paid employees who are not a -7
director nor chief executive whose remuneration fell within Z

the following bands is as follows:

BHMEE GFEELBRATE)
FHEART AR 2 ABMT :

2020 2019
20205 20194
No. of No. of
employees employees
EE#E & B 2 H

HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001% 7t &
3,000,000 7T 2 -

HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000 3,000,001/ T &=
3,500,000 7T = 2

HKD3,500,001 to HKD4,000,000 3,500,001/ 7Tt &
4,000,000/ 7T 2 2
4 4

14. DIVIDENDS 14. K2

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
& £2020F #H &=20194F
128318 1LEE 12A31BIEEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREEF T

Dividends for ordinary shareholders
of the Company recognised as
distribution during the year:

2019 final — HK4.8 cents (2019: final
dividend of HK3.9 cents in respect

ARERHERRBDIKHAAR
AEAERBRR S

20194 R 8- & I & 38 X
4.8l (20194 : B

of the year ended 31 December #H E2018F 12 A31H
2018) per ordinary share IEEERER E3.9%
i) 122,232 96,234

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final R EHARE  ESEEZIRER
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2020 H E2020F12 A31H |[FF & 2 K Hf
of HKD10.6 cents (2019: HKD4.8 cents) per ordinary share, fi&% B =% % HxlO 675 1l (20194 :
in an aggregate amount of HKD296,506,000, equivalent to 4.87% 1) 42 & %8 A296,506,000
RMB248,953,000 (2019: HKD134,267,000, equivalent to BT lHE R A RE248,953,0007T
RMB122,232,000), has been proposed by the Directors and (20194 : 134,267,000 7T (8 & %
is subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming A R#¥122,232,00070)) BF AR E

general meeting.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #7 2 I/ i#
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. EREF
The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to KA HEBARBGEERERRZT 2
the owners of the Company is based on the following data: STETER AT :
Earnings figures are calculated as follows: BNEE VIZATSEE
Year ended Year ended

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
# £2020F #H £ 20194
12A31BLLEE 12A31HILFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARBET T

Profit for the year attributable to RARER ANBIERFEE
owners of the Company kil 498,734 417,789
Number of shares g {n 8B
Number of ordinary shares for the AT ESREARRF 2L
purpose of basic earnings per share BRYEE 2,797,223,396  2,797,223,396
No diluted earnings per share for both 2020 and 2019 were B R 20204 & 20194 37 4 B2 3¢ 17 &
presented as there are no potential ordinary shares in issue EEEAT - B R20204F K& 20194
for both 2020 and 2019. E2DBRBROHBERF -

"eaERl 183



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #1 Z< i1 &+
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020%12 8318 Ik F &

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥  WMENKRKRE

Plant,
machinery
and Construction
Buildings equipment  in progress Total
BE - #w
BF kEE HEEIR @5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT ARETRT ARETR
COST 2%
At 1 January 2019 M2019F1A1H 2,456,565 4,300,976 186,971 6,944,512
Additions NE 23,246 424,199 254,114 701,559
Disposals k== (72,582) (508,802) = (581,384)
Reclassification E 75,156 216,200 (291,356) -
At 31 December 2019 2019%12 B31H 2,482,385 4,432,573 149,729 7,064,687
Additions NE 38,942 425,835 76,073 540,850
Disposals HE (18,862)  (230,537) (7,375) (256,774)
Reclassification EHOHE 23,234 139,701 (162,935) =
Reclassified as held for sale  BEFHEABSAEFE (119,227) = = (119,227)
At 31 December 2020 #2020 12 A318 2,406,472 4,767,572 55492 7,229,536
DEPRECIATION AND i 88 ROAL
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2019 R2019%F1A1H 586,065 1,471,913 = 2,057,978
Provided for the year FRNEE 87,198 312,006 - 399,204
Impairment loss recognised in 718 25 7 72 B R (B
profit or loss ] 1,602 44913 - 46,515
Eliminated on disposals A & A% 88 (46,042) (455,649) = (501,691)
At 31 December 2019 72019412 A31H 628,823 1,373,183 = 2,002,006
Provided for the year FREE 83,750 462,351 = 546,101
Impairment loss recognised in ~ MME 25 5 R H) R E
profit or loss &1 1,719 24,156 = 25,875
Eliminated on disposals B B A B (18,862) (222,814) = (241,676)
Reclassified as held for sale ~ BEFDEAZEEE (75,711) = = (75,711)
At 31 December 2020 2020512 A31H 619,719 1,636,876 = 2,256,595
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2020 M2020F12 A31H 1,786,753 3,130,696 55,492 4,972,941
At 31 December 2019 2019%12 B31H 1,853,562 3,059,390 149,729 5,062,681

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #7 2 I/ i#
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Due to technical obsolescence, the management of the
Group concluded there was indication for impairment
and conducted impairment assessment on recoverable
amounts of certain property, plant and equipment with
carrying amount of RMB25,875,000 in aggregate. The
recoverable amounts of those property, plant and equipment
are estimated individually. Based on the result of the
assessment, the management of the Group determined
that the recoverable amounts of certain property, plant
and equipment are lower than their corresponding carrying
amounts, and an impairment of RMB25,875,000 (2019:
RMB46,515,000) in aggregate has been recognised against

16. W% BMERR®BE)

HRKRIMBE AEEEEERR
FERENR IHEEEAFR
A R 25,875,000t 89 & T 41 %
R K i R R M B & R AE 1T TR
BFE - ZEVE  BERREN
A El SR IEE TG - RIE
AEER AEBEEEEREST
WME - BERZRBEOAKESEE
REMEEREE ARFAYE -
TR B5 B 5% e O B T (B HL 51 R SRUBL(E
A K #25,875,0007T (20194 : A
#46,515,0007T) °

the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment during

the year.
17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. FRAEEE
Leasehold Leased Office
land property  Machinery  equipment Total

BELH HRENR WE ROERE )
RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTTE ARBTTE ARBTLE ARBTTL

As at 31 December 2020 ®2020%F12H31H
Carrying amount REE 521,525 73,712 13,041 2,044 610,322
As at 31 December 2019 R2019F12A31H
Carrying amount REE 526,287 77,354 16,809 1,643 622,093

Depreciation charge for the year — # £2020F12A31H
ended 31 December 2020 EEERESH 18,987 33,599 3,768 2,857 59,211

Depreciation charge for the year & Z2019F12A31H
ended 31 December 2019 FEEREXH 15,105 19,537 3,202 1,853 39,697
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 7% #% 2 B iF

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020%12 8318 Ik F &

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

17. EREEER)

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2020 31/12/2019

H E20205 #H &= 20194

12A318ILEE 12A31HIEFE

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARE T AREF T

Expense relating to short-term leases B EAEGHASHNH X 53,515 70,211
Expense relating to leases of low-value HAEEERKBEEEN

assets X - 18

Total cash outflow for leases HERS AR L@ 96,752 98,238

Additions to right-of-use assets NEFREEE 47,440 62,214

For both years, the Group leases various warehouses and
equipment for its operations. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed term of 6 months to 10 years, but may
have extension and termination options. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. In determining the lease
term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,
the Group applies the definition of a contract and determines

the period for which the contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several industrial buildings
where its manufacturing facilities are primarily located and
office buildings. The Group is the registered owner of these
property interests, including the underlying leasehold lands.
Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire these

property interests.

The Group has obtained the land use right certificates for

all leasehold lands.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #7 2 I/ i#
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. BILEE
Franchise
Goodwill rights Software Total
BE STRER B4 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETT ARBTT ARBFT T
COST K 2
At 1 January 2019 R2019F 1 A1H 1,846,799 1,659,475 - 3,506,274
Additions NE - - 2,324 2,324
At 31 December 2019 R2019412 A31H 1,846,799 1,659,475 2,324 3,508,598
Additions NE = = 660 660
At 31 December 2020 2020512 A31H 1,846,799 1,659,475 2,984 3,509,258
AMORTISATION # 8
At 1 January 2019 201941 A1H - - - -
Charge for the year FAZH = - 286 286
At 31 December 2019 2019412 A31H = = 286 286
Charge for the year FREH - - 461 461
At 31 December 2020  FA2020412 A31H = = 747 747
CARRYING AMOUNT IR E &
At 31 December 2020 1R2020512 A31H 1,846,799 1,659,475 2,237 3,508,511
At 31 December 2019 R2019412 A31H 1,846,799 1,659,475 2,038 3,508,312

The franchise right related to the Group’s bottling and
distribution rights in certain regions in Mainland China
acquired in prior years’ business combinations. The
amounts of franchise rights represented their fair value at
the respective acquisition dates, which have been arrived at
on the basis of a valuation carried out by an independent
qualified professional valuer.

The franchise rights have been assigned indefinite
useful lives as the Group believes those franchise rights
will continue to be renewed at each expiration date,
after evaluating the term and conditions in the bottling
agreements, history of renewals and the strategic and
mutual beneficial relationship between the Group and the
counter party.

Impairment Testing of Goodwill and Franchise Rights
with Indefinite Useful Lives

Goodwill and franchise rights with indefinite useful lives
acquired through business combinations is allocated to the
beverage cash-generating unit for impairment testing.

Rl eRErgBERNEEFER
6 Gtp R B A 3 K L b [ 0
MEDHERRE - HrFEERN S
BREREESEARBENATE
ZEBERERIREAEREBIYERE
EEEMETHEMSD -

R RARGZ IR~ BRI ALk
DA R AN 65 ) 2 X 5 6 5 2 i) ) BB R
ERBARE BHAKEESHET
ERERAEAFESR  IHHRAE
BEEZHIRERSEEN S
HBE&EN -

HEKEEERAEAFH &
RS RRERS
REBEHEBZAELABAER
ERFHREFEEERIEER
HESEEEMFEREND -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 7% #% 2 B iF

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020%12 8318 Ik F &

18.

19.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 18. B EE (&)
Impairment Testing of Goodwill and Franchise Rights BEREEERUEAFHZE
with Indefinite Useful Lives (continued) AFEERBERNR (&)
The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit has Ll BN S ELEEN 2N EFEE
been determined based on a value in use calculation using TREFEREESEE - FHERA
cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering Al EREEEERE LT H
a five-year period approved by senior management. The MU BEE TERREERERER
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections was 11.1% Ho-BemneEEMERZHIAX
(2019: 11%) and cash flows beyond the five-year period are £11.1% (20194F : 11%) * M #E @ A
extrapolated using a growth rate of 2% (2019: 3%). FHRMIA R T 1E2% (20194 :
3%) 2 R EF LAHE R o
Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation 720204 K 201912 318 » 7£ &
of the cash-generating unit for 31 December 2020 and HHRcEASBU 2 FREBRR B
2019. The following describes each key assumption on EARTREZ UTHAEEER
which management has based its cash flow projections to ERENEVEMKECE —BR
undertake impairment testing: & - DAMETT R (BRI & -
Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the BEENE-—BEETEE EMNE
value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average FrisEEBECREE  REEZEESF
gross margins achieved in the year immediately before the BERZEERSZ2FEHERE -
budget year.
Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and BRI R — P BRI R At E T IE
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units. Bl WREMHBEMM IR 25 E
[2 Bz o
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. RBEE QT 2R
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
2020%F12H318 2019412 A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR FIT
Interests in associates REEE RA 2= 792,164 769,810

The balances with associates included in current
assets and current liabilities of RMB24,865,000
(2019: RMB13,749,000) and RMB188,797,000 (2019:
RMB157,250,000), respectively, are unsecured, interest-free
and are repayable on demand.

Details of each of the Group’s associates at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020

HARBEEN R BE 2 HEE
ERBIZERERED /AR
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Proportion of ownership
interest/voting rights held by

Country of
incorporation/

Name of entity registration the Group Principal activities
B,/ AEBFERERE/
BEREH a1 B R RERBAL TEXH
2020 2019
20204 20194
(note) (note)
(H5t) (Hit)
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing Holdings Hong Kong 13.7% 13.7%  Investment holdings
Limited
BB REER
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing (Dongguan) ~ The PRC 13.7% 13.7%  Beverage production and oriental-
Company Limited equipment-manufacture
AN REREEE(RR)BRAR H Bl FREERKT
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing (Wuhan) The PRC 13.7% 13.7%  Beverage production and oriental-
Company Limited equipment-manufacture
AOAEEREEE(RZE)BERA HE FREERKT
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing (Foshan) The PRC 13.7% 13.7%  Beverage production and oriental-
Company Limited equipment-manufacture
AINRREMEEE(BILARA HE FREERKT
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing (Hangzhou) The PRC 13.7% 13.7%  Beverage production and oriental-
Company Limited equipment-manufacture
AOAEEMEEEMM BRRA H Bl FREERKT
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing (Suzhou) The PRC 13.7% 13.7%  Beverage production and oriental-
Company Limited equipment-manufacture
AARLRREEEGMNAR H Bl FREERKT
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturlng (Jman) The PRC 13.7% 13.7%  Beverage production and oriental-
Company Limited equipment-manufacture
AOAEEREEE(ER)ERAR H Bl FREERKT
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing The PRC 13.7% 13.7%  Beverage production and oriental-
(Shijiazhuang) Company Limited equipment-manufacture
AARLRREEERERE)BRAA H Bl FREERKT
Coca-Cola Bottlers Management Service The PRC 13.7% 13.7%  Beverage operation, sale and
(Shanghai) Company Limited distribution
AONAEEREERRE (LB BERA HE FREE  HERDH
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing (Nannlng) The PRC 13.7% 13.7%  Beverage production and oriental-
Company Limited equipment-manufacture
AARLRREEEME)ERAR HE FREERKT
Coca-Cola Bottlers Manufacturing (Yingkou) The PRC 13.7% 13.7%  Beverage production and oriental-
Company Limited equipment-manufacture
AOAEEREEE(EQ)BRAA H Bl FREERKT
CBPC Limited Hong Kong 21.7% 21.7%  Price negotiation service
N AR ERRS
Note: The Group is able to exercise significant influence over fzx: BHAZSRRIZEZTEHRAER

the associates as the boards of these companies comprise
representatives of the Group, who participate in the policy
making process. Accordingly, they are accounted for as
associates of the Group. All of the above associates are
indirectly held through a 65% owned subsidiary of the
Company. All of the above associates are not individually

material.

KB 2R KRS EPESEBIZ
AN £ E L T B 49 Bk i A R 1T
EEAXE At WERE
{’F$‘§@Z§ﬁ§/‘7 FrE £

A& AR AR F R B 65%
Hﬂéﬁ’]ﬁﬂ% AREERE - bt
FEHERARBIMENES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #

= Npy & e

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020%12 8318 Ik F &

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually
material:

19. REEE QR 2= (F)

18 5!l I B KB &

REINEREE

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
20205128318 2019412 A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T AR T T
The Group’s share of profit K& B FE (b A 35,602 41,033
Dividends declared by associates BrENREE KK A (13,248) (13,251)

Aggregate carrying amount at RI2A3IB 2 RE 4 E
31 December 792,164 769,810

20. INVENTORIES 20. 78
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
2020128318 2019412 A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®ET T
Raw materials J& %} 361,522 383,070
Finished goods 25K oA 1,472,818 1,506,578
1,834,340 1,889,648
21. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES 21. EUBERR

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
2020%12A8318 2019412A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T ARE T T
Accounts receivables & Uk BR 7Kk 308,229 330,521
Allowance B (2,555) (1,114)
305,674 329,407

The Group gives credit term to key customers, while for

other customers,

payment in advance or payment on

delivery is normally required. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a
credit control commissioner to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
In view of the fact that the Group’s accounts receivable
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is

AEEETHREFEES MY
RE M P RIRE A FAUGRIE SR
RE R UK o 7N 5K B = SR 5 B
%ﬂﬁ*%%%%%% RAEIE

%wA BREGEERRRE
Eﬁo REEETHEZARNG
B o %K$$l$&KiTH§ﬁ
ZRWER  MEERRZETIE
Fi??é NEE Y gL H B

no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
its accounts receivable balances. Accounts receivables are
non-interest-bearing.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #7 2 I/ i#
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

21.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The following is an aged analysis of accounts receivables,
net of allowance for credit loss, presented based on the
date of the delivery of goods:

21.

J& W B K (4

AT RERE B IR R R R
DI AREEERRE)

31/12/2020 31/12/2019

20205128318 2019412 A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T T AR T T

Within 6 months NEAR 300,624 318,106
6 to 12 months ANE+Z@EA 5,050 11,301
305,674 329,407

Ageing of accounts receivables which are past due but not
impaired:

B 780 B3 (B I £ Rk (B 2 FE R BR B 2 BR
BR

31/12/2020 31/12/2019

2020%12A318 2019412 A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARETT

Within 1 year —FR 5,162 21,232

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
Directors are of the opinion that no provision for impairment
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable.

Details of impairment assessment of accounts receivables
for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are set
out in note 40.

£ 78 HA B 3F SR (B A0 B U kIR Y
AEBEZRERLBERTZBILITR
B - REBEBERR EFAA-
HRERRBENEEERY EHELE
EXEPRILER/ATHED - &
BERE A RFIRRERE -

£ B 220204 201912 A31H
I FERKEFRETHNFEE
M FE40 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 7% #% 2 B iF

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020%12 8318 Ik F &

22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22. AR RE ZERHEME
RECEIVABLES e

31/12/2020 31/12/2019

2020%F12H318 2019412 A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARMEF T

Prepayment to suppliers T8 A5t FE P RIR 281,762 217,209

Receivables for obligation to transfer & i an sk RS & 75 1Y

goods or services Ji& U I8 123,178 48,352

VAT recoverable A U [ 1% (5 5 92,452 147,052
Receivables for disposal of property, HE¥ZE « BE L& EE

plant and equipment & - 97,931

Others EH A, 8,455 38,202

505,847 548,746

23. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH  23.

AR EFAREMZEKRA

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME NEKIA
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
2020512 H31H 2019412 A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T ARETF T
Bills receivables e U 2 1% 34,714 19,436
24. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 24, RITEBRREBES

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
2020%12H31H 2019412 A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Cash and bank balances Be NIR1T4 e 1,860,415 834,789
Pledged bank deposits W R TFER 10,540 9,036
1,870,955 843,825

Less: Pledged bank deposits for bills & : &t & o 22 & K #7268
payable (note 26) 1717 FR (Fft 5£26) (10,540) (9,036)
Cash and cash equivalents He kB EEEE 1,860,415 834,789

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged

deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no

recent history of default.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #7 2 I/ i#
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

25. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

26.

The Company resolved to dispose of certain buildings owned
by the Group. The assets, which are expected to be sold
within twelve months, have been classified as assets held
for sale and are presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

25. EETERBREE

ARBRELHEAEEEANE T
BEY - BHSET-_BARLE
MZEFEECRERRBREEE
VHEABMBRRAKRTFERIR -

31/12/2020
2020%12A31H
RMB’000

AR® TR

Property, plant and equipment Y BB R&E

43,516

43,516

On 24 July 2020, the Group entered into an assets
transfer agreement with a third party to dispose of certain
buildings and right of use assets at a consideration
of RMB76,700,000. The transaction was completed
subsequent to the year end date, in January 2021.

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of accounts and bills
payables presented based on the invoice date.

26.

20205 7H24R - AEEEE =7
RIVEEBZEDmZ  UREBARE
76,700,000t HEE TEFRER
BEE - ZX5MN2021F1AF4&H
ZETERK °

BAERRER

BNERAREBEREINIZESR
HEHMTE -

31/12/2020 31/12/2019

20205%12H31H 2019412 H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AREF T

Within 3 months =@AR 524,041 647,059
3 to 12 months =@Az+=—@AR 16,151 105,525
1 to 2 years —FEWEFER 15 5,813
Over 2 years 18 1@ Y F 127 1,984
540,334 760,381

The accounts and bills payables are non-interest-bearing
and are normally settled in one to three months and one
to six months, respectively.

Certain of the Group’s bills payable are secured by
the pledge of the Group’s bank deposits amounting to
RMB10,540,000 (2019: RMB9,036,000).

BNERARZBE/TE - — RO
NHRBORNS—E=ERAR—ZEX
BA -

REBETENEEUNEEARA
R #10,540,0007T (20194 : A R #&
9,036,000T) 2 N E B RITFE R T
PAFELR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #1 Z< i1 &+
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020%12 8318 Ik F &

27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 2]. EtHESRERESEE
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
20205128318 2019412 A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T AR T T
Sales rebate (Note) 8 & o 40 (BT 7%) 761,819 568,339
Accrued expense EEHFA X 701,746 438,333
Accrued marketing expense JEEt & AT 589,077 625,754
Deposit for fridges KR ® 537,930 461,308
Accrued payroll BRI & 510,860 376,903
Tax element of contract liabilities EHBEME 229,619 206,333
Payables for purchase of property, BEVE MEAXREHN
plant and equipment FE 1 3R IR 111,582 134,444
Dividend payable e AT B 40,412 38,100
Taxes payable JfE 85 7 3R 37,167 30,657
Accrued logistics expense st mAX 21,410 73,796
Others H b 215,879 141,642
3,757,501 3,095,609

Note: For incentive purpose, the Group offers rebate to certain
customers which will be settled by transfer of goods or
services to those customers in future transactions. The
balance of sales rebate represented such obligation by the

Group to transfer goods or services.

The followings table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current year relates to carried-forward

sales rebate.

M ABENmE  AKBERET
FEPRHEEM  ZEMR AR
RZPAEERmARBN T X
HE - HENMERKEASEE
FEEmARBOERL -

TRIVRRAF E R 0 R4 88
EEMBENKATEE -

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
B=E HE
2020%F12H318 2019412 A31H
LHFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®ET T
Revenue recognised that was REYFHA S E B4 R
included in the sales rebate B E R A
balance at the beginning of
the year 568,339 407,884

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
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29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #

=R e

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

BORROWINGS 28. &
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
2020%12A318 2019412 A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AR®T T
Unsecured bank loans EIKIRITER 20,000 606,500
The carrying amounts of the above & it 2k BR E (H & FE (&
borrowings are repayable: &
Within one year —F R - 606,500
Within a period of more than one — &L BN B W 4 R
year but not exceeding two years Bl 20,000 =
20,000 606,500
Amounts due within one year shown R®) & &%/~ —F A2 H
under current liabilities 2 I8 = 606,500
Amounts shown under non-current  RIERBEB NI RZ
liabilities IR 20,000 =
The borrowings carry an interest rate of loan prime rate & % & B B E ) E-0.0125% 4

-0.0125%.

LEASE LIABILITIES

The amounts due are based on scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

L 5 81
29. HEAR

ERF . - B B 208 7518 8 B2 1
TEEEC S

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
2020%12A318 2019412 A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AR T T
Within one year —FR 37,554 31,149
Within a period of more than one BR—FETZRMREA
year but not more than two years Y HA i 29,013 22,369
Within a period of more than two BEMFETZRATA
years but not more than five years Y HA 23,747 41,349
Within a period of more than five AEFEMNE
years 154 756
90,468 95,623
Less: Amount due for settlement BWoOmBAEETETN
with 12 months shown 121E A 2 55 &9
under current liabilities &~ 7 I8 37,554 31,149
Amount due for settlement after 12 JEREBBFEE NTEARA
months shown under non-current 121E B 1& & 15 5k 18
liabilities 52,914 64,474
FEREMRERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #1 Z< i1 &+
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020%12 8318 Ik F &

30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 30. EHERE
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
2020%12A8318 2019412 A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR®ET T
Sales of beverages FR= 1,767,588 1,587,175
Current Vi) 1,767,588 1,587,175

The followings table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current year relates to carried-forward
contract liabilities.

TEBIAFEREWANE ER
RrBASE -

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
BZE HE
202012 H318 2019412 A31H
LtFE EFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®F T
Revenue recognized that was REFGFAE N BELE R
included in the contract liability Z BRI A
balance at the beginning of the
year 1,587,175 1,341,686
31. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 3. ELEHEBEEE BEF
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances TREINAVBREREMERD
for financial reporting purposes: BT IBAERR DT -
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
202012 A31H 2019412 A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARBT T
Deferred tax assets IRAE R IH & = 412,072 373,327
Deferred tax liabilities REERIBEE (190,883) (131,950)
221,189 241,377

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #7 2 I/ i#
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

31. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES
(continued)

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets

3. EERBEE BE(E)

TXEHINEHRIEZETCEENRE

recognised and movements thereon: EREE
Impairment
Provision £l of property,  Accelerated
against  provision of Unrealised Deferred ~ plant and tax  Fair value
inventories  receivables  Tax losses Accruals profits income ~~equipment ~ depreciation  adjustments Others Total

EHERS

0% EER  BHER

FERE EREXRE  REEE  EHER ARRER ERML RERE fE APEEE 4 it
RMBO0O  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD ~ RMBOOO  RMBO0O  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO
ARRTR ARETR ARMTr ARETR ARBTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARER

18616 34611 69,898 (527200 (42.%46) 12149 283724

9,709 (1442 (7599) (38,109) 3,264 % (42347)

28,325 33,169 62,299 (90,825)  (36,682) 12,245 W3

(1,525) 2129 (835) (12,114) 233 (1780 (0188)

At 1 January 2019 #2019%1A1A 6,640 2192 16,212 9112
Cherged (credt) to profit REEHRGIA)

and loss 1,798 401 (10,53) 66
At 31 December 2019 RN0E12AIA 8438 2,553 5611 219,78
Charged (credi) to proft RERMRGIA)

and loss 1624 n (3,076) 52314
At 31 December 2020 RONE1A3NA 16,062 3,214 2601 271492

20,800 3,208 61444 (162939  (37351) 10,508 21,189

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB112,665,000 (2019: RMB172,905,000) that are
available for offsetting against future taxable profits to a
maximum period of five years of the companies in which the
losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

AREBKAEFEAM ZHEBAAR
#112,665,0007T (20194F : A R ¥
172,905,0007) Al E £ BB 2 A
AEREBERERFZ HEARIE
HARRERFEH - HRZEERE
REEEREBEMRE BB 2ZH
BRAR MBETRAEABEZRHEF
AIHBAZERE  HTERZS
EEERECEHRELE -

TERMBRIE
£ 3§ 2020

197



198

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #7 & B 7% #% 2 B iF

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020%12 8318 Ik F &

31.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES
(continued)

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group had unrecognised tax
losses available to offset against future profits as follows:

ELEBBREE &E(E)

AEBENTENBARARERD
HIBEETAREERRNE A
LU

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
202012 H318 2019412 A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARMET T

Year of expiry BN
2020 20204 = 57,613
2021 20214 62,310 62,859
2022 20224 11,937 11,937
2023 20234 23,923 23,923
2024 2024 % 3,994 16,573
2025 20254 10,501 =
112,665 172,905

Pursuant to the EIT Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied
on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China or
offshore incorporated enterprises which are regarded as
Chinese Resident Enterprises (the “CRES”). The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. Pursuant to the approvals
received by the Company from the State Administration
of Taxation of the PRC, the Company and most of its
subsidiaries are regarded as CREs and relevant enterprise
income tax policies shall be applicable to the Company and
these subsidiaries starting from 1 January 2013. As a result,
the Company and these subsidiaries are therefore no longer
liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
their subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect
of retained earnings generated. No deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes on the unremitted earnings
of the subsidiaries or associates established in Mainland
China at 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
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X ANRR) R EKRID KB AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #7 2 I/ i#
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

32. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

32. ARQFRKRA

Number of
shares Share capital
B EE [N
HKD’000
T
Authorised: ERE
4,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 4,000,000,000 0% & A%
HKDO0.10 each ME0.108 Tz E@MAX  4,000,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid BEETEEHE
At 1 January and 31 December 2019 720194 } 20204
and 2020 2,797,223,396 ordinary 1H18 %12 H31H
shares of HKDO.10 each 2,797,223,396 % & i%
HECIOB T 2@/  2,797,223,396 279,722
Equivalent to RMB’000 ERARET T 293,201

33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM V. AEEHELEEB YR
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRFANAEBERETHEENE
arising from financing activities, including both cash and EEE BRERAESKIFEREEE -
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities BEEHELENEEERERERED
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows WHARBEEREBRNAEBLEE
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of RERERTPEABRE TR
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. MEMAE -
Lease Dividend
liahilities payables Borrowings
HEaE ENARE & =&
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®BTT AR®TT
As at 1 January 2019 R201941A1H 58,184 = 1,166,500
Dividends declared EEIKRRKE = 215,017 -
Financing cash flows BRERESRE (28,027) (176,917) (560,000)
Interest expense B ZH 2,800 - -
New leases entered el M8 62,666 - -
At 31 December 2019 M2019412 A31H 95,623 38,100 606,500
Dividends declared EEIkRE = 186,398 -
Financing cash flows MERERE (43,237) (184,086) (586,500)
Interest expense B X H 4,867 - -
New leases entered HEINTHE 33,214 - -
At 31 December 2020 72020512 A31H 90,467 40,412 20,000
FEREMRERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #1 Z< i1 &+
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020%12 8318 Ik F &

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 4. IEFEE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have
any significant contingent liabilities.

RBERAR  AKEL EEMEK
HBRE -

35. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS 35. RIKEF 58
The Group’s employees in Hong Kong participates in both a AEENEERENRB AL HENE
defined contribution scheme which is registered under the SRR 816 B 5t 2 LB B 3R ET
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO = (8% 22 R IR 51 8 & B 5T 81 1) R AR
Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the 1 98l 1 A T8 © 51 815 B B 3L A o
“MPF Scheme”) established under the Mandatory Provident HlEATESFE (B RAERE
Fund Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong. The assets of the g - ZEFEMBEERASEE
schemes were held separately from those of the Group, ENRFAE  WHAZEAZEHHNE
in funds under the control of trustees. Contributions to HEHA Al ATEEEHRT
the MPF Scheme were in accordance with the statutory RIBEHFHMERABESIEARENETE
limits prescribed by the MPF Ordinance. Where there were REEDL - MEERAZEHERSH
employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully KA AR B R ARG EE BT -
in the contributions, the contributions payable by the Group BIFT SRS RENRASEEZ
were reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. No ERHR RERFEAN - W HEN
forfeited contribution was utilised in this manner during the bt 75 = 8 AR WA R o 1A 2R 45 AR
years presented. At the end of the reporting periods, no K BE B B 7 B 2 R IRET & I
forfeited contribution, which arose upon employees leaving FrEImMEAENSKEN  BT-eH
the ORSO Scheme were available to reduce the contributions T H0 R R 2R F A e R R o
payable in future years.
The employees of the Group in mainland China are members AEBRFPBEAMHES THRBEA
of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by Hh, R A2 1E /) B 3R B 3B AR AR AR B 5T
the government of mainland China. The Group is required BlZKE - AEBEBIZFHEK AR
to contribute 20% of payroll costs to the retirement benefit 20% [ 7% R YK & ) 51 &) 1F i 1 3k LA
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the BERA - NEB L RIKEFIFE
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to B EE BIEH R EMK -
make the specified contributions.
36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. EAXREIE
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
2020%12A318 2019412A31H
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARE T ARBETIT
Capital expenditure in respect of B E M BHRRAEE]
the acquisition of property, plant HWEBEERERZY
and equipment contracted for but ¥ BELAZHFEIEARN
not provided in the consolidated HE
financial statements 182,563 359,239

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #7 2 I/ i#
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

(a)

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. BEBARS
Apart from the transactions and balances (@) BREF B |MFT H Mt 5 TR
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, BeRERESRD RE
the Group had the following material transactions REFEREBE L E
with related parties during the year: TRZERXZWT:
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
# £2020F B £20194F
12A31BLLEE 12A31HIEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBET T
Transactions with fellow HRARMNBARIZR S :
subsidiaries:
Sales of goods 5 & 7 4,520 3,980
Purchases of goods BEEM 1,092,465 1,184,870
Rental expenses e 16,089 16,306
Service fee expenses R & H 10,376 11,066
Transactions with the ultimate HEHKERRARIZRS :
holding company:
Sales of goods HE M m 38 78
Transactions with associates: BEtENA 2R 5 :
Purchases of goods BEEM 2,028,009 2,195,731
Processing services 0T Ak 7% 152,241 156,969
Transactions with related HEERRZRH"
companies®:
Purchases of goods EEESm 2,305,824 2,124,800

All of the above related party transactions constituted
continuing connected transactions discloseable in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

i These related companies represented subsidiaries of
the minority shareholder of the Company’s subsidiary.

These transactions were carried out in accordance
with the terms and conditions mutually agreed by the
parties involved.

LAFRE BT X HEMAR
B EMRBE TR BN ERE

BRS o
o WSHERRRAARAZT
AR ERR 2T A7

RERGNEREESETE
3% E Z AR R AR A AT

resaEnas 201



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020%12 8318 Ik F &

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

= Npy & e

37. BEMA RS (&)

Compensation of key management personnel of () XEEXTEEBEAEZR
the Group [}
The remuneration of directors and other members of RAFE EZREMETEE
key management during the year was as follows: BABZHMEI DT :
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
H £2020F & 2£2019F
12A31BLLEE 12A3181EFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Short term employee benefits %2 (& & 18 7 12,304 14,699
Pension scheme contributions & Kk 5t 2] £t 5% 1,285 2,424
Total compensation paid to key N FEZEE A B 23R
management personnel 48 %5 13,589 17,123
Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s EENmETHRAEBMEAE
emoluments are included in note 12 to the — BB H LR A S & MY
consolidated financial statements. FF12 o
Balances with related parties (c) BEEEE M
Balances with the ultimate holding company, HEEKRZERAR RREFA
fellow subsidiaries, non-controlling shareholders of A~ FARIKIEZE MR R
subsidiaries and related companies are trade related, FENRINEREE S
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. EIRHF EEBEAEERE
Details of impairment assessment of amounts due }EWF‘% 85 SRIERE R R FF
from related parties are set out in note 39. %@B’\ﬁﬁ 5£39 e
The ageing of balances with related parties, presented BIEE MRS HE 25 A L
based on the date of the delivery of goods, was as BE RSS2 RERIOT
follows:
Within 3to Over
3 months 12 months 1 year Total
AR 3Z12(8A BiBIE @
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR®TR ARETR ARETx
2020 2020
Due from associates JE B & A R 51 24,865 - - 24,865
Due from fellow subsidiaries L GES NGRS 78,669 3,482 4,810 86,961
Due from non-controlling TE W FfY BB /3 ) 3R AR R
shareholders of subsidiaries R T 2,461 = = 2,461
Due from a related company BN EBEARRE 54,010 178 - 54,188
Due from the ultimate holding A3 N Alﬁ
company 1 - = 1
Due to assaciates BB ERRFIE (182,305) (6,492) - (188,797)
Due to fellow subsidiaries R [ ?WE (196,630) (1,665) - (198,295)
Due to non-controlling FE1T MTEQQ?H?‘H&
shareholders of subsidiaries e (1,200) = = (1,200)
Due o a related company FEff— Fﬁ?ﬁ BATHE (2,321) (13) - (2,334)

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #5 & 81 7% # 2 M i

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)

(d)

37. BBL X% (&)

Balances with related parties (continued) (c) EEEAEE S MA &R (@)
Within 3to Over
3 months 12 months 1 year Total
JEEM  3EI2ER BiBIFE )
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
2019 20194
Due from associates U EE & N B IR 13,077 672 - 13,749
Due from fellow subsidiaries [ EELEEES 12,521 376 4,904 17,801
Due from non-controlling NG E 22
shareholders of subsidiaries R TE 2,030 4 - 2,034
Due from a related company JE W —E B D Al A 369,581 25 238 369,844
Due to associates JE1THE & AR FUE (111,038) (46,212) - (157,250)
Due to fellow subsidiaries [ R ZH B AR ZIE (158,650) (17.599) 4 (176,253)
Due to non-controlling BRI AR E 2 R
shareholders of subsidiaries R E A (1,200) = = (1,200)
Due o a related company eI —E B 2 R 708 (241,686) (1,626) @) (243316)
Transactions and balances with other state- ) HEMGMBEELENRIZR
owned enterprises g3

The Group operates in an economic environment
predominated by enterprises directly or indirectly
owned or controlled by the PRC government
through its numerous authorities, affiliates or other
organisations (collectively “State-owned Enterprises”).
During the year, the Group entered into extensive
transactions covering, but not limited to, sales of
goods, purchases of raw materials, property, plant and
equipment and other assets, receiving of services, and
making deposits and borrowings with certain State-
owned Enterprises, other than COFCO Corporation
and its affiliates, on terms comparable to those with
non-state-owned enterprises. The Directors consider
that transactions with those State-owned Enterprises
were entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group, and that dealings of the Group
have not been significantly or unduly affected by the
fact that the Group and those State-owned Enterprises
are ultimately controlled or owned by the PRC
government. The Group has also established pricing
policies for products and services, and such policies
do not depend on whether or not the customers are
State-owned Enterprises.

AEEELNKBERRTODE
ERZHTEBRMNEEER
LR - B R S EL A AR A
EERREEEARIIESNO D
XGEBWIBAELE] AFE
AEHEEXLEBRRET
MERRZBEETRREE
Em- BERVH WX B
FEhEEREMBEE  BXR
B UHEPEEEERAFR
HEB AR NIIBEE R ETF
RAER - L FERXH )RR R
FEBLERZHEFMEU - E
ERR HZFEBLEENAR
FREASEREEKBRESD
ETHEY  BAKEEZS
BB S A FE ) Sk A ) B
BEENRZAREZIERXN
RTEXE  AKREENTE
mA ARG EBERR - B
RETEBRREFPEEREE
Bx-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #1 Z< i1 &+
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020%12 8318 Ik F &

38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 38. B AATIM B AR 215

COMPANY
(a) General information of subsidiaries (a) KMIBAT—MREHR
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held RBERRANAREE R HEE
by the Company at the end of the reporting period FE M BARMFEIEES R
are set out below: ™~
Place of
Registration and Paid up issued/  Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
TR BRIAR/
WEARER mEnE dMEER  ARAREHEEEIN  TEXH
2020 2019
2020% 2019
% %
COFCO Beverages Limited Samoa USD1 100 100 Investment holding
REAEERAR EED 1% RERR
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited Hong Kong HKD2,524,855,402 65 65 Investment holding
FRTATEKHERAH Bk 2,524,855,40278 T REER
COFCO Beverages (Hunan) Limited Samoa (N 65 65 Investment holding
RERH (AR ERAA EED I REER
COFCO Beverages (Beijing) Limited Samoa USD6,825,001 65 65 Investment holding
RRAN LR ERAR EED 6,825,001 T REZER
COFCO Beverages (CCBMH) Limited Samoa UsD1 65 65 Investment holding
EED IEI REER
COFCO Beverages Hunan (HK) Limited Hong Kong HKD62,400,001 65 65 Investment holding
miE SRR AE (BB ERAA i 62,400,001 T REZER
COFCO Beverages Beijing (HK) Limited Hong Kong HKD53,235,001 65 65 Investment holding
RERHILR(EB) ARAA Bk 53,235,001/ 0 RERR
COFCO Beverages Qingdao Company Limited ~ Samoa USD20,134,375 65 65 Investment holding
BED 20,134 375% 7T REER
COFCO Beverages (Qingdao) Limited Samoa (N 65 65 Investment holding
RESE(ES)ERATA EED I REER
COFCO Beverages (Hainan) Limited Samoa USD4,387,501 65 65 Investment holding
REHE (8R)ERAR EED 4387501 T REZER
COFCO Beverages Tianjin (Samoa) Limited Samoa HKD13,623,397 65 65 Investment holding
REAHRE(EED)BRAR EED 13623897 T REER
COFCO Beverages Qingdao (HK) Limited Hong Kong HKD82,454,768.01 65 65 Investment holding
RERKEE (BB ERAA i 82,454,768.01% T REZER
COFCO Beverages Hainan (HK) Limited Hong Kong HKD143,052,501 - 65 Investment holding
REREER (BB ERAR Bk 143,052,501 ¢ RERR
COFCO Beverages (Xinjiang) Limited Samoa USD1 65 65 Investment holding
REAMGIE)ERAA BED IE REBR
COFCO Beverages (Xinjiang) Limited Hong Kong HKD1 65 65 Investment holding
RERHGIE) ERAR 0 18T REER

2@4 CHINA FOODS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #7 2 I/ i#
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

38. ZEE?ZIK’AE MEARZFE
"

(a) General information of subsidiaries (continued) (a) MBAT—MRER (&)

Place of

Registration and

Paid up issued/

Proportion ownership interest

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
ZRR BRABR/
WEAREE KEwY ZMER  ARRFEAEEESL  TEER
2020 2019
2020 20194
% %
COFCO Beverages (Jiangxi) Limited Hong Kong HKD1 65 65 Investment holding
REAM(IA) ERAR ¥ 18T REEMR
COFCO Beverages Tianjin (HK) Limited Hong Kong HKD60,450,001 65 65 Investment holding
RERHKER(ER)FRAR ¥ 60,450,001 ¢ REER
COFCO Beverages Qingdao (Samoa) Limited Samoa HKD12,000,000 65 65 Investment holding
BED 12,000,000 1T RERR
COFCO Beverages Beijing (Samoa) Limited Samoa HKD100,000 65 65 Investment holding
BED 100,0007% 7T BEAER
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (China) The PRC USD110,000,000 65 65 Investment holding
Investment Ltd*.
RIER A EHH (PE) REBRAR* G 110,000,000 7t REER
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Shanxi) The PRC USD10,000,000 48.75* 48.75"  Beverage bottling production,
Limited* sale and distribution
IR OFLHRM (LA FRAR" e 10,000,000% 7 FHREE HERDH
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Shaanxi) The PRC USD20,000,000 65 65 Beverage bottling production,
Limited* sale and distribution
RIER O LHH (RAE)BRAR" e 20,000,000% ¢ FHBEE HERAH
COFCO Coca-Cola Liaoning (South) Beverages ~ The PRC RMB72,000,000 39¢ 39%  Beverage bottling production,
Limited* sale and distribution
RERATEEE (F) AR ERAA i AR 72,000,000 HHMEE HERDH
COFCO Caca-Cola Liaoning (North) Beverages ~ The PRC USD23,500,000 60.94 60.94  Beverage bottling production,
Limited* sale and distribution
RER A EEE (L) KB ARAR* G 23,500,000 T HHMEE HERDH
COFCO Coca-Cola Liaoning (Central) The PRC USD13,000,000 65 65 Beverage bottling production
Beverages Limited*
MR A EEE () KR BRAR* e 13,000,000% 7 FHEREE
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Heilongjiang) The PRC USD44,000,000 65 65 Beverage bottling production,
Limited* sale and distribution
REROALHH (RET)ARAR" e 44,000,000% 70 FHREE HERAH
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Jilin) Limited* The PRC USD18,000,000 65 65  Beverage bottling production,
sale and distribution
g A AR EER (B H) BIRA A HE 18,000,000% 7t HHMEE HERDH
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Sichuan) The PRC USD17,000,000 58.05 5805  Beverage bottling production,
Limited* sale and distribution
iR OFALHH (T ERAR” e 17,000,000% 70 HHMEE HERDH
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Chongging) The PRC USD72,000,000 65 65 Beverage bottling production,
Limited* sale and distribution
PR OFLHH (ZE)BRAR e 72,000,000% 70 FHREE HERDH
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38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 38. EEAAATMEB AR ZF1E

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020

COMPANY (continued) (&)
(a) General information of subsidiaries (continued) (@ MEAR—RER(E)
Place of
Registration and Paid up issued/  Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
EM R BRIBR/
WEARER BEHY ZMER  ARFFEAEEESL  TEER
2020 2019
2020 20194
% %
COFCO Coca-Cola Supply Chain (Tianjin) The PRC RMB10,000,000 63.5 63.5  Wholesale and retail of
Limited** pre-packaged foods, raw
and auxiliary materials,
supply chain information
consultation, management
services and others
miERAA LR ERE(KE)ERAT e A& %10,000,0007 RERZERAEEM RE
B fEEESHN BB
FRis J B
Zhongke Enterprise Management (Tianjin) The PRC RMB3,000,000 65 65 Enterprise management service
Limited* and consulting, business
information consulting,
marketing planning, and
computer information system
development, consulting,
promotion and service
REGXER(RB)ERAA e AR H3,000,0007C PREBRBRAN  EBE
Bl EHKE  HEH
EEERRFE &0 AR
R IR
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Tianjin) The PRC USD15,500,000 32.5¢ 32.5¢*  Beverage bottling production,
Limited** sale and distribution
RIER AR EHRH (K2 ERAR G 15,500,000 7 HHMEE HERDH
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Hebei) The PRC RMB83,000,000 32.5¢ 32.5%  Beverage bottling production,
Limited** sale and distribution
IR DR LK (Tt FRA R HE AR #83,000,0007 FHBEE HERDH
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Inner Mongolia) ~ The PRC RMB48,000,000 43.55¢ 4355¢  Beverage bottling production,
Limited** sale and distribution
RERAAEHK (AFE) ERAT e A K #48,000,00070 FHBEE BERAH
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Shandong) The PRC USD12,500,000 48.75¢ 48.75%  Beverage bottling production,
Limited** sale and distribution
RIERAAEHH (LR BERAR mE 12,500,000% 7. HRMEE HERDH
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Jinan) Limited*  The PRC USD5,000,000 48.75" 48.75%  Beverage bottling production,
sale and distribution
RIER A E 5K (B ) BB AR G 5,000,000% ¢ HRMEE HERDH
COFCO Coca-Cola Huazhong Beverages The PRC RMB144,400,000 65 65  Beverage bottling production,
Limited* sale and distribution
REOFLERRHERAR" HE AR 144,400,000 FHBEE HERDH
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38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 38. AR AARIMNEB AR ZF1E

COMPANY (continued) (#&)
(a) General information of subsidiaries (continued) (@ MEAR-—RER(E)
Place of
Registration and Paid up issued/  Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
E R BRIAR/
WEAR AR mEnE &R  ARAFEAEEEIL TEXER
2020 2019
20205 20194
% %
Gansu COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Limited*  The PRC USD5,000,000 65 65 Beverage bottling production,
sale and distribution
HEPEIAMLKHERAR" e 5,000,000% 7 FHREE HERDH
Tibet COFCO Coca-Cola Commerce & Trade The PRC RMB2,000,000 65 65  Beverage sale and distribution
Limited*
BRTENOTLARERAF" e AR #2,000,0007T FHEEREE
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Xinjiang) The PRC RMB60,000,000 52 52 Beverage hottling production,
Limited** sale and distribution
RIER AT EHKH (B ERAR HE A& %60,000,0007C HHMEE HERDH
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Beijing) The PRC USD19,500,000 48.75" 48.75¢  Beverage bottling production,
Limited** sale and distribution
R AAEHRH LR BRAR G 19,500,000 7t FHMEE HERDH
COFCO Coca-Cola Huabei Beverages The PRC RMB78,000,000 58.5 585  Beverage bottling production
Limited**
RETOFLELRHERAT e AR #78,000,0007C RHEREE
Beijing Cheng Xiang Foods Co., Ltd** The PRC RMB58,211,932 48.75¢ 48.75*  Wholesale of packaged foods
TREARRBRAR HE AR%58 211,932 HEBRRRM
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages (Guizhou) The PRC RMB81,120,000 65 65 Beverage bottling production,
Limited* sale and distribution
A AT EHKH (BN ERAR" e AR %81,120,0007T BHMEE HERDH
COFCO Yuehuo (Tianjin) Company Ltd.* The PRC RMB10,000,000 100 - Food business, food business
(pre-packaged food sale) and
food internet sales
PEfE XD RAERAF HE AR #%10,000,0007 RmiEE REmEE(HER
BERRIREREHAH
5
# These subsidiaries are accounted for as subsidiaries § ZEWB AR ZIERARNA

Fr65% < B AT - Ex
FHREZEFEE /S ARE
2B AR -

by virtue of the Company’s indirect control over them
through a 65% owned subsidiary, which controls
these subsidiaries.

* SINEBE R E

Wholly-foreign-owned enterprise

* %

Sino-foreign equity joint ventures o HINEERHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020%12 8318 Ik F &

38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (continued)
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-
controlling interests:

38. BEAARDRIMBAR 215
(%)
h) EHEEEAFERER
ZHZEMBDE ZHE
TRUSIFEEEAEAE
R 2 2 AMBARN R

:|\£.
B -

Place of
incorporation
and principal ~ Proportion of ownership interests and
place of voting rights held by non-controlling Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary business interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
EMA LR FERERFBENFEER
WEARER TEERHY REEZAAM ARTHERER 2EF R EERER
31/12/2020 31/12/2019 2020 2019 31/12/2020 31/12/2019
20205128318 2019412A31H 2020% 2019F 2020%128318 2019412A31H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETE AR¥TR ARETR
COFCO Coca-Cola Beverages Hong Kong
Limited (“COFCO Coca-Cola") 35% 35% 279,628 229,240 2,526,086 2,246,458
mEAOTERHERAR i
[iEETAAE])
Summarised financial information in respect of BB O % Y Bga R

COFCO Coca-Cola is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts before
intragroup eliminations.

BREFIIT o TXAAE S
BEHRBESSEARAFEEHE
AR e

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
202012 H31H 2019412 H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T ARBT T
COFCO Coca-Cola and FRETOEKKHEB AR
subsidiaries
Non-current assets EmBE E 10,472,664 10,511,895
Current assets mENE E 4,953,782 4,181,912
Current liabilities mENAE (6,825,331) (6,961,260)
Non-current liabilities EMEBE (479,357) (403,469)
Equity attributable to owners of 2N &) # G A F& (h # =5
the Company 7,162,959 6,469,601
Non-controlling interests FE AR = 958,799 859,477

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 38. BRAAARIME AR ZF1E

COMPANY (continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries

(%)
() EFHEEEERFERESR

that have material non-controlling interests ZHEEZTEMBLARIZHFE
(continued) (#&)

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2020 31/12/2019

H Z£20205F & £2019F

12A31RLLEE 12A318IEFE

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR® Tt ARETFTT

Revenue WA 17,249,138 17,172,027
Cost and expenses AN & B 2 (16,286,713) (16,388,248)

Profit and other comprehensive 7282 &) & 16 4 A 3a K| I &

fib 2 T W 28

income for the year

attributable to the Company 798,936 654,972
Profit and other comprehensive  JE 128 % 4 25 & 1 F A )5 A1)

income for the year R HE 2wl

attributable to the

non-controlling interests 163,489 128,807
Net cash inflow from operating K& EFEL 2IRE R

activities F R 2,212,270 1,656,211
Net cash outflow from investing & EBEA ZHE T

activities ik (374,823) (425,900)
Net cash outflow from financing REB/EBEL 2R E R

activities F (797,169) (668,710)
Net cash inflow BERANFRE 1,040,278 561,601

39. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes bank borrowings disclosed in note 28, net of
bank balances and cash and equity attributable to owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital, share
premium and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on regular basis.
As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the Directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.

39. EXEREE

AREEREES  UERAEE
MERENSELE  ABEAE
fi 18 75 2 B F 165 B KPR 300 12 5
BREEE - AEFRAEEEER
B AR T o

AEBEARBEREERKER K
T EENMFE28MEERITER(EH
MEBRITRBRREES) RARFEE A
EhED (BREBTRA  RiDH
B R f#Efh) o

ESEHENEARRE - (FRLE
B —#n  BEEESERBEANK
ARELEBHEAEBORR - R
BEFENER AKESEERY
BE - BTHEBRBERRBER
FEHEERBEAER -

TERMBRIE
£ 3§ 2020

209



210

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #1 Z< i1 &+
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT 40. @M IT A
Categories of financial instruments c@MIAER
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
2020512A318 2019412A31H
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARE T AR T T
Financial assets SHEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REHK AR 2
SREE 2,353,560 1,709,298
Debt instruments at FVTOCI AR FEEFAEA
2ERWBARNEETIA 34,714 19,436
Financial liabilities tRas
Amortised cost 85 R AN 2,670,386 4,522,239

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Group’s major financial instruments including accounts
receivables, deposits and other receivables, due from
related parties, bank balances and cash, accounts and
bills payable, other payables and accruals, borrowings, and
amounts due to related parties. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include currency
risk interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitor these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Mainland China with most
of the Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions
denominated in RMB. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
foreign currency denominated monetary assets (mainly bank
deposit) at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

TREBEEEREREER
AEBTITEZESRIABRERWE
R meREMERKIE - B
BOTRIR  RITEBREES - BN
R R EE - HAM BN RIE R B
ER B RBAEALRE-F
AZFeMTAZHBREMER
B-EZEoRmIARBZARE
BRHERR BEER SERR
KREETRER - A /AR %
FRBZBEREIET - EHEE
BREEZETRAR  AEREER
BROHTEER

B b
AEBFERFEAMLE @ A
SEZRBAMBNEBEE  ABR
RPUNETEUAAREFE NS
R AEBENUINEFEEEEE
ZEHE(EZRRITER) &I
T

Assets
BE

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
20205128318 2019412 A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARB T T
HKD BT 30,289 52,938
USD ETT 288 1,787
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
(continued)

Currency risk (continued)

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by performing
regular reviews of the Group’s net foreign exchange
exposures and may enter into currency forward contracts,
when necessary, to manage its foreign exchange exposure.

40.

EWMIAE)
TREAREEEERBE(E)

B8 g (&)
NEBETBINERREBTHE
EAREB ZHNER KR FE - WA AL
B EERHPAHOURBE) UE
I3 H HMNE R B o

2020 2019
20204 20194
Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) in
profit after tax

(decrease) in
profit after tax

BRE&RR Rk 71 1% g F
#hn, ORd)  #hn Crd)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®T T
RMB — HKD AR®E - BT
Appreciation of RMB by 5% AREEF ES% (1,136) (1,985)
Depreciation of RMB by 5% AR ¥EE EE% 1,136 1,985
RMB — USD AR® - X7
Appreciation of RMB by 5% AREEFES% (11) (67)
Depreciation of RMB by 5% AN REBTE5% 1 67
Interest rate risk Fl % J7 Bz

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable rate bank balances, variable rate bank
borrowings, and lease liabilities. The Group cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of interest rates on bank balances and bank borrowings.
The Group aims at keeping borrowings at variable rates. The
Group manages its interest rate exposures by assessing the
potential impact arising from any interest rate movements
based on interest rate level and outlook.
Total interest income from financial assets that are
measured at amortised cost is as follows:

ANEEFAZEZBIIRITEHS  FR
RITEFAREEEGEHRBLIRESR
ERERR  ANEBIRSRKEFE
EREZEEFRBOIEHRRBTE
?Aﬂ#}}i@] AEBE 5T O E)F
REFEER o REEERF EKAE
&HJJ%%&E%%?‘J?“@W}Z’}LE’J
BEFZETEENERR

R B 2 S BA B B
INT UL

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
B £2020%F #H £20194F
12A31BILEE 12831BIEFE
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® T AR T T
Other income HAth g A
Financial assets at amortised cost TSR ANFIBR 2
TREE 11,186 5,100
FEERERQT

F 3R 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #1 Z< i1 &+
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020%12 8318 Ik F &

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based

on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting

period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period

were outstanding for the whole year.

A 100 basis points

(2019: 100 basis points) increase or decrease in variable-
rate bank borrowings are used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel and represents

management’s assessment of the
change in interest rates.

reasonably possible

Bank balances are excluded

from sensitivity analysis as the Directors consider that the

exposure of cash flow interest rate risk
rate bank balances is insignificant.

arising from variable-

If interest rates had been 100 basis points (2019: 100
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post — tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2020 would decrease/increase by RMB150,000
(2019: decrease/increase by RMB4,549,000).

Credit risk and impairment assessment
Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties

default on their contractual obligations

resulting in financial

losses to the Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures are
primarily attributable to accounts receivables. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
to cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued) 40. £ R T B (%)
Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies cREKREEEERKE(E)
(continued)
Interest rate risk (continued) T & b (8)
Interest expense on financial liabilities not measured at fair WHEAFEFAERZERAE
value through profit or loss: FERX:
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
#H Z£20205 #H =20194
12B31ALEE 12A31HIEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR F T
Financial liabilities at amortised cost LKA R 2
TR BE 25,059 53,626
Sensitivity analysis R Z T

T 5 & SRR 2 AT T R AR F R
& HA 2R P T B A A 3R R B i 2B E ©
mEZOMIIBRENRERARKE
EEeMITEREZFRNDAERE - ¥
BOER 1T 18 R 00 kR A 10016 A 2
(20194F : 1001& & &) AR AR E0 =
EEBRABRSHNERBEER -
ERERENFERAIGEETHN G E
T - BHRESRAEEREES
fEh_' ﬁ%ZﬁiquﬂTH 2 J5
BERN BWHBRESMTTBERTLE

it I &+ F+ /T F£1001@ £ 25 (2019
&2 ¢ 100“%%)&?&@5&1@ o

BAE  KEBEREZE2020F12 8
31E|Jt¢1*7’rm§:/mfl #5838 n
A B #150,0007T (20194 : i &/
12 10 A R #4,549,0007T) °

1= B & B2 % )5 18 7 1
EERBREAEEEFHEBREH
ETERAERYBEENRRE -

AEENEERRETEREEUER
Koo Zl»‘E@]IﬂH%ﬁEﬂ}fﬁﬁuujz
HEERAEEABBESRE
2= 12 B B (5 & [



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #7 2 I/ i#
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued) 40. R T A (&)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The Group performed impairment assessment for financial
assets and other items under ECL model. Information
about the Group’s credit risk management, maximum credit
risk exposures and the related impairment assessment, if
applicable, are summarised as below:

Accounts receivables

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an
internal credit scoring system to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are
reviewed regularly. Other monitoring procedures are in place
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In this regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits and credit approvals.

In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model on accounts receivables balances on
provision matrix, the accounts receivables are grouped
under a provision matrix based on shared credit risk
characteristics by reference to repayment histories for
recurring customers and ageing for the new customers.
Impairment of RMB2,884,000 (2019: RMB2,440,000) is
recognised during the year.

The Group performed impairment assessment for financial
assets and other items under ECL model. Information
about the Group’s credit risk management, maximum credit
risk exposures and the related impairment assessment, if
applicable, are summarised as below:

TREAREEEERBE(E)

1= B /a2 R 18 #F 4 (&)
AEEHREENTBHEERE
BATHEMBERETRERS -
ERAKRENEERRERE &S
= & B\ ik O & A8 B R E AT (20 &
R ER BT :

JE W AR K

REREMFHEFA  NEEER
NEEEFDFIEFEEETFH
EEER  UARAEEFPHNEERHE -
HEFPABNRSMTD - HEH
TOARE o bSN MBEEMBERRE
FAERED SRR ETE - WK
EEMMERE -t E EFR
RAEENEERREXERE -

SEEREEERR AEEHERE
BEEZER—XBEHKAEEEEER
BREEEH -

[ NN S e SN 00
ERESRERNEEBEENE
TTRER S - BURFRIE LR
FERBREH ALEEEUEETFR
MERELEHFEPOREETD
A o FRRERIREARK2884,000
7T (20194 : A R#2,440,0007T) °

AEEHeREERTBHEERE
BATHEMBRETRERS -
ERARENEERRERE &S
= & B\ ik O & A8 B R E AT ff (20 iE
R ER BT :
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
Pledged bank deposits/bank balances

Credit risk on pledged bank deposits/bank balances is
limited because the counterparties are reputable banks with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit agencies.
The Group assessed 12m ECL for pledged bank deposits/
bank balances by reference to information relating to
probability of default and loss given default of the respective
credit rating grades published by external credit rating
agencies. Based on the average loss rates, the 12m ECL
on pledged bank deposits/bank balances is considered to
be insignificant.

Amounts due from related parties

The Group regularly monitors the business performance
of the associates, ultimate holding company, fellow
subsidiaries, non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
and related company. The Group’s credit risks in these
balances are mitigated through the value of the assets held
by these entities and the power to participate the relevant
activities of these entities. The Directors believe that there
are no significant increase in credit risk of these amounts
since initial recognition and the Group provided impairment
based on lifetime ECL. For the year ended 31 December
2020 and 2019, the Group assessed the ECL amounts due
from related parties were insignificant and thus no loss
allowance was recognised.

Other receivables

For other receivables and deposits, the Directors make
periodic individual assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables and deposits based on historical settlement
records, past experience, and also quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. The Directors believe that there
are no significant increase in credit risk of these amounts
since initial recognition and the Group provided impairment
based on 12m ECL. For the year ended 31 December 2020
and 2019, the Group assessed the ECL for other receivables
and deposits were insignificant.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #1 Z< i1 &+
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020%12 8318 Ik F &

0. €@ T & (&)

TREAREEEERBE(E)

1= B /a iz & 18 #F 4 ()

EBFRITFHRITH B

HREFHAEBBREERERT
BEEFENEERHFRT &
RRITERRITERNEERR
BR - AEE2EZIBEEFEH
BAMMMEREENRETRENHR
RREEBANEREER - FEE
BIRRITERRITAESBII2(E A
BEHMEERR REFHEREER
BHEMRITFERRITHEBRANI2ME
ARMEEFEERRGE/ALTERX -

TEW BB 7 50 R
AEBERERBPLERF  HRE
BRmE - RARMEBAR - BRI
FErEHI R AR ARNRBRA -
AEEBRBZETEECMBENEE
BELKSEZEZERARIBE
MAEREZFEHRNEERR - &
ERG BNRBERANAR  ZFEE
BHNEERRYERERZN  MA
SERE2NABERB AR
R E B - 8 ZE 20204 20194
12A31B L FE - AE B fE K
BB RENEREEBRRYLTNE
R R EEREEREMEG -

H At JE W KR
REMEBKRARFRME  EF
RiIFBESEERLE BELR N
Ko & 38 B 3 M B AT BE M E 1 K E
BER - EHIHEMEKFE R
)RR EEETEBIFE - ESF
R BRI ZFETH
MEERRI EBEZIEN  MAK
EiRE12ME AR EE BB
BEEE - 8 E=20204 & 2019F 12 A
1A LEFE - A& E B HE b 8 UK
EhEeHEEREEERLITE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #7 2 I/ i#
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Other receivables (continued)

The Group’s credit risk grading assessment comprises the
following categories:

40. @ T B (%)
TREAREEEERBE(E)

1= B /a2 R 18 #F 4 (&)
H 1o JE W KR ()
AEEEERRFRBEATEL

Internal credit

Accounts receivables
and other trade

Other financial

rating Description related receivables assets
EUWERREMES
A &R 1S B T AR F 15 6 B8 B FE UK BR X Hihem&EE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL not 12-month ECL
default and does not have any credit-impaired
past-due amounts
1K 2 B RHZBFHNENRBRRE BEXE KREAFEERECE 12REH
{E fo] 380 B R 18 HEHPEREX
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due Lifetime ECL not 12-month ECL
dates but usually settle in full credit-impaired
BxRAE BEHALERINBMAZER BB KREEAEERECZE 12R%EH
BXMERK HEHPEREX
Doubtful There have been significant Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL not
increases in credit risk since initial credit-impaired credit-impaired
recognition through information
developed internally or external
resources
A] &¢ FERNBERSIINSER - FER RKELEEEREZE RELEEERE
b B ) 40 HE 3R 2 12 B 1 AN HEHPEREX Z = HEBE
3EEES
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset  Lifetime ECL credit- Lifetime ECL
is credit-impaired impaired credit-impaired
[ ERREAAZEEFEEERE HFHEEEREZE: HBEGEREZ
HBEBMERERX > HEBEHR
B K
Write-off There is evidence indicating that Amount is written off ~ Amount is written
the debtor is in severe financial off
difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery
% 85 EMREABEBABRARENITE HIBEZH RIEE % 8H
W3R - AN SR B W E RIS
ZEE
FEREMAERLH

F 3R 2020
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

(continued)

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Other receivables (continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s financial assets which are subject to ECL

40. @ T B (%)
TREAREEEERBE(E)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #1 Z< i1 &+
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020%12 8318 Ik F &

1= B/ iz R 18 #F e ()
H fth JE W KR ()
TRAMAKEEETRBERE
At ZEREEZEERAR:

assessment:
External Internal
credit credit  12-month or
2020 Notes rating rating lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
SR RE 12EA=H2H
2020F MaE FEATE FERAFR BAHAGCEEFRE AR A
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
20209128318 20194 12AH31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREF T
Financial assets at amortised
cost
RBHEAEATIENEREE
Accounts receivables 21 N/A (Note 1)  Lifetime ECL (not 308,229 330,521
credit-impaired)
& L B R NEA (ffsEl) WAREEREZZH
HEEEER
Other receivables 22 N/A (Note 2)  12-month ECL 18,905 141,460
Ho A JE 5018 i (&2 1L2EAAEMREEEE
Due from related parties N/A (Note 2)  Lifetime ECL (not 168,476 403,428
credit-impaired)
& L5 8 Bk 75 3R NEA (ffzr2) mMAGEREZZH
HEEREBX
Pledged bank deposits/bank 24 Al-A3 N/A  12-month ECL 1,870,955 843,825
balances
BEMRITER RITEH TER REAEHEEERHE
Financial assets at FVTOCI
UAFEFAHMEZEBAN
ERMEE
Debt instruments at FVTOCI 23 A3-Baa?2 N/A 12-month ECL 34,714 19,436
AR FEERAE M2 EUE AR TEF 12EAEEEEER
BEHEIA

The management considers the impairment movements of
accounts receivables and other receivables are insignificant,
and accordingly, no impairment movements of accounts

receivables and other receivables are presented.

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #5 & 81 7% # 2 M i

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Other receivables (continued)

Notes:

1. For accounts receivables, the Group has applied the
simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL, the Group determines the ECL on
these items by using a provision matrix, grouped by ageing.

2. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the
Group uses past due information to assess whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.

40.

EWMIAE)
TREAREEEERBE(E)

12 BB % AL (LT 12 (#)
B At S # T (4R)
i

1. BERERMS  AEEEBEE
B RS R F O LR 2 4
BEHERBELAEEHEERE K&
SEEABREREEE%EAE
ZHEBERBER(GRERA) -

2. HANGERARREEMES A%
EERBRERTREERRE
BEBVAFERIARBEEEN

31/12/2020 31/12/2019

2020%12A318 2019412 A31H

Not past due/ Not past due/

No fixed No fixed

repayment terms repayment terms

I B Rizk i

EEEERPR \EETEERHAR

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBF T

Other receivables b & W kI8 18,905 141,460

Due from related parties JE UK 8 B 5 3R 168,476 403,428
Liquidity risk B E 2 7 %

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management of the Group monitors the utilisation
of bank borrowings.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

REERBDESRARE  NEBEE
ENBFEEERRERHBNARE
BeENReRREEEYWKRE
WRERERENINTE - A&
EEEEERRTERNEAE

TRFLAAKE 2 B AE 2K
BHEHMFB -TRIBREBEAKE
AERFZERFPAHAEECHAE
ZARBBERSTMEIED - HMhIEDT
TR BEZ AR REERA
HEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #1 Z< i1 &+
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020%12 8318 Ik F &

40. @ T B (%)
TREAREEEERBE(E)

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)
Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) B E R (4

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. TREFEMNERASBHEESRE ©
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the MERERZE  BIRUHBESHER

undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the

end of the reporting period.

B 4 3R 2k B R A0 2

Weighted  On demand Total Carrying
average less than undiscounted amount at
interest rate Tyear 1to5years Over5years  cash flows 31 December
MEFH FEEBE WI2A31HZ
Az EREDE 1256 580 E  REAHR REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTn ARETR ARETR ARET:
At 31 December 2020 ®2020%12 A31 A
Accounts and bills payables ~ ENEZREE = 540,334 - - 540,334 540,334
Financial liabiliies included ~ FFAE AR 308
in other payables and kEGFEEZS
accruals BERE - 1,628,959 = - 1628959 1,628,959
Due to related parties REBEANLHE = 390,626 - - 390,626 390,626
Borrowings EE 3.84% - 21,564 - 21,564 20,000
Lease liabilities BERE 4.3% 39,169 61,136 198 100,503 90,468
2,599,088 82,700 198 2,681,986 2,670,387
At 31 December 2019 M2019%12A31H
Accounts and bills payables ~ ENEZREE - 760,381 - - 760,381 760,381
Financial liabiliies included ~ FFAE A B 308
in other payables and kEGFEECS
accruals AR - 2481716 = - 2481716 2481716
Due to related parties REEALHE - 578,019 - - 578,019 578,019
Borrowings &5k 4.28%/4.05% 613,886 - - 613,886 606,500
Lease liabilities BEAE 4.3% 32,488 72,001 955 105,444 95,623
4,466,490 72,001 955 4539446 4522239

15T B R 2 3 B0 8 B R 25 B oK
BT B 5 R - BUEHA B R MDY
BTEZSENEESE -

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments are subject to change if changes in variable
interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.
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41.

42.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #

=R e

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; 2020412 A31H I F &

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts
of the Group’s financial instruments approximated to their
fair values largely due to the short term maturities of the
instruments or they bearing floating interest rates if they
have long term maturities.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

EMITAZAFVEFE

RBERR - AKBEEMTAZK
HEEEAFERSE  T2ARZK
IE?JE@H}%F??T&&HH;@HHFEJ?
REZFHNEFE

TREERABZAFENRZIA
RERBRXZ5T (MIFREHERHE)
BERIRPD TZARSGEEAR °

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 42. AAQ T Z f %R &
COMPANY
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
2020%12A318 2019412 A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR F T
Non-current Assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB K& A 8 12
Investments in subsidiaries RHERAR 2K E 1,769,560 1,769,560
1,769,568 1,769,572
Current Assets RBEE
Prepayments T IR 764 42 492
Due from subsidiaries P NEIRE 1,358,901 1,364,928
Bank balance and cash RITER KRS 13,449 36,027
1,373,114 1,443,447
Current Liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals HMEMRERETAE 2,148 2,542
Due to subsidiaries U ENGIE /€] 80,360 118,586
Tax payable J& <1 i 78 5,118 5,118
87,626 126,246
Net Current Assets RBEEFRE 1,285,488 1,317,201
3,055,056 3,086,773
Equity =
Share capital [i% s 293,201 293,201
Share premium and reserves R% 190 0 B M 2,761,855 2,793,572
Total Equity = BE 3,055,056 3,086,773
FERERBRAA

F 3R 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47 & 81 7% #1 Z< i1 &+
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; £2020%12 8318 Ik F &

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 42. AQT) 2 B AR R & (E)
COMPANY (continued)

Movement in the Company’s share premium and reserves: ARRIROnERFEESESHOT
Share
premium Contributed Retained
account surplus profits Total
R EER SBARHB HKREEA F

RMB’000  RMB’'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTE ARBTR ARBTRT AR®TR

At 1 January 2019 R2019%1A1R 30,820 2,294,331 561,387 2,886,538
Profit for the year F 7 A = - 3,268 3,268
Final 2018 dividend declared B & k20184 K B % & = = (96,234) (96,234)
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12A31R 30,820 2,294,331 468,421 2,793,572
Profit for the year F X% F = = 90,515 90,515
Final 2019 dividend declared B 5 iK2019F KH ik & - - (122232)  (122,232)
At 31 December 2020 ®2020412 A31H 30,820 2,294,331 436,704 2,761,855
43. COMPARATIVE INFORMATION 43. Lk E B

Certain comparative amounts in the consolidated financial BHEAEEESR - DHESH

statements have been reclassified to conform with the B ERp R RS EEITTE

current year's presentation. Ok o
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFMBHE

AEBEERAMBEREZFEREE
BEEERESMEDHEEE T ®

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial

years, as extracted from the published audited consolidated
financial statements and restated and reclassified as appropriate,

is set out below:

ZREREEMH®RE X
BEEHOB AEATHNTX:

P

L

B &E

Year ended 31 December

BZ12831B L&
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
20204 20194 20184 20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTRE ARBTT AREBTRI ARETT ARETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(5= =51) (5= =51)
CONTINUING OPERATION BEKEER
REVENUE g A 17,249,138 17,172,027 15648051 13,357,992 9,779,222
PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM OPERATING mEEA (BR)

ACTIVITIES 1,242,675 1,025,202 768,822 2,258,548 580,632
Finance costs B & pX A (25,059) (53,626) (74,835) (88,344) (21,724)
Share of profits of associates JE {6 B8 & A R F 35,602 41,033 44,168 41,133 63,237
Profit before tax B 7% A g A 1,253,218 1,012,609 738,155 2,211,337 622,145
Income tax expense FERAX (299,955) (236,773) (161,790)  (588,788) (144,562)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM THE BERSEER2

CONTINUING OPEARATION E R A 953,263 775,836 576,365 1,622,549 477,583
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS RIEREEK
Profit/(loss) from discontinued RIPRREERK

operations i Fl/ (E18) = - — 380,127 166,686
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR EREAN(BE) 953,263 775,836 576,365 2,002,676 644,269
Attributable to il

Owners of the parent BRAEHEAA 498,734 417,789 320,858 1,559,647 432,843

Non-controlling interests FE 15 AR 1 25 454,529 358,047 255,507 443,029 211,426

953,263 775,836 576,365 2,002,676 644,269
ASSETS, LIABLITIES AND BE -BER

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERES
TOTAL ASSETS WEE 15,110,192 14,448.364 13,288,450 13,185,731 14,437,153
TOTAL LIABITIES HmeE (7,030,972) (7,136,009) (6,575,014) (6,933,700) (7,892,394)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERER (3,125,299) (2,771,888) (2,494,524) (2,295,525) (1,679,563)

4,953,921 4540467 4218912 3,956,506 4,865,196
TEERERAT
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
QR EF

DIRECTORS

Chairman and Non-executive Director
Mr. Chen Lang

Executive Directors
Mr. Qing Lijun (Managing Director)
Mr. Shen Peng

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chen Zhigang
Ms. Xiao Jianping

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark

Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred
Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark
(Committee Chairman)

Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred
Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Chen Lang
Mr. Stephen Edward Clark

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Chen Lang (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Li Hung Kwan, Alfred
Mr. Mok Wai Bun, Ben

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr. Qing Lijun (Committee Chairman)
Mr. Shen Peng

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Liu Kit Yee, Linda

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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SOLICITORS

Conyers, Dill & Pearman

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

China Merchants Bank

CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Mizuho Bank, Ltd.

MUFG Bank, Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
VTB Bank (Public Joint-Stock Company) Shanghai Branch

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL OFFICE IN HONG KONG

33/F., COFCO Tower
262 Gloucester Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Tricor Progressive Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.chinafoodsltd.com
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR
BB

ANNOUNCEMENT OF ANNUAL RESULTS

Tuesday, 23 March 2021

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
For determining the shareholders’ eligibility to attend and vote at

the Annual General Meeting: Thursday, 27 May 2021 to Tuesday,
1 June 2021 (both days inclusive)

For determining the shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final
dividend: Thursday, 10 June 2021 to Friday, 11 June 2021 (both
days inclusive)

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Tuesday, 1 June 2021
DIVIDENDS

Interim dividend: NIL

Proposed final dividend: RMBO0.089, equivalent to HK10.6 cents
per share (Payable on or around Friday, 2 July 2021)

CHINA FOODS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020

2FEEENM
202143 A23H (E# =)
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COFCO

BRZIR SR

33rd Floor, COFCO Tower, 262 Gloucester Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

EBEEE S LTE2625 T8 K B33

Tel 5% (852) 2833 0388
Fax {HE (852) 2833 0380

www.chinafoodsitd.com
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